

# MINNESOTA ELECTRONIC DISEASE SURVEILLANCE SYSTEM

User's Manual – General guide

March 2011

MEDSS Group c/o Asa Schmit 625 N. Robert St St Paul, MN 55164-0882 651-403-9221 651-215-8980 TDD health.state.mn.us/medss

# Table of Contents

CHAPTER 1: THE MINNESOTA ELECTRONIC DISEASE SURVEILLANCE SYSTEM (MEDSS	5).5
Persons and events	5
User Groups and Permissions	6
Main vs. Administration Applications	7
Logging In	7
Logging Out	9
Passwords	10
	44
CHAPTER 2: OVERVIEW OF THE SYSTEM/DASHBOARD	
MEDSS Dashboard	
Navigating through the system	
MEDSS Toolbar	
MEDSS Shortcut Buttons	
MEDSS Dashboard - Event Summary	
MEDSS Dashboard - Event Information Person Summary Screen	
Person Summary Screen	24
CHAPTER 3: SEARCHING FOR EXISTING EVENTS	26
Performing an Event Search	26
Recent Cases	
CHAPTER 4: CREATING PERSON AND EVENT	31
Create event	
Create event - Event information	31
Create event – Search for existing person	32
Create event – Add person	34
Potential Match Screen	36
	~~
CHAPTER 5: ENTERING PERSON AND EVENT INFORMATION	
Modifying Person Information	
Modifying Person Information - Additional Tabs	
Question Packages (QP's)	
Modify Question Packages	
Entering Data	
Wizards – for easier data entry	
Important Administrative Fields	
Important demographic fields	
Select hospital/clinics/labs from the facility list	
Event status/investigation status	
Temporary Locks	59
CHAPTER 6: VIEW AND ADD LAB INFORMATION	60
Viewing lab information	
View or update an existing lab result	
Adding lab results	
Deleting lab results	

CHAPTER 7: ADDITIONAL EVENT FUNCTIONS	
Event notes	
Attach files (attachments)	
Edit Event Properties	68
Copy Event	70
Delete event	73
Concerns	74
CHAPTER 8: WORKFLOWS QUEUES AND TASKS	74
Workflow Queues (electronic to-do lists)	
Event Workflows (case and disease specific)	
Bulk Actions in workflows	
Workflows — Task Specific Workflows	
Tasks (Overview)	
Assigning Events (Event assignment tasks)	
Create and Assign an Action Task for an Event	
Create and Assign a Non-event Specific Task	
Working on and Completing Tasks	
CHAPTER 9: LINKING PERSONS AND EVENTS	
Linking Events and Contacts	
Removing and Editing Event links	
Sorting and Filtering	
Linking people (relationship links)	
Removing relationship links	
Overview of all links	
Chapter 10: LINKING AND MANAGING EXPOSURE SITES	110
Linking Events to Exposure Sites	
Managing Exposure Sites	
CHAPTER 11: SHARING EVENTS	
Sharing events	
Un-share an Event	
CHAPTER 12: DATA OUT- PRINTING AND REPORTS	
Different ways of getting data out of MEDSS	
Printing information	
Using Reports in MEDSS	125
SUMMARY	
Getting Help	
APPENDIX A: CORE FIELDS DATA DICTIONARY	131
APPENDIX B: ADDRESS STANDARDS	
Guidelines	
Abbreviations	
GLOSSERY	

# SYMBOLS USED IN THIS MATERIAL

B	NOTE
4	Clarifies something in the text
	IMPORTANT
	Important facts
Tip	TIP
0	Additional useful information.

# CHAPTER 1: THE MINNESOTA ELECTRONIC DISEASE SURVEILLANCE SYSTEM (MEDSS)

MEDSS is an electronic disease surveillance system that allows public health officials in Minnesota to receive, manage, process, and analyze disease-related data. This information comes from various health care entities such as clinics, laboratories, hospitals, and local health care providers.

The software that operated MEDSS is Consilience's Maven Electronic Disease Surveillance System and is a commercial-off-the-shelf, (COTS) web-based information system. It provides interactive, automated information gathering and decision support processes for each reportable communicable disease and is compatible with state and national IT standards. It also complies with the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) Public Health Information Network (PHIN) published standards.

MEDSS allows secure communication and coordination between state and local health departments. Furthermore, MEDSS enables immediate exchange of information between clinics, labs and local health departments. In addition to reporting, MEDSS's security environment displays only the data someone needs and is authorized to see. MEDSS functions include:

- Electronic data exchange and workflow between different groups working on public health disease management
- Ability for lab reports to be received electronically
- Ability for case reports to be received electronically
- Data entry capability for paper-based reporting (for communities that have not shifted to electronic means)
- Case- and outbreak- management

# Persons and events

In MEDSS there are information about both persons and events, however; MEDSS is a person centric system where all information collected is organized around a person. An event within MEDSS is an instance of a person tied to a specific disease at a specific time. Please note that the word **"event**" in this guide would be similar to a **"case"** or a **"record"**.



The same person can be entered into the MEDSS system with various diseases over time with each instance resulting in a different event. When entering a new event, it is important to check if the person and event are already in the system to reduce duplications of people and events.



# **User Groups and Permissions**

Information entered into MEDSS is sensitive health data therefore system security is in accordance with Minnesota privacy standards for health information. Users will be assigned a username and password that will provide access to the system. Each username is connected to one or more roles and one or more groups, which give access to specific system features and disease information. The roles and groups to which a user is assigned depend on the job function. Permissions, roles, and groups are described in detail below.

- Permission: Permissions provide the ability within the system to perform certain actions, such as "run a report" or "delete an event".
- Role: a group of permissions make up a role. For example, one role is a health department data entry person. This role has permissions such as creating or updating events. The role of the health department analyst comes with additional permissions, such as the ability to run reports. The data entry person performs different job functions and therefore has a different set of permissions than a health department analyst.
- Group: Groups define what data a user should have access to based on jurisdiction and disease specialization. For example, a Ramsey County TB group may only see TB events in Ramsey County or a Hennepin County foodborne group may see only Hennepin County foodborne disease events; not TB events. MDH staff will for the most part have access to events in the whole state but limited to the disease(s) they work with.



# Main vs. Administration Applications

There are two major applications, or computer modes, of the MEDSS system - Main and Administration. This guide will focus only on the Main application. The Main application is where all event data is accessed and edited. For example, users can search for an event, add new events as well as view run reports within MEDSS. The Main application is always the default setting when logging into the system.

Login	
Login Name:	
Password:	
Application:	Main
	Login

The Administration application is used by MEDSS administrators at the state and local levels. The Administration application allows system administrators to create new users in the system, to assign roles, and to reset passwords.

# Logging In

The Minnesota Electronic Disease Surveillance System (MEDSS) can be accessed through Internet Explorer 6.0 or Firefox 2.0; however, MEDSS is not supported by Netscape. To Log into the system, follow these steps:

1. Open a browser and type in the URL

The following screen appears:

EVALUATION CONTACTOR	Minnesota Department of Health	Minnesota Electronic Diseases Surveillance System
	Minnesota	Electronic Disease Surveillance System
	The Electron provided subject to y below. Please read t agree to be bound by application.	<pre>trueillance System Terms and Conditions of Use. Lc Disease Gurrelilance System and related services are your compliance with the terms and conditions set forth the following information carefully. If you do not the terms and conditions, promptly exit this application. a bound by the terms and conditions, promptly exit this application. togin t</pre>
	Powered b	y Maven, a product of Consilience Software (www.consiliencesoftware.com) aww.consiliencesoftware.com

2. Enter your assigned **username** and **password** in the appropriate text boxes and verify the Application is set to **Main**.



3. Click Login. The Main MEDSS dashboard displays:

Basic Information Event ID:				
		Notes		
Disease:				
Primary Person:				
Dates:				
Type: Investigation Status:				
Linked Events/Contacts:				
Linked Exposure Sites:				
Attachments:				
Edit Event Properties				
Event Information				
Question Packages				
	PERSON	LAST UPDATE	UPDATED BY	STATUS
QUESTION PACKAGE	TENDON .			
QUESTION PACKAGE	TEROON			
QUESTION PACKAGE	I EKON			
QUESTION PACKAGE	TENOON			
QUESTION PACKAGE				
QUESTION PACKAGE				
OUESTION PACKAGE				
Vew Obston Paskage				
View Oursten Package Question Package - Details Name:				
V/ew Oueston Package Question Package - Details Name Descripton:				
V/ev/ Ourstion Package Question Package - Details Name: Description: Person:				
View Oueption Package Ouestion Package - Details Name Description: Person: Status:				
V/cw/Opstion Package Question Package - Details Name: Description: Person: Status: Number of Questions:				
View Oueption Package Ouestion Package - Details Name Description: Person: Status:				

This is the home screen for the system where users are able to access functions such as searching for an event, adding a new disease report, or printing a letter.

# **Logging Out**

To logout of the system, click the Logout button in the upper right corner on the dashboard screen.

Open Help Logout
[No event loaded] Logged in as GreyA1

This will log the user out of the system and take the user back to the sign in page at which point it is safe to close the browser window.



The system will automatically log-out a user who hasn't been active for more than 20 minutes. Note that sometimes having a screen open for data entry without doing any saves will be considered as 'inactive' by the system since all activities at this point is taking place in the local browser.

## Passwords

**Passwords do expire.** The system will begin to warn the user that the password will expire 5 days before it actually expires. If the password expires before it has been reset, the user will need to contact a system administrator (email and phone number located at the end of this guide) to regain access to the system. To change the password before it has expired, first click

on the User Information button in the toolbar then type the new password into the password field and then confirm it by re-typing the same password; click Save to maintain changes.

<u>Password Requirements:</u> MEDSS requires users to establish "strong" passwords. Passwords must be 8-12 characters in length, and contain at least one number and one symbol (e.g. &, #, or !)

# CHAPTER 2: OVERVIEW OF THE SYSTEM/DASHBOARD

# **MEDSS Dashboard**

MEDSS Dashboard is the point from which most actions take place. The dashboard consists of the following areas:



- The Dashboard Toolbar has icons that perform the majority of the functions within the system. Depending on a user's role, the number of icons in the toolbar may vary. For example, one user might see a trash can icon which is used to delete an event, while another user may not see a trash can because the assigned role doesn't permit that action. Examples of toolbar actions are creating new disease events, viewing workflow queues, or adding tasks.
- The Event Summary contains a summary of the information specific to each reported disease event such as information about when the event was created, the name of the person the event is about, number of linked events and exposure sites.
- The Event Information section contains detailed information about the event and is where information may be entered for the event.
- The Shortcuts section contains buttons that can be used to quickly perform certain actions within MEDSS such as logout or open an event.

If an event is loaded into the system you will see the information for this event populated on the **Dashboard**. If the event is not loaded, the dashboard will be empty.

Chapter 3 – Searching for existing events and Chapter 4 – Creating Events in this guide have more information on how to load events into the dashboard.

To unload an event, click the **Unload Event** link in the **Shortcuts** section on the dashboard. Unloading an event is similar to putting the folder back in the file cabinet. By unloading the event, you are making the event accessible to other users to edit when you are finished working on it.

Open Help Logout
Unload Event Logged in as GreyA1

# Navigating through the system

Before using MEDSS, a user needs to understand how to navigate through the system. Once logged in, all functions can be access from the dashboard, the main screen of the system. Once navigating away from the dashboard, users should not use the browser's back button to get back to the dashboard, but use the navigation buttons built into the system's pages.



#### Some additional navigational tips:

- Clicking on the different tabs on the dashboard will display a different view of information below that tab on the same page.
- Any of the blue underlined words are links to pages with additional functions or data on the person or event. To get back, usually on the screen there is a Dashboard or Back button.
- To open new windows, users will need to either double click the name or use the navigation buttons on the page, i.e. View Question Package, View Wizard, or Details.
- When finished working on an event, users should unload the event.

Some browsers will work differently views, text size, and navigation, so if a user has any problems with navigation, contact a system administrator.

# **MEDSS Toolbar**

The Dashboard Toolbar is used to perform different functions in the system, such as searching for an existing event or running a report. User roles are used to define what functions different users should be able to use, and not all users will have access to all icons. The figure below is a sample toolbar for an advanced user. The icons are described from left to right on the toolbar:

- Create Event used to create a new disease event.
- Q
- **Search Event** used to search for an existing disease event based on various search criteria.
- Print Event used to print letters or other forms specific to the open event.
- ф.,

2

<u>-</u>

- Workflow used to view workflow queues (electronic to-do/line-lists)
- **Tasks** used to create, assign and update tasks.
- Linked Events / Contacts used to link events in the system together, such as linking a contact with an index case or linking multiple events in an outbreak together.
  - **Import Roster** used to import information about multiple events or persons from a spreadsheet which will create multiple disease events. The import roster function is specific to some diseases.
- 3

A.

**Create Outbreak/Exposure Event** – used to create an outbreak event or exposure event.

- **Reports** used to run and export reports from data entered in MEDSS.
- **Lock Event** used to create a long-term lock on the event which prohibits others from updating it. This is a function specific to off-line use of the system and only available to users using the off-line module.

**Linked Exposure Sites** – used to view and search for geographic sites which have been linked to existing events.



**Manage Exposure Sites** – provides a list of all exposure sites and enables the user to rapidly enter multiple exposure sites.



**User Information** – provides information about the current user of the system. Use this link to enter your contact information and to change your password.

- 8	Ŀ		÷	-27
. 8	E	ŝ.	z.,	-12

**Share Event** – provides the user the ability to share a case with someone who would not ordinarily have permissions to access it.



**Recent Cases** – provides easy access to the previous 20 events that have been opened by the current user.



**Import Event(s)** – used to import events which were updated or created offline. This is a function specific to off-line use of the system and only available to users using the off-line module.

ЪÎ

**Export Event(s)** – used to export events which will be updated offline. This is a function specific to off-line use of the system and only available to users using the off-line module.



**Delete Event –** used to delete an event. This function is limited to only a few people.

## **MEDSS Shortcut Buttons**



The shortcut buttons allow the user to quickly locate an event by its ID, provide the user help, and allow the user to logout of the system. To locate an event by its ID, enter the ID in the textbox and click the Open button. To obtain general help about the system, not specific to a disease, click the Help button. To logout of the system, click the Logout button. This action will take the user back to the login screen. By pressing Alt + S, C, or H, you can access the keyboard shortcuts for Save, Cancel and Help actions.

## **MEDSS Dashboard - Event Summary**

The **Event Summary** section is divided into two smaller sections: **Basic Information** and **Notes**. This section also has the Edit Event Properties and Copy Event functions.

) 🇞 🛛 # 9: 🌿 🗅	▲ 郤 兪 音 ™ 汷 些 企 ①		Unload Event Logged in a
nt Summary			
Basic Information		Notes (Add/Edit   Show My Notes)	
Event ID:	100001383	05/18/2010 04:12 PM (Generic) - Ashley Grey	
Disease:	TB - Active	Verify current contact information	
Primary Person:	Toddy Bear Birth Date: 05/05/1950 (Male ) Phone: (610) 555-555	5	
Dates:	Create Date: 05/18/2010 Event Date: 05/18/2010		
Type:	Interactive		
nvestigation Status:	Open		
Linked Events/Contacts:	1 linked event(s)/contact(s) (View)		
Linked Exposure Sites:	0 linked exposure site(s) (View)		
Attachments:	0 attachment(s) (Add)		
Notifications:	Disease Status: N/A		
	Event Date: 05/18/2010		
	Event Type: N/A		
	Linked outbreak: Outbreak101 [Open]		

#### **Basic Information**

The Basic Information section, as its name implies, highlights the following items for every event:

- **Event ID** The unique event number automatically assigned by MEDSS.
- **Disease** Disease specified in the event.

Primary Person	The name, birth date and gender of the person for the opened disease event are reflected in this field. It also has a link to more detailed information about the person.
	Clicking the name provides a person summary screen with address, other events the person has in the system, and people who are linked to the person socially (more information is provided on the Person Summary screen later in this chapter).
Dates	Create Date is when the event was created in MEDSS. Event Date is when the event was effective from. Most of the times these two dates will be the same.
Туре	The type describes how the event was originally entered into the system. The types include the following:
	Interactive – case was manually created.
	<ul> <li>Batch – case was created automatically via electronic lab report or HL7 clinical data feed.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Conversion – case data was converted to MEDSS from a previously existing database.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Cluster – case was created automatically during an automatic outbreak import of events.</li> </ul>
Investigation Status	Displays the current status of the event; typically the status will be open, closed or invalid.
Linked Events / Contacts	Displays the number of other events that are linked to this event. This is also a tool where one could initiate the linking of one event to another.
Linked Exposure Sites	Displays the total number of exposure sites linked to this event. This is also a tool where one could initiate the linking of an exposure site to the event.
Attachments	Displays the number of files that are attached to this event. This is also the tool used to access the attachments. Any file, such as a report, letter, or X-ray can be attached to an event.
Notifications	A notification about the event, for example the classification status or a notification of an existing outbreak for disease being entered may display here. This section will also display important information messages about the event, such as inconsistently entered data (concerns) or active outbreaks for the disease.

#### **Event Notes**

The **Notes** section displayed in the **Event Summary** section of the MEDSS dashboard allows users to add event specific notes for the event. MEDSS has the capability to keep notes both on an event level and on a person level. Event notes displayed in the Event Notes section on the dashboard are event specific notes and only available for users with access to the event they are created for. They will not be displayed with other disease events associated with the person.

#### Edit event and Copy event buttons

The Edit event button on the dashboard can be used to change the event information such as disease or effective date.

The Copy event button can be used to copy all information for one event and create a new event with the same information.

More information about how to edit event information and copy events can be found in Chapter 7 – Additional event features.

# **MEDSS Dashboard - Event Information**

The **Event Information Section** is divided into two distinct sections as seen in the figure below. There are tabs across the top (Event data, Lab Results, etc.) and the corresponding Details area which change depending upon the chosen tab. Each view will be discussed in more detail.

	Event Infor	mation	Ever	nt tabs	)				
	Event Data	Lab Results	Concerns	Persons	Tasks	Event Properties	Event History		
Details section	a.1 Admini a.2 TB Ad- b.1 Demog c.1 Clinica d.1 Risk H f.3 Pharma g.1 TB Me g.2 Case I h.2 Contac i.1 LPH DC	ninistrative graphic I Istory acy	Wizards	Τος           Τος	RSON iddy Bear Jr iddy Bear Jr	LAST 05/18 05/18 05/18 05/18 05/18 05/18 05/18 05/18 05/18	2010 2010 2010 2010 2010 2010 2010 2010	UPDATED BY GreyA1 GreyA1 GreyA1 GreyA1 GreyA1 GreyA1 GreyA1 GreyA1 GreyA1 GreyA1 GreyA1 GreyA1	STATUS Complete Complete Complete Complete Complete Complete Complete Complete Complete Complete
	Name Descriptio Person Status Number of	f Questions: e Required Questi te:			a. 1 Administrat a. 1 Administrat Toddy Bear Jr Complete 42 0 0 05/18/2010 GreyA1				

The Event information section is divided into a number of tabs providing the user with a variety of information about the event. By clicking on each tab different information will be available in the Details section on the screen. Depending on the user's permissions, he may or may not be able to see each tab. Each tab is described briefly below, but a more detailed description of each tab follows.

Event Data	Lab Results	Concerns	Persons	Tasks	Event Properties	Event History				
Event Data	specific t	The Event Data tab presents the user with the question packages specific to the event. A question package is a series of questions based on the same theme.								
Lab Result		ts for a particu	nts users with ular event. Elec	5		edit				

Concerns	The Concerns tab allows the user to see possible issues with data entry. There are different severity settings for concerns.
Persons	The Persons tab allows the user to enter or change demographic information for the person this particular disease event is about. All users will have access to the Person tab and this is where shared person information is stored.
Tasks	The Tasks tab will provide the user with information about all the tasks associated with the open event. All tasks for the event will show up in this tab regardless of who is assigned the task.
Event Properties	The Event Properties tab provides the user with more information about the case. It reiterates the event ID number and specifies the model being used to trigger the questions.
Event History	The Event History tab displays the time, date and user who has created or updated any part of the event.

## Event Information – Event Data Tab

The **Event Data** tab is where the user can access the disease-specific question packages. A question package (QP) is a group of questions which share a common theme. For example, the Demographic question package would include information such as age, birth date, address, while the Clinical question package would include information about the case such as symptoms and date of diagnosis. Each disease event will have different question packages available that pertain specifically to that disease event.





The **Question packages** section of the Event data tab, show a list of all available question packages for the event. Different disease events will have different question packages and different question package contents.

To open a question package double-click on the name of the question package (i.e. a.1 Administrative or b.1 Demographic), or with a question package name highlighted click on the button View Question Package. For example in the image above the question package a.1 Administrative will open up if the View Question package button is clicked).

The **Question Package- Details** section gives a brief summary of the highlighted question package. The headings of the rows are described in detail beneath the figure.

Name & Description	Identifies the title of the question package.
Person	Indicates the name of the person involved in the event
Status	Refers to the completeness of the required questions within the question package. The question package is considered complete if all required ( <i>asterisked [*]</i> ) questions have been answered. The status of a question package will be marked as complete by default if it does not contain any required questions.
Number of Questions	List the number of questions in that question package.
Incomplete Required Questions	List the number of unanswered required questions in that question package.
Last Update	Displays information about when each question package was last updated.
Updated By	Identifies the user that made the last update or modification to the question package.

#### Event Information - Lab Results Tab

The **Lab Results** Tab will display the electronic lab results for the event. Paper-based laboratory results can also be manually entered in the **Lab results Tab** for a specific event.



The top **Lab** section of the lab result tab will show a list of all lab results received or entered for the event. If multiple lab results have been entered or received for different specimens, they will be listed as a separate lab results in the list. If the same specimen number, date and source were tested more than once, each test and result will be listed within the lab result screen.

The **details section** of the lab result tab displays details about the selected/highlighted test result.

To open a test result, double-click on the test result or click on the button **Update Lab Result** with one of the test results highlighted. This will open a new screen where users can full the complete lab result received.

To add a new test result, click on the **Add Lab Result** button. The user will be brought to the lab result screen where a user can manually enter in the lab information.

More details about how to use the lab results tab can be found in Chapter 6 — View and enter lab information.

#### **Event Information – Concerns Tab**

The **Concerns** tab is used to highlight potential data entry issues that may need to be addressed. For example, if someone mistakenly inputs a date of birth that is after the date indicating onset of symptoms, the system would generate a "concern", or a notice that a data entry error may have occurred. Additionally, concerns can be entered manually by clicking the **Add Concern** button.

vent Data	Lab Results	Concerns	Persons	Tasks	Event Properties	Event History					
Concerns											
CONCERN	1			DESC	RIPTION			PERSO	N LAST UPDAT	E SEVERITY	STATUS
	IS_RULE_ORD	ER_AUTH_DATE	_MISSING_CON			e Medication Orde e of next shipment			12/21/2009	Very High	
Add Concern		m									
		m		CONCERNS_R	ULE_ORDER_A	WTH_DATE_MIS	SING_CONCEF	RN_1			
Concern -	Details	m		None of the date	ULE_ORDER_A	NUTH_DATE_MIS	SING_CONCER	RN_1 natch the	Date of next shi	pment	
Concern - Concern: Descriptio Person:	Details	m.		None of the date Soda Pop	ULE_ORDER_A s in the Medicati	UTH_DATE_MIS	SING_CONCEF	RN_1 natch the	Date of next shi	pment	
Concern Concern: Descriptio Person: Status:	Details	m		None of the date Soda Pop Active	ULE_ORDER_A s in the Medicati	WTH_DATE_MISt	SING_CONCER	RN_1 natch the	Date of next shi	pment	
Concern Concern: Descriptio Person: Status: Severity:	Details n:	m		None of the date Soda Pop Active Very High	ULE_ORDER_A s in the Medicati	NUTH_DATE_MIS	SING_CONCER	RN_1 hatch the	Date of next shi	pment	
Concern Concern: Descriptio Person: Status: Severity: Create Da	Details n: te:	n		None of the date Soda Pop Active Very High 12/21/2009	ULE_ORDER_A s in the Medicati	UTH_DATE_MIS	SING_CONCEP	RN_1 natch the	Date of next shi	pment	
Concern Concern: Descriptio Person: Status: Severity:	Details n: te:	m		None of the date Soda Pop Active Very High	ULE_ORDER_A s in the Medicati	NUTH_DATE_MIST	SING_CONCE! ation section m	RN_1 natch the	Date of next shi	pment	

The headings for the rows in the Details section are described below:

Concern	Unique name of the concern in the database.
Description	Describes the issue in plain language.
Person	The person about whom the event is based.
Status	Refers to the current state of the concern – either active or resolved.
Severity	Refers to how severe the concern is – Very High, High, Medium, Low, or Very Low.
Create Date	The date the concern was created by a user or the system.
Last Update	The date the concern was last updated.
Updated By	The username of the user who last updated the concern.
Notes	Any notes to help describe or explain the concern.

#### **Event Information – Persons Tab**

The person tab contains information about the person involved in a specific disease event and is acentral location for current information. Remember that the system is person centric and all information collected is always linked to a person. All users of the system will have access to the people but only the disease events they have permissions to view.

The **Persons tab** is the only way to access or change the current person information stored in the system. Note that information about the person involved in the case may change over the course of the event and those changes can be made from the Demograpgic Question Package. The **Persons tab** is used to update address or name information as well as to view other historical demographic information. Under this tab, there are additional tabs to provide further information on the person.

Event Data	Lab Results	Concerns	Persons	Tasks	Event	Event	
					Properties	History	
Persons							
		OFNEED	DID		1000	500	0747110
NAME		GENDER		TH DATE	ADDF		STATUS
Toddy Bea	r Jr	Male	05/1	4/1980	555 F	uzzy lane, Wilder, MN	Active
Basi Informat			Demogra Histor		•		
-		•		•			
Basic Info	rmation						
Name:				Toddy Bear Jr			
Maiden/Ot	her Name:						
Alias:							
Birth Date				05/14/1980			
Death Dat	e:						
Age:				30			
Gender:				Male			
	D:			PEDEDGJLZRB	CZM		
External II	lress:			555 Fuzzy lane			
External II Street Add				Wilder			
				MN			
Street Add City: State:							
Street Add City: State: Zip Code:							
Street Add City: State: Zip Code:							
Street Add City: State: Zip Code: County: Country:				USA			
Street Add City: State: Zip Code: County: Country: Home Pho				USA			
Street Add City: State: Zip Code: County: Country: Home Pho Mobile Ph	one:						
Street Add City: State: Zip Code: County: Country: Home Pho	one:			USA (610) 555-5555			
Street Add City: State: Zip Code: County: Country: Home Pho Mobile Ph	one:			(610) 555-5555			
Street Ado City: State: Zip Code: County: Country: Home Pho Mobile Phi Work Pho	ne:						

Basic Information	This tab offers a look at the current demographic information stored on the person.
Address Information	This tab will show the current and historical address information on the person.
Linked People	This tab will show all the linked people and allow additional links to be entered.
Demographic History	This tab will show the current and historical person demographic information.
Notes	The tab will show any person notes entered.

The **Edit Person** button can be used to modify the person information displayed. For more information on how to use the Persons tab, see Chapter 5 — entering event and person information.

### Event Information – Tasks Tab

The MEDSS system has the capability to create tasks associated with different disease events. Examples of tasks are reminders to call a person back or reminders to go back in and update some information at a later time. Tasks can also be used to assign the whole event over to another user or group. The **Tasks tab** provides information about the tasks associated with the open event.

vent Data	Lab Results	Concerns	Persons	Tasks	Event Properties	Event History	
Tasks							
TYPE	STATUS		DUE DATE		RIPTION	ASSIGNED TO	ASSIGNED TO GROUP
Assignment	Pending	Very Low	05/26/2010	Event a	ssignment	GreyA1 [Ashley Grey]	
Add Task	Update Tas	λ.					
Details	Update Tas	ž.	A	ssignment			
	Update Tas	ž.		ssignment			
Details Type: Status:	Update Tas	λ.	P	ending			
Details Type: Status: Priority:		λ	Pe	ending ery Low	nt		
Details Type: Status: Priority: Description	:	× _	Pr Ve Et	ending ery Low vent assignmer	nt		
Details Type: Status: Priority: Description Assigned Ti	:	× _	Pr Ve Et	ending ery Low	n		
Details Type: Status: Priority: Description	: o: o Group:	×	Pi Ve As	ending ery Low vent assignmer shley Grey	nt		
Details Type: Status: Priority: Description Assigned Ti Assigned Ti Create Date	: o: o Group: 8:	x	Pi Ve As	ending ery Low vent assignmer shley Grey 5/19/2010	nt		
Details Type: Status: Priority: Description Assigned T Create Date Create Date	: o: o Group: e:	x	Pi Ve As	ending ery Low vent assignmer shley Grey 5/19/2010 shley Grey	গ		
Details Type: Status: Priority: Description Assigned T Assigned T Create Date Created Date Created By Last Update	: o: o Group: e: :	Ř.	Pi Vé Ad 05	ending ery Low vent assignmer shley Grey 5/19/2010 shley Grey 5/19/2010	ท		
Details Type: Status: Priority: Description Assigned T Create Date Created By Last Update Updated By	: o: o Group: e: :	K	Pi V4 A4 05 A3 05 A5 A5	ending ery Low vent assignmer shley Grey 5/19/2010 shley Grey 5/19/2010 shley Grey	'n		
Details Type: Status: Priority: Description Assigned T Create Date Create Date Created By Last Update	: o: o Group: e: :	K	Pi V4 A4 05 A3 05 A5 A5	ending ery Low vent assignmer shley Grey 5/19/2010 shley Grey 5/19/2010	<b>N</b>		

All tasks associated with the open event will display in the table, and when highlighted more information is displayed in the Details section underneath. The headings of the rows are described in detail beneath the image. (More information on tasks is described in Chapter 8 — workflow queues and tasks).

Туре	The type of task.
Status	The status of the task — pending, in progress, or completed.
Priority	The priority of the task as set by the user who created the task.
Description	The short description of the task as written by the creator of the task or automatically given by the system.
Assigned to	Displays the name of the user to which the task is assigned.
Assigned to Group	Displays the name of the group to which the task is assigned.
Create Date	The date the task was created.
Create Date Created By	The date the task was created. Displays which user created the task.
Created By	Displays which user created the task.
Created By Last Update	Displays which user created the task. The date the task was last updated.
Created By Last Update Updated By	Displays which user created the task. The date the task was last updated. The user who last updated the task. The date specified by the user who created the task as the

#### Notes

The notes associated with the task.

#### Event Information – Event Properties Tab

The Event Properties tab will display an overview of the basic information on the event such as event ID, disease, and status. From this tab, users can edit event properties such as status or disease. Not all users will have access to the Event Properties tab.

Event Data	Lab Results	Concerns	Persons	Tasks	Event Properties	Event History	
Event Prop	erties						
Event ID:			100001718				
Disease:			Blood Lead	Test			
Status:			Open				
Effective Fi	om:		11/08/2010				
Model:				veillanceModel_	Lead		
Rule Outpu	ts:		King Crab				10/10/00/10
			EpisodeDa	e			10/12/2010
			EventAgeD EventAgeM	ays onthe			10234.0 341.0
			EventAgeY	Pars			28.0

Information on the different row headings are described below:

Event ID	The unique identification ID for the event.
Disease	The disease of the event.
Status	The investigation status of the event.
Effective From	The date MDH considered this event a case. This date is not used as much as the episode date.
Model	This is the question model used for this disease event.

#### Event Information - Event History Tab

Sometimes it can be important to track changes to the data during the lifecycle of the event. This can be done using the **Event History** tab. In this section, users can view information about who has entered data in what question package as well as updates to other information such as event assignments, person information, concerns, and lab results. The event history tab only appears for certain roles; many people may not see this tab.

Event Data	Lab Results	Concerns	Persons	Tasks	Event Properties	Event History		
Event His	tory							
TIME		EVENT		ME	SSAGE			USER
05/18/2010	03:43 PM	Case Create	d	Ca	se created			GreyA1
05/18/2010	) 03:44 PM	Question Page	ckage Updated	Up	dated question pack	istrative [Toddy Bear Jr]	GreyA1	
05/19/2010	) 11:55 AM	Case Update	d	Ca	se data updated as	GreyA1		
05/19/2010	) 12:25 PM	Concern Upd	lated	Ad	ded concern: girlfrie	GreyA1		
05/19/2010	) 12:25 PM	Concern Upd	lated	Up	dated concern: girlfr	GreyA1		
05/19/2010	) 12:30 PM	Participant U	pdated	Up	dated participant inf	GreyA1		
05/19/2010	) 12:30 PM	Participant U	pdated	Up	dated Contact Point	for: Toddy Bear	r Jr of type: Home	GreyA1

#### The columns are described below:

Time	The date and time of the occurrence of the event.
Event	The type of event that occurred.
Message	A more detailed description of the event.
User	The username of MEDSS user.



# NOTE

All activity on an event, including edits to question packages and tasks created, can be tracked under the Event History Tab. All user activity within MEDSS can be tracked using audit reports which include activity on any events in the system for an individual user.

# **Person Summary Screen**

The **Person Summary** displays to the user other events which have been associated with the same person, current demographic information and linked people. This alleviates the potential need to link events of one person to other events for the same person. For example, it might be helpful to know if a person with Chlamydia has been diagnosed with any other sexually transmitted infections. However, the user will only be able to see disease events that user has access to.

To access the Person Summary screen:

4. Click the person's **name** in the **Event Summary** section of the MEDSS dashboard.

ent Summary			
Basic Information		Notes	(Add/E
Event ID:	100001384		
Disease:	IB-Active		
Primary Person:	Toddy Bear Jr Birth Date: 05/14/1980 (Male ) Phone: (610) 555- 5555		
Dates:	Create Date: 05/18/2010 Event Date: 05/18/2010		
Type:	Interactive		
Investigation Status:	Open		
Linked Events/Contacts:	0 linked event(s)/contact(s) (\/iew)		

5. This provides a screen which displays the **Person Summary** information.

Person Summary					/		$\mathbf{i}$		
Name:	Bear, Toddy Jr	r			/				
Maiden/Other Name	E.			(	Person	identifyin	n / n		
Alias:				(			9		
Gender:	Male				infor	mation			/
Birth Date:	05/14/1980			`	$\langle$			,	/
Death Date:									Addr
Age:	30 yrs 0 mos 5	5 dys				/	/	(	
Person ID:	PEDEDGJLZR	RBCZM						1	inform
Create Date:	05/18/2010							\ \	< l>
Email:								/	1
Contact Method:	Work phone								$\sim$
Notes:								/	
	n 0 - 01/01/2030 0 - 05/19/2010		Address 555 Fuzzy lan MN	e, Wilder, MN		County	Country USA USA	Phone (W) (6	10) 555-5555
Type Dates 05/19/201	0 - 01/01/2030		555 Fuzzy lan	e, Wilder, MN		County	USA		10) 555-5555
Type Dates 05/19/201	0 - 01/01/2030		555 Fuzzy lan	e, Wilder, MN		County	USA		10) 555-5555
Type         Dates           Home         05/19/201           01/01/190           Events           Event ID	0 - 01/01/2030 0 - 05/19/2010 Person		555 Fuzzy lan MN Status	Create D		Disease	USA USA	(W) (6 Effect	ive From
Type         Dates           Home         05/19/201           01/01/190	0 - 01/01/2030 0 - 05/19/2010		555 Fuzzy lan MN				USA USA	(W) (6	ive From
Type         Dates           Home         05/19/201           01/01/190           Events           Event ID	0 - 01/01/2030 0 - 05/19/2010 Person		555 Fuzzy lan MN Status	Create D		Disease	USA USA	(W) (6 Effect	ive From
Type         Dates           Home         05/19/201           01/01/190           Events           Event ID	0 - 01/01/2030 0 - 05/19/2010 Person		555 Fuzzy lan MN Status	Create D		Disease	USA USA	(W) (6 Effect	ive From
Type         Dates           Home         05/19/201           01/01/190           Events           Event ID	0 - 01/01/2030 0 - 05/19/2010 Person		555 Fuzzy lan MN Status	Create D		Disease	USA USA	(W) (6 Effect	
Type         Dates           Home         05/19/201           01/01/190           Events           Event ID	0 - 01/01/2030 0 - 05/19/2010 Person Bear, Toddy	y Jr	555 Fuzzy lan MN Status Open	Create D 05/18/201	10	Disease	USA USA	(W) (6 Effect 05/18/	ive From
Type Dates 05/19/201 01/01/190 Events Event ID 100001384 Linked People Relationship	0 - 01/01/2030 0 - 05/19/2010 Person Bear, Toddy	y Jr lame	555 Fuzzy lan MN Status Open Birtt	Create D 05/18/20	10 Address	Disease TB - Act	USA USA ive	(W) (6 Effect 05/18,	ive From 2010
Type         Dates           Type         Dates           05/19/201         05/19/201           01/01/190         Events           Event ID         100001384           Linked People         Linked People	0 - 01/01/2030 0 - 05/19/2010 Person Bear, Toddy	y Jr	555 Fuzzy lan MN Status Open Birtt	Create D 05/18/201	10	Disease TB - Act	USA USA ive	(W) (6 Effect 05/18/	ive From 2010
Type Dates 05/19/201 01/01/190 Events Event ID 100001384 Linked People Relationship	0 - 01/01/2030 0 - 05/19/2010 Person Bear, Toddy	y Jr lame	555 Fuzzy lan MN Status Open Birtt	Create D 05/18/20	10 Address	Disease TB - Act	USA USA ive	(W) (6 Effect 05/18,	ive From 2010
Type Dates 05/19/201 01/01/190 Events Event ID 100001384 Linked People Relationship	0 - 01/01/2030 0 - 05/19/2010 Person Bear, Toddy	y Jr lame	555 Fuzzy lan MN Status Open Birtt	Create D 05/18/20	10 Address	Disease TB - Act	USA USA ive	(W) (6 Effect 05/18,	ive From 2010

The top section of this screen displays the **person's identifying** information, such as name, birth date and gender. The next section shows, in chronological order, the address history. The third section lists the **other events** for the person and the final section shows the **Linked People** or household information.



# NOTE

Only other events the user has access to will show up in the list of events. This usually means other events of diseases the user has access to within the jurisdiction.

- 6. Click the links under **Event ID** in the **Events** table to open the other events for the person (to get back to the original event, repeat the procedure, opening the person summary and click on the link to the original event).
- 7. To close and return to the Dashboard click on the **Dashboard** button at the bottom of the summary screen.



#### IMPORTANT

Don't use the back button in the browser to get back to the dashboard, instead use the Dashboard button at the bottom of the person summary screen.

# **CHAPTER 3: SEARCHING FOR EXISTING EVENTS**

Before entering in a new event, it is important to ALWAYS search for that event first because many groups at MDH and around the state will be using MEDSS. This event may have already been entered electronically or by another MEDSS user. This will help reduce duplications in the system, which can clog the system.

Searching is also useful when finding events already entered in the system for further modification.

# Performing an Event Search

Remember that the disease events in MEDSS are an event for a person at a specified point in time. The MEDSS system keeps information organized around a person and one person can have multiple events. This section describes how to search for **disease events**. The only way to search for persons is when a new event is created as described in Chapter 4 — Creating Events.

To search for an existing event, follow the steps below:

1. Click the **Search Event** icon in the MEDSS toolbar and the following screen will appear.

Search Criteria	Search Re	sults						
Type: Normal 💌	Search R	esults						
Event ID:	Event ID	Person	Birth Date	Status	Disease	Create Date	Effective From	Person ID
Last Name:								
First Name:								
Maiden/Other Name:								
Birth Date: (Inexact)	No search o	done						
Gender:								
State:								
State:  County:								
County:	×							
County:  Disease:								
County:  Disease: Event Date:		sted event	c	ancel				
County:  Disease: Event Date: Search Options		oted event	C	ancel				
County:  Disease: Event Date:  Search Options Sort By: Create Date  Sort Order: Descending  Search		cted event	C	ancel				
County:  Disease: Event Date:  Search Options Sort By: Create Date  Sort Order: Descending  County		ded event	c	ancel				

MEDSS provides multiple search criteria to find events. The user can use one or many of the search criteria to find a specific events. However, the more search criteria provided; the fewer results will display. Therefore, it is sometimes often better to put in less information (e.g. just a first name or a birth date) in case the previous data entry does not exactly match the information you currently have. For example, if you are looking for Maria Ramirez Gonzalez, and you enter Gonzalez as the last name, the original user might have input Ramirez Gonzalez as the last name, and your search would not bring up the desired case. Thus, the fewer criteria you put in, the more search results will result. In most cases, it is therefore advisable to enter a small amount of criteria first and then add more criteria to narrow the search.

Tip	ТІР
	MEDSS support wildcards * when doing searches. The wildcard indicates that the system should look for anything instead of the wildcard character.
	<ul> <li>*mit in the last name field will look for anyone with a last name ending with mit (finding Schmit but not Smith nor Schmitt)</li> <li>sch* in the last name field will look for anyone with a last name starting with sch (finding Schmit, Schmitt but not Smith).</li> <li>*mit* will look for anyone with the string mit in the name, finding all Schmit, Schmitt and Smith names.</li> </ul>
	MEDSS can also search for names with similar sounds (finding both Schmit and Schmitt) and including the name history when looking for matches. There are checkboxes on the search screen to indicate that similar sounding names and history should be included in the search.

Below are the definitions of the search event criteria:

- TypeAllows the user to specify if the event being searched is a normal event<br/>or if it is an outbreak event.
- **Event ID** Allows the user to search for a specific event if the Event ID is known.
- **First Name** Any First Name for whom the user wishes to search.
- Last name Any Last Name for whom the user wishes to search.

Maiden/OtherAny other name including a maiden name for whom the user wishes to<br/>search. Only maiden/other names entered specifically in the maiden<br/>name field will be found through this search. Therefore, it may be<br/>helpful to also search for a patient's previous last name(s) in the last<br/>name field.

**Birth Date** Any birth date using the mm/dd/yyyy search format. It's also possible to search for an inexact birth date which means searching a range of possible birth dates by clicking on the link inexact dates

Maiden/Other Name	
Birth Date Range: ( <u>Exact</u> )	
Gender:	

- **Gender** Allows the user to search by gender.
- State Allows the user to specify the state of residence associated with the person.
- **County** Allows the user to specify the county of residence associated with the person.

- **Disease** Allows the users to search for events for a specific disease. All diseases are listed in this dropdown, however if the user only has permissions to see specific diseases, and selects a disease for which the user does not have permissions, no results will be presented due to the role.
- **Event Date** Allows the user to search for an event by when the event was created in the system by using a date range format.
- **Sort By** Provides two dropdown menus for the user to choose how the search results are presented. The first dropdown menu specifies which field to sort results by and the other dropdown specifies the order in which the results will be presented ascending (alphabetical or numeric) or descending (reverse alphabetical or numeric).
- SearchWhen checked, historical demographic/address information is<br/>compared against search criteria. This should be used if your person<br/>may have switched last names since being added to the system.

Search Checking this will search for names that sound similar to the name the user is searching for. This will not work with wildcards and only if first and/or last name is entered.

- 2. Enter parameter information into one or more of the fields. The minimum criteria are at least two letters of the last or first name or choosing a disease.
- 3. Set the **Sort** by criteria in the way you'd like the search results to appear. Search History and Search Soundex may be helpful tools to find the event you are searching for; however, they may yield more results.
- 4. Click **Search**. (Clicking the **Clear** button will delete any search parameters that have been entered.)
- 5. Search results will display in the table to the right of the screen, as shown.

Search Crite	eria	Search F	Results						
Type:	Normal 👻	Search Re	sults						
Event ID:				Birth Date	Status	Disease	Create Date	Effective From	Person ID
ast Name:	rose	100000310	Yellow Rose	04/16/1955	Open	Lyme Disease	01/21/2010	01/21/2010	PEDEBVCDYBBU
First Name: Maiden/Other Mame:		100000277	Ruby Rose	01/15/1968	Open	Chikungunya	01/12/2010	01/12/2010	PEDEBUIPSXBFM
irth Date:				01/15/1968	Open	Avian Flu	01/12/2010	01/12/2010	PEDEBUIPSXBFM
( <u>Inexact</u> ) Gender:	×	100000242	Yellow Rose	04/16/1955	Open	Core	12/14/2009	12/14/2009	PEDEBVCDYBBU
State: County:			Pink Rose	02/13/2000	Open	Core	12/01/2009	12/01/2009	PEDEBUIZFIBGRF
)isease:		100000197	Pink Rose	02/13/2000	Open	Birth Defects	11/23/2009	11/23/2009	PEDEBUIZFIBGRF
event Date:		100000187	Yellow	0//16/1055	Onen	TR Contact	11/02/2000	11/02/2000	
Search Opti	ons	<u></u>							
Sort By:	Create Date 💌	Use se	lected eve	nt	Ca	ancel			
Sort Order:	Descending 🛩								
Search History:									
Search Soundex:									

Event searching is tied to security. Users will only see the events that have access to. For example, users with access to only vaccine preventable diseases will only find disease events for vaccine preventable diseases in their jurisdiction when searching, no other disease events, even if these exist in the system.

- 6. Upon locating the event in question, select the corresponding line and click **Use Selected Case** or simply double-click on the record.
- 7. This action automatically closes the search window and displays the selected event in the MEDSS dashboard.

#### Search Results Table

When viewing the search results, the table will hold up to 20 events. To move to the next page of results, scroll to the bottom right corner of the results. This link may not always be visible without scrolling. To see the total number of results, users should go to the last page of results for the total count.

100001516	Atrican I urtie	09/24/2009	∪pen	Pertussis	08/04/2010	08/04/2010	PEXEGNEFPALQZ	
100001514	Red Nina Bear	06/07/1995	Open	Pertussis	08/02/2010	08/02/2010	PEXEDUTAGDBGVZ	Γ
100001510	Peter Pertussis		Open	Pertussis	07/30/2010	07/30/2010	PEXEDUDKJXGTI	
100001494	Blue Bear	06/01/2010	Open	Pertussis	07/20/2010	07/20/2010	PEXEDJDVUJCXSS	
100000824	Patientfirstname PatientMiddleName Patientlastname	03/18/1985	Open	Pertussis	02/09/2010		PEXECNVSPVXCN	
100000817	Folly Plateau	08/23/1962	Open	Pertussis	02/09/2010		PEXECDGNCYUGW	r
100000816	Folly Plateau	08/23/1962	Open	Pertussis	02/09/2010		PEXECDGNCYUGW	
100000193	Sun Shine Flower Miss	07/21/2000	Open	Pertussis	07/21/2009	07/21/2009	PEXEBBLNBLGTB	
100000192	Cone Flower		Open	Pertussis	07/21/2009	07/21/2009	PEXEBBLNADGSK	
Displaying	result(s) 120				<<	First < Prev	1/2 Next > Last >>	k
<]								

#### Searching Tips

When trying to find events, the following examples may help users find the right event.

**Example 1:** A user is trying to find the name Maria Ramirez Gonzalez with birthday 10/15/1975 and located in Hennepin County. Instead of entering all information in the search fields, a user could enter just the name. However, not knowing if another user entered "Ramirez Gonzalez" as the full last name or "Ramirez" as the middle name, the best strategy is to enter \*Gonzalez and the system will search and find both Gonzalez and Ramirez Gonzalez.

**Example 2:** A user is trying to find the name Abu Mohammed with birthday 01/01/1970. Knowing how popular this birth date and name is among foreign born persons, it is suggested to enter both name and birth date into the fields. In addition, to help the search, checking Search Soundex will help if the spelling of the name is slightly different.

**Example 3:** A user has the person's name but is unsure it is the most recent name. The user also knows the disease, county and birth date. For this situation, it is suggested to search for name disease and birth date since it is possible the county name was not entered and also checking Search History in case the name has changed.

## **Recent Cases**

A simple alternative to searching for a recently viewed event is to use the **Recent Cases** icon in MEDSS toolbar. This option is a quick method of locating the twenty most recent events on which the user has opened. To open an event using the Recent Cases link, follow the steps below.

- 1. Click the **Recent Cases** icon in the MEDSS toolbar.
- 2. Look at the events listed in the table for the event to be edited.

Recent Cases					
Event ID	Person	Status	Disease	Effective From	Access Time
100000101	Pop, Soda	Open	TB - Active	08/25/2009	08/25/2009 03:32 PM
100000110	Pop, Fountain	Open	TB - Active	08/25/2009	08/25/2009 03:24 PM
10000065	Yellow, Mellow	Open	TB - Active	07/23/2009	08/24/2009 02:00 PM
100000100	Yellow, Mellow	Open	TB - Active	08/24/2009	08/24/2009 01:59 PM
100000074	Outbreak101	Open	TB - Active		08/24/2009 01:51 PM
100000096	Candy, Chocolate	Open	Cholera	08/11/2009	08/11/2009 03:38 PM
100000079	Wedding	Open	Campylobacteriosis		08/11/2009 02:54 PM
10000081	Fish, Bubbly	Open	Campylobacteriosis	07/30/2009	08/11/2009 02:53 PM
100000077	Yellow, Mellow	Open	Cryptosporidiosis	07/30/2009	08/11/2009 02:15 PM
10000082	Church Potluck	Open	Salmonellosis		08/03/2009 04:31 PM
100000019	Fish, Balloon	Open	Campylobacteriosis	07/06/2009	08/03/2009 08:58 AM
10000080	Fish, Augratin	Open	Campylobacteriosis	07/30/2009	08/03/2009 08:57 AM
10000078	Yellow, Mellow	Open	Hepatitis A	07/30/2009	07/30/2009 03:28 PM
100000054	Beer, Root	Open	TB - Active	07/21/2009	07/30/2009 10:13 AM
100000009	Fish, Lovely	Open	Lyme Disease	07/06/2009	07/30/2009 10:10 AM
10000064	Records, Dummy	Open	TB - Active	07/23/2009	07/28/2009 03:47 PM
100000011	Fish, Wet	Open	Cryptosporidiosis	07/06/2009	07/28/2009 03:44 PM
100000021	Fish, Puffer	Open	Cryptosporidiosis	07/06/2009	07/28/2009 03:43 PM
100000073	Run for the Hills	Open	Cryptosporidiosis		07/28/2009 03:43 PM
100000052	Soda, Grape	Open	TB - Active	07/21/2009	07/28/2009 11:42 AM

- **Event ID** The Event ID of the event. Click this number to view that event in MEDSS Dashboard.
- Person Person's full name.
- **Status** The investigation status of the event (open or closed).
- **Disease** The disease associated with the person.
- Access Time The time the event was last accessed by the user.
  - 3. Click the **Event ID** of the event to be updated.

Recent Eve	Recent Events								
Proent Even	ts								
Event ID	Person	Status	Disease	Effective From	Access Time				
100001570	ABC, Monster	Open	ABC	09/07/2010	11/08/2010 10:49 AM				
100001440	Robin, Sandra	Open	Vectorborne	06/25/2010	11/05/2010 11:15 AM				
100001454	Beetle, Box Elder	Open	VPD	07/01/2010	11/05/2010 11:09 AM				
100001659	Balloon, Red	Open	Lyme Disease	10/26/2010	11/04/2010 03:47 PM				

4. This action will close the Recent Cases window and will open the event in MEDSS Dashboard.

# **CHAPTER 4: CREATING PERSON AND EVENT**

MEDSS offers the option to manually add new disease events to the system. However, as explained in the last chapter, uses should search for events before manually created them in order to avoid duplications. This is due to the multiple ways events are added to the system (electronically, uploaded or created by other users). This chapter will explain how to create a new disease event in addition to searching for people and creating new people in the system.

# Create event

To create an event in MEDSS, complete the following steps:

1. Click the **Create Event** icon in the MEDSS Toolbar and the following screen will appear.

Event Information			
From:			
Disease:			
Add Person			
First Name:	Middle Name:	Last Name:	
0.5		A.F.	
Suffix:	Maiden/Other Name:	Alias:	
Mother's Maiden Name:			
mouner 5 Malueri Hallie.			
Birth Date:	Gender:		
	~		
Address Type:	Street Address:		
Home V	Olicer Address.		
City:	State:	Zip Code:	
	MN 😽		
County:	Country:		
*	USA	×	
Home Phone:	Mobile Phone:	Work Phone:	
Email:			
Select Person		Clear	
		0.00	

The Create Event page is divided into two separate sections: **Event Information** and **Add Person**.

# **Create event - Event information**

The Event Information section lets the user choose the effective from date and the disease. The **Effective from** date is when the event actually took place. It will default as the current date, but a user has the option to choose a date in the past.

The **Disease** dropdown allows the user to select a specific disease from the list of diseases available. (The list of diseases in the dropdown will depend on what diseases the user has access to create events for). The appropriate disease is accessed by left clicking the down arrow, scrolling to the correct disease and clicking on it.

Create Event - Person Information						
Event Inf	ormation					
Effective From:	09/30/2010					
Disease:	Malaria					

- 2. Enter a date in the Effective From field
- 3. Select a disease for the event in the **Disease** drop-down.



## Create event – Search for existing person

Before entering new person information, it is important to search to see if the person already exists in the system. Remember a person may be tied to multiple disease events and all users have access to all the people in the system.

To search the database for the person, utilize the **Select Person** button that will become active after choosing a disease. This allows the user to enter information into a search screen to locate a person who may already be in the MEDSS system. This search is not dependent on the disease selection.

4. Before entering any information in the Add person section, click the **Select Person** button at the lower left of the **Add Person** screen.

Add Person		
First Name:	Middle Name:	Last Name:
Suffix:	Maiden/Other Name:	Alias:
Sullix.		AlldS.
Mother's Maiden Name:		
Birth Date:	Gender:	
Address Type:	Street Address:	
Home		
City:	State:	Zip Code:
	MN 🔛	
County:	Country:	
Home Phone:	Mobile Phone:	Work Phone:
Email:		
Select Person		Clear
Save Cancel	Help	

5. The Search Person window will appear.

Person Details:		Search	Search Results						
Person ID:	Search	Search Results							
Last Name:		Name	Birth Date	Street Address	Citv	State	Zip Code	External ID	
First Name:					,				
Maiden/Other Name	2								
Alias:									
Birth Date:									
Gender:									
Street Address:		No searc	h done						
City:									
State:									
Zip Code:									
Search Options									
Sort By:	Name								
Sort Order:	Ascending								
Search History:		Uses	elected person	Cancel					
Search Soundex:	Π								

6. Search for the <u>person</u> by using any of the fields listed on the left. You must enter at least the minimum criteria of at least two letters from the first or last name, or enter search criteria in at least two of the other fields (not names).

Below are the definitions of the search person criteria

Person ID	The unique person identification/record number assigned by MEDSS.
Last Name and First Name	Search by last name or first name or a combination of both. An * can be used as a wildcard finder. By putting the * before the letters, the engine will search for names with that letter combination at the end. By putting the * after the letters, the engine will search for names with that letter combination at the beginning. By putting the * at either end of the letters, the engine will search for names with that letter combination in the middle of the name.
Birthdate	Search by the exact birthdate of the person.
Gender	Search by the person's gender: female, male, unknown or other.
Street Address, City, State, Zip code	Search for a specific person by the street address, city, state or zip code where that person may live
Search History	When checked, historical demographic/address information is compared against search criteria. This can be used if your person may have switched last names since being added to the system or address information.
Search Soundex	Checking this will search for names that sound similar to the name the user is searching for. This will not work with wildcards and only if first and/or last name is entered.

7. Click the **Search** button when desired search criteria have been entered. Clicking on the **Clear** button will empty all entered search criteria.

Tip	TIP
0	When searching for people, try using less search criteria to broaden your search and clicking on Search Soundex and Search History for a more thorough search results.

Person Details:		Search	Results						
Person ID:	Search	Search Results							
Last Name:	Bear	Name	Birth Date	Street Address	City	State	Zip Code	External ID	
First Name:	Red								
Maiden/Other Name	e:								
Alias:									
Birth Date:									
Gender:	Female								
Street Address:		No searc	h done						
City:									
State:	MN 💌								
Zip Code:									
Search Options									
Sort By:	Name 💟								
Sort Order:	Ascending	liee.ee	elected person	Cancel					
Search History:	~	096.9	-n-onex prenSUII	Calicer					
Search history.									

- 8. If the person is located, select the person's name from the list on the right side and click the **Use Selected Person** button. This will populate the fields in the Add Person section.
- 9. Users can review the information populated and when done, click **Save**. Users will be brought to the dashboard for the new event.

If the person is not in the system, follow the steps in the next section for how to create a new person in the system.

TIP	Т
0	V
	р Н
	H
	а
	tł
	1

# TIP

When searching for people, if you are uncertain if the search result given is the same berson you are searching for (i.e. different address, city, etc), try using the Search distory option to see if the name or address you have is in the person's history. If you are still unsure, create the new person and a system administrator will determine if it is he same person or not.

# Create event – Add person

If the person is not found during the person search, users will have to create a new person entry in MEDSS. After searching for the person, click on **Cancel** on the person search window, and this will bring you back to the create event window and you can enter the information manually into the Add Person section.

10. Fill in the name, birth date and gender in the appropriate fields.

Event Information			
Effective 05/19/2010			
Disease: Influenza			
Add Person			
First Name: Olga	Middle Name: Maiden/Other Name:	Last Name:	
Suffix:	Maiden/Other Name.	Alias:	
Mother's Maiden Name:			
Birth Date:	Gender:		
11/23/65	Female 🔽		
Address Type: Work	Street Address: 625 Robert St N		
City: St. Paul	State:	Zip Code:	
County:	Country:		
×	USA	<b>v</b>	
Home Phone:	Mobile Phone:	Work Phone: (651) 201-0000	
Email:			
Select Person		Clear	
Save Cancel	Help		

- 11. For accurate geocoding of the address, users should format the address according to US postal formats. For example, if the address is in Brooklyn Park, MN, do not enter the city as Minneapolis. Plese review the address standards in Appendix B.
- 12. The city field will generate a list of cities based on what the user is typing so no spelling errors occur. By default, the state will be set to MN, so make sure to change the state field, if the city is in another state.
- 13. The phone and zip code fields will only allow the appropriate digits, so if the address is in a different country, make sure to change the defaulted country field so those fields will allow more digits.

While the minimum information needed for the **Add Person** section is the first name, it is better to enter as much information known about the person. Any data that needs to be changed after entry can always be updated later via the Edit Person screen.



#### IMPORTANT

Please be aware that in the system, Burma is not used. Please choose Myanmar for any entries from that country.

14. Once finished, click **Save** and you will be brought to the dashboard for the newly created event (displayed in the following image). Additionally, the question packages, triggered by the specific disease previously selected, are displayed in the Event Data section of MEDSS Dashboard.

### IMPORTANT

It is important to **ALWAYS** do a patient search before entering a new person into the system to avoid duplicates. If the person is in the system (regardless of disease) they will appear in the **Person Search** even if you don't have access to the disease event they are in the system for. You will see them in the system but you will not be able to see what disease they have. **Avoid duplicates in the MEDSS system**.

MEDSS stores a **Master Patient Index** in the database. This means that *anytime an event is entered into the system, whether or not the event was reported and even if the event is closed immediately, the person associated with the event exists as an entry in the database*. Because this person now exists in the database, it is important to remember to reuse the person information rather than creating a new person entry in the system. Keeping only one entry per person helps to keep data and reporting information as up-to-date and accurate as possible.

**For example:** Fountain Pop has been entered in MEDSS as a social relationship of someone else. She does not have a disease and therefore the event is closed. Two years later Fountain Pop presents with Lyme disease. To create the new event in the system for Fountain Pop, remember to utilize the **Select Person** button on the create event screen. If Fountain's personal information has changed since she was originally entered in the database two years earlier, please review the steps explained earlier on how to modify person information.



## IMPORTANT

If the person for certain is found during the person search but has a different address in the system (for instance it's known that the person has moved recently from the stored address), it's better to use the existing person and then change the address once the event is created.

# **Potential Match Screen**

#### Adding Duplicates

One way MEDSS will find duplicates in the system is by running a background check when a new event is being created. If MEDSS thinks a duplicate person or event is in the system, it show the Potential Match Screen before the new event can be created. This will happen if the user did not search for the event or person before creating a new entry. Before continuing, the user will need to tell the system to either use the existing event and/or person or create a new entry. Below outlines two specific scenarios for when the potential match screen will show.
#### Scenario 1

Imagine the following scenario: A state epidemiologist receives a phone call from a local hospital reporting a woman named Patty Cake was diagnosed with Pertussis. That state epidemiologist begins to enter the data into MEDSS by creating a new event for Patty Cake. The user does not search for the event or person first. Meanwhile, the state lab has sent a lab report for Patty Cake which automatically created a new event. At this point, two events exist for the same person with the same instance of the disease.

To prevent duplicate and potentially conflicting data, these duplicate events must be identified and merged. If MEDSS identifies a potential match, the system will notify the user of the match when they are creating the new event. The screen shown below shows both a matched person and event.

The following penew person in the		natch the informa	tion you have entered.	Please review the informa	tion below and either sel	ect an existing pe	rson to use or sim
Entered Inform	mation:						
Name:		Patty Cake					
Gender:		Female					
Birth Date:		01/01/2000					
Address:		123 Washing	ton, Minneapolis, MN			Proceed	
County:							
Country:		USA					
Phone:							
Email:						_	
Matches:					Details	$\bigcirc$	
Matched Reco	ord 1	Patty	Cake [Details]		Details		
Matched Reco Name:	ord 1		Cake [ <u>Details]</u> KNKCAWE		Details		
Matched Reco Name: External ID:	ord 1		KNKCAWE		Details		
Matched Reco Name: External ID: Gender:	ord 1	PKEF	KNKCAWE e		Details		
Matched Reco Name: External ID: Gender: Birth Date:	ord 1	PKEFI Femal 01/01/	KNKCAWE e	polis, MN		Choose Person (cr	eates new event)
Matched Reco Name: External ID: Gender: Birth Date: Address:	ord 1	PKEFI Femal 01/01/ 123 W	KNKCAWE e 2000	polis, MN		Choose Person (cr	
Matched Reco Name: External ID: Gender: Birth Date: Address: County:	ord 1	PKEFI Femal 01/01/ 123 W	KNKCAWE e 2000 ashington Ave, Minneag	polis, MN		Choose Person (cr	Event
Matched Reco	ord 1	PKEFI Femal 01/01/ 123 W Henne	KNKCAWE e 2000 ashington Ave, Minneag	polis, MN		Choose Person (cr	
Matched Reco Name: External ID: Gender: Birth Date: Address: County: County: Phone:	ord 1	PKEFI Femal 01/01/ 123 W Henne	KNKCAWE e 2000 ashington Ave, Minneag	polis, MN		Choose Person (cr	Event
Matched Reco Name: External ID: Gender: Birth Date: Address: County: County: Phone:	ord 1	PKEFI Femal 01/01/ 123 W Henne	KNKCAWE e 2000 ashington Ave, Minneag	polis, MN		Choose Person (cr	Event
Matched Reco Name: External ID: Gender: Birth Date: Address: County: County: Phone: Email:		PKEFI Femal 01/01/ 123 W Henne USA	KNKCAWE e 2000 ashington Ave, Minnea pin County			Choose Person (cr	Event
Matched Reco Name: External ID: Gender: Birth Date: Address: County: Country: Phone:	ord 1 Status Open	PKEFI Femal 01/01/ 123 W Henne	KNKCAWE e 2000 ashington Ave, Minneag	Effective From 03/11/2011	Action Use this event Pr		Event

The Potential Matches screen shows that a potential person match was found. To view more information about the matching person, a user can click on **Details** and a new window will appear with the person summary. The user can then print out the person summary for a side-by-side comparison. To view more information about the matched event, a user can click on **Event Print** and a new window will appear with all the data entered for that event.

After verifying if the people are a match or not, the user has the option to:

- A. **Proceed**, which will create a new person and new event.
- B. **Choose Person**, which will attach the new event to the matched existing person.
- C. **Use this event**, which will cancel the new person and new event creation. This will bring the user to the dashboard for that event.

After selecting an option, the user will be brought to the dashboard for the event.

#### Scenario 2

Imagine the following scenario: A LPH user has received word of a new Pertussis event in their jurisdiction for a man named Purple Monster. The user follows the correct steps of searching for

the event but does not find one. So the user decides to create a new event. After choosing the disease, they search for the man and find him in the system already. After selecting the person, a different Potential Match screen appears:

Please review the	enauly case	s before proceed				
Entered Informa	ation:					
Name:		Patty Cake				
Gender:		Female				
Birth Date:		01/01/2000				
Address:			ton Ave, Minneapolis, I	MN		Proceed
County:		Hennepin Co	unty			
Country:		USA				
Phone:						
Email:						
Matches: Matched Recor	d 1	Patty	ako [Dataila]			
Matched Recor Name: External ID:	d 1		Cake ( <u>Details)</u> KNKCAWE e			
Matched Recor Name: External ID: Gender:	d 1	PKEF	KNKCAWE e			
Matched Recor Name: External ID: Gender: Birth Date:	d 1	PKEFF Female 01/01/2	KNKCAWE e	polis, MN		
Matched Recor Name: External ID: Gender: Birth Date: Address:	d 1	PKEFF Female 01/01/2 123 W Henne	KNKCAWE e 2000	polis, MN		
Matched Recor Name: External ID: Gender: Birth Date: Address: County: Country:	d 1	PKEFF Female 01/01/2 123 W	KNKCAWE e 2000 ashington Ave, Minnea	polis, MN		
Matched Recor Name: External ID: Gender: Birth Date: Address: County: County: Phone:	d 1	PKEFF Female 01/01/2 123 W Henne	KNKCAWE e 2000 ashington Ave, Minnea	polis, MN		
Matched Recor Name: External ID: Gender: Birth Date: Address: County: County: Phone:	d 1	PKEFF Female 01/01/2 123 W Henne	KNKCAWE e 2000 ashington Ave, Minnea	polis, MN		
Matched Recor Name: External ID: Gender: Birth Date: Address: County: Phone: Ermail:	d 1	PKEFF Female 01/01/2 123 W Henne	KNKCAWE e 2000 ashington Ave, Minnea	polis, MN		
	d 1	PKEFF Female 01/01/2 123 W Henne	KNKCAWE e 2000 ashington Ave, Minnea	polis, MN Effective From	Action	

This screen (which appears when using the Select Person button) is telling the user that a matching event has been found and is verifying the creation of a duplicate event for the same person.

The user has two options:

- A. **Proceed**, which will create the new event for the selected person with a new event ID (thus creating a known duplicate event but not person).
- B. **Use this event**, which will cancel the creation of the duplicate event and bring the user to the dashboard of the existing event.

This page does not offer the button to choose this person, but create a new event. The proceed button is doing that on this screen.

After selecting an option, the user will be brought to the dashboard for the event.

**Note:** A user may also be flagged about a potential duplicate from the dashboard after events or person information is modified. More on the deduplication process and merging events is in a separate training guide available to users who will have access to this function.

## **CHAPTER 5: ENTERING PERSON AND EVENT INFORMATION**

As a reminder, MEDSS is a person centric system and a single person may have several disease events ties to that person. Therefore some person information will be entered in the question packages while other information is shared among all disease groups and modified in the person tab. However, event specific data will be entered into the question packages and only be accessed by those users with permission to view that disease. The next chapter explains how to modify both person and event information.

## **Modifying Person Information**

MEDSS stores a Master Patient Index in the database, which means that even after events are closed, the person associated with the event exists as an entry in the database. This is important for two reasons. First when creating new events, users need to search the system first for that person to avoid adding duplicate people to the database (this is explained more in chapter 3 — Searching). Second when updating person information, users must go to a central location shared by all disease groups.

Some person information is entered in the persons tab whereas other information will be stored in the demographic question package. The information that is entered in the persons tab applies to all events for the person. The information in the demographic question package is not necessarily the same across all events.

To modify person information, open one of the events the person has and click on the **Persons** tab.

· *** 🔛 🖉 🐄 🗖	i 🔒 🚮 🟠 🗄 🛸 🕉	( 🖞 🖞 👘 🔄				Unload Event Logg
nt Summary						
asic Information				Notes (Add/Edit	Show My Notes)	
Event ID:	100000362					
Disease:	Influenza					
Primary Person:		Date: 02/18/1954 ( Male				
Dates:		09 Event Date: 10/08/20	009			
Гуре:	Interactive					
nvestigation Status: inked Events/Contacts:	Open 0 linked event(s)/conta	et/e) () (et/e)				
inked Exposure Sites:	0 linked exposure site(					
Attachments:	2 attachment(s) (Add)					
Notifications:		break A [Link to Outbre	ak] [Open]			
	Case Status: Undefine					
	Episode Date: 10/08/2					
nt Information			Event			
Int Information	Concerns Per	sons Tasks	Event Properties	Event History		
ent Data Lab Results	Concerns Per	sons Tasks		Event History		
unt Data Lab Results	Concerns Per-		Properties			
Int Data Lab Results Question Packages QUESTION PACKAGE	Concerns Per	PERSON	Properties	LAST UPDATE	UPDATED BY	STATUS
nt Data Lab Results Question Packages QUESTION PACKAGE a.1 Administrative	Concerns Per	PERSON Mickey M	Properties Mouse	LAST UPDATE 12/07/2009	mhadidi	Incomplete
nt Data Lab Results Question Packages QUESTION PACKAGE a.1 Administrative b.1 Demographics		PERSON Mickey M Mickey M	Properties Mouse Mouse	LAST UPDATE 12/07/2009 10/08/2009	mhadidi mhadidi	Incomplete Complete
Lab Results     Lab Results     Lab Results     Lab Results     Description Packages     Lot Package     Lot Package	ation	PERSON Mickey M Mickey M Mickey M	Properties Mouse Mouse Mouse	LAST UPDATE 12/07/2009 10/08/2009 09/18/2010	mhadidi mhadidi mhadidi	Complete Complete Complete
Int Data Lab Results Cuestion Packages QUESTION PACKAGE 1 Administrative 1 Demographics 2 EIP Enrollment Informat. 1 Clinical and Lab Interpri	ation	PERSON Mickey M Mickey M Mickey M Mickey M	Properties Mouse Mouse Mouse Mouse Mouse	LAST UPDATE 12/07/2009 10/08/2009 09/18/2010 10/08/2009	mhadidi mhadidi mhadidi mhadidi	Incomplete Complete Complete Complete
Lab Results     Lab Results     Lab Results     Lab Results     Description Packages     Lot Package     Lot Package	ation retations	PERSON Mickey M Mickey M Mickey M	Properties Mouse Mouse Mouse Mouse Mouse	LAST UPDATE 12/07/2009 10/08/2009 09/18/2010	mhadidi mhadidi mhadidi	Complete Complete Complete

The following screen will show when the person tab is opened. The Person tab is divided into a summary table on the person, additional tabs (explained below) and a details table that shows the information located in the additional tab.

		-	-		Event		
ent Data	Lab Results	Concerns	Persons	Tasks	Properties	Event History	
0							
Persons		0.5110.50			1000000		
NAME		GENDER	BIRTH D/		ADDRESS		STATUS
Mickey M Mo	use	Male	02/18/195	4	4654 Orlando Di	r, Middle River, MN 55165	Active
Edit Person	•						
Denie le fere							
Basic Inform	nation			Mickey M Mou	10.0		
Name:				Mickey M Mou	ise		
Name: Maiden/Othe				Mickey M Mou	ise		
Name:					ise		
Name: Maiden/Othe Alias:	er Name:			Mickey M Mou 02/18/1954	ise		
Name: Maiden/Othe Alias: Birth Date: Death Date:	er Name:			02/18/1954	ise		
Name: Maiden/Othe Alias: Birth Date:	er Name:				ise		
Name: Maiden/Othe Alias: Birth Date: Death Date: Age:	er Name:			02/18/1954			
Name: Maiden/Othe Alias: Birth Date: Death Date: Age: Gender:	er Name:			02/18/1954 56 Male	JBNH		
Name: Maiden/Othe Alias: Birth Date: Death Date: Age: Gender: External ID: Street Addre City:	er Name:			02/18/1954 56 Male PEXEBLZXLJ 4654 Orlando Middle River	JBNH		
Name: Maiden/Othe Alias: Birth Date: Death Date: Age: Gender: External ID: Street Addree City: State:	er Name:			02/18/1954 56 Male PEXEBLZXLJ 4654 Orlando Middle River MN	JBNH		
Name: Maiden/Othe Alias: Birth Date: Death Date: Age: Gender: External ID: Street Addre City: State: Zip Code:	er Name:			02/18/1954 56 Male PEXEBLZXLJ 4654 Orlando Middle River MN 55165	UBN <del>H</del> Dr		
Name: Maiden/Othe Alias: Birth Date: Death Date: Age: Gender: External ID: Street Addre City: State: Zip Code: County:	er Name:			02/18/1954 56 Male PEXEBLZXLJ 4654 Orlando Middle River MN 55165 Hennepin Cou	UBN <del>H</del> Dr		
Name: Maiden/Othe Alias: Birth Date: Death Date: Age: Gender: External ID: Street Addre City: State: Zip Code: County: County.	er Name:			02/18/1954 56 Male PEXEBLZXLJ 4654 Orlando Middle River MN 55165	UBN <del>H</del> Dr		
Name: Maiden/Othe Alias: Birth Date: Death Date: Age: Gender: External ID: Street Addre City: State: Zip Code: County: Home Phom	er Name:			02/18/1954 56 Male PEXEBLZXLJ 4654 Orlando Middle River MN 55165 Hennepin Cou	UBN <del>H</del> Dr		
Name: Maiden/Othe Alias: Birth Date: Death Date: Age: Gender: External ID: Street Addre City: State: Zip Code: County: Home Phome Mobile Phom	e: e:			02/18/1954 56 Male PEXEBLZXLJ 4654 Orlando Middle River MN 55165 Hennepin Cou	UBN <del>H</del> Dr		
Name: Maiden/Othe Alias: Death Date: Death Date: Age: Gender: External ID: Street Addre City: State: Zip Code: County: County: Home Phone Mobile Phone Work Phone	e: e:			02/18/1954 56 Male PEXEBLZXLJ 4654 Orlando Middle River MN 55165 Hennepin Cou	UBN <del>H</del> Dr		
Name: Maiden/Othe Alias: Birth Date: Death Date: Death Date: Age: Gender: External ID: Street Addre City: State: Zip Code: County. Home Phom Mobile Phon Work Phone Email:	er Name: ISS: e: e:			02/18/1954 56 Male PEXEBLZXLJ 4654 Orlando Middle River MN 55165 Hennepin Cou	UBN <del>H</del> Dr		
Name: Maiden/Othe Alias: Death Date: Death Date: Age: Gender: External ID: Street Addre City: State: Zip Code: County: County: Home Phone Mobile Phone Work Phone	er Name: ISS: e: e:			02/18/1954 56 Male PEXEBLZXLJ 4654 Orlando Middle River MN 55165 Hennepin Cou	UBN <del>H</del> Dr		

#### Modifying person information – names, birth and death date

From the **Person tab** click the **Edit Person** button to make changes to nearly all basic information about the person. This includes changes to date of birth, address changes, address additions, name changes, etc. This screen is the only place to update current address information or enter a death date since this information will be shared with all disease events. The Edit Person screen is shown on the next page. Please observe that the form on the top of the page includes demographic information, the middle of the screen lists the addresses, and the lower form provides further information about the addresses and the ability to edit them.

dit Person			
First Name:		Pink	
Middle Name:		P	
Last Name:		Panther	
Suffix:			
Maiden/Other Name:			
Alias:			
Birth Date:		03/12/2007	0
Death Date:			0
Gender:		Female 💟	
Mother's Maiden Nan	ne:		
Deduplication Status	:	Done 🔛	
ddresses /pe Address			Phone
ome 5555 Hennep	in Ave, Minneapolis, M	N 55414	(H) (651) 555-5555
Add Address Remove	Address		
Add Address Remove	Address		
	Address		
dit Address Address Type:	Home		
dit Address	Home		
dit Address Address Type: Start Date:	Home		
idit Address Address Type: Start Date: End Date:	Home 1005/2010		
idit Address Address Type: Start Date: End Date:	Home 1005/2010		
idit Address Address Type: Start Date: End Date: Street Address:	Home 1005/2010 1 01.01/2030 1 5555 Hennepin Ave		
idit Address Address Type: Start Date: End Date: Street Address: City:	Home 10/05/2010 10 01/01/2030 10 5555 Hennepin Ave Minnespolis		
idit Address Address Type: Start Date: End Date: Street Address: City: State:	Home 10/05/2010 11 01/01/2030 11 5555 Hennepin Ave Minneapolis MN 2		
dit Address Address Type: Start Date: End Date: Street Address: City: State: Zip Code: County:	Home 10/05/2010 *** 01/01/2030 *** 5555 Hennepin Ave Minneapolis MN ** 55414 Hennepin Courty		
dit Address Address Type: Start Date: End Date: Street Address: City: State: Zip Code: County: County:	Home 10/05/2010  10/05/2010 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/20 10/05/2 10/05/		
dit Address Address Type: Start Date: End Date: Street Address: City: State: Zip Code: County: County: Home Phone:	Home 10/05/2010 *** 01/01/2030 *** 5555 Hennepin Ave Minneapolis MN ** 55414 Hennepin Courty		
idit Address Address Type: Start Date: End Date: Street Address: City: State: Zip Code: County: County: Home Phone: Mobile Phone:	Home 10/05/2010  10/05/2010 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/20 10/05/2 10/05/		
dit Address Address Type: Start Date: End Date: Street Address: City: State: Zip Code: County: County: Home Phone:	Home 10/05/2010  10/05/2010 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/201 10/05/20 10/05/2 10/05/		

To change any of the person's identifying information such as name, suffix, aliases, birth and death date enter the correct information in the corresponding fields and click the **Save** button under the edit person section.



#### IMPORTANT

Changing any of the information in the Person Tab will change this information for all events the person has (created in the past or in the future). The system will keep a name and an address history to ensure that data is not lost.

#### Modifying Person Information – Address information

The **Address Information** tab contains the listing of the person's current and past addresses. Addresses can be home, work, vacation, etc. and can be marked appropriately. Addresses will be listed in chronological order in the address history section. The oldest addresses will be at the bottom and the newest, most up-to-date information will be on the top.

Address Information       TYPE     ADRESS       Home     4654 Orlando Dr, Middle River, INI 55165       Work     555 Disney Way, Orono, MN       Add Address     555 Disney Way, Orono, MN       Add Address     Edt Address       Add Address     Edt Address       Address History     11/09/2010       Start Date:     01/01/2030       Street Address:     4654 Orlando Dr       City     Middle River       Starte     MN       Zip Code     55165       County:     Hennepin County       Home Phone:     USA       Moke Phone:     Email       Contact Method:     01/01/1900       End Date:     01/01/1900       Start Eddress:     4654 Orlando Dr       County:     Hennepin County       County:     Hennepin County       County:     Kenosha       Start     MN       Zip Code:     55165       County:     Kenosha       Start:     MN       Zip Code:     55165       County:     Kenosha       Min     Zip Code:       Start:     MN       Zip Code:     55165       County:     Hennepin County       County:     Kenosha       Kite<			Notes	Demographic History	Linked People	Address Information	Basic Information
PYPE     ADDRESS     PHONE       Iome     4654 Orlando Dr, Middle River, MN 55165     (W) (999) 999-9999       Nork     555 Disney Way, Orono, MN     (W) (999) 999-9999       Add Address     Extraction     (W) (999) 999-9999       Start Date:     11/09/2010     (W) (999) 999-9999       Start Date:     01/01/2030     (W) (999) 999-9999       Start Date:     01/01/2030     (W) (999) 999-9999       Start Address:     4654 Orlando Dr     (W) (999) 999-9999       Cay     Modia River     (W) (999) 999-9999       Start Date:     01/01/2030     (W) (999) 999-9999       Cay     Staft Clay     (W) (999) 999-9999       Start Date:     01/01/2030     (W) (999) 999-9999       Country:     USA     (W) (999) 999-9999       Mobile Phone:     (W) (990) 991-991     (W) (990) 991-991       Country:     USA     (W) (990) 991-991       Country:     (U) (990) 991-991     (W) (990) 991-991       Country:     (W) (990) 991-991     (W) (990) 991-991       Cay     Kenosha     (W) (990) 991-991       Staft:     MN						matian	
Jome         4654 Orlando Dr, Middle River, MN 55185         (W) (999) 999-9999           Address         555 Disney Way, Orono, MN         (W) (999) 999-9999           Address         Intervention         (W) (999) 999-9999           Address         Intervention         (W) (999) 999-9999           Address         Intervention         (W) (999) 999-9999           Start Date:         01/01/2030         (W) (999) 999-9999           Start Date:         01/01/2030         (W) (999) 999-9999           Start Date:         01/01/2030         (W) (999) 999-9999           Starte Intervention         (W) (999) 999-999         (W) (999) 999-999           Starte Intervention         (W) (999) 999-999         (W) (999) 999-999           Starte Intervention         (W) (999) 999-999         (W) (999) 999-999           Starte Intervention         (W) (2000)         (W) (2000)         (W) (2000)           Starte:         MN         (W) (2000)         (W) (2000)         (W) (2000)           Gountry:         USA         (W) (2000)		BUONE					
Work     555 Drancy Way, Orono, MN     (W) (999) 999-9999       Address     Extractory     (W) (999) 999-9999       Address     Introduction     (W) (999) 999-9999       State     Introduction     (W) (999) 999-9999       State     Introduction     (W) (999) 999-999       Address     Introduction     (W) (999) 999-999       Address     Introduction     (W) (999) 999-999       Address     Introduction     (W) (990) 991-999       Address     Introduction     (W) (990) 99		PHONE					
Add Address Itatory Start Date: 11/09/2010 End Date: 01/01/2000 Street Address: 4654 Orlando Dr City: Mindle River State: MN Zip Code: 65165 County: Hennepin County Country. USA Home Phone: Enail Contact: 11/09/2010 Start Date: 01/01/1900 End Date: 11/09/2010 Start Date: 01/01/1900 Start Date: 01/01/01/01 Start Date: 01/01/01 Star				N 55165			
Address History           Start Date:         01/07/2000           End Date:         01/07/2000           Street Address:         4654 Orlando Dr           City:         Middle River           State:         MN           Zip Code:         65/165           County:         Hennepin County           Odors:         USA           Home Phone:         Email:           Mobile Phone:         Email:           Contox:         Pending           Start:         01/01/1900           Email:         Off-Orlando Dr           City:         Kenosha           Starte:         11/09/2010           Start:         4654 Orlando Dr           City:         Kenosha           Start:         55/165           County:         Hennepin County           Zip Code:         55/165           County:         Hennepin County	999-9999	(W) (99			y, Orono, MN	555 Disney Wa	Work
Address History           Start Date.         11/09/2010           End Date         01/01/2000           Street Address:         4654 Orlando Dr           Cdy         Micdle River           State:         MN           Zip Code         55165           County.         Hennepin County           Outortry.         USA           Home Phone:         USA           Mobile Phone:         Email           Contact Method:         Gis Into.           Pending         State:           1010/1900         End Date:           State:         01/01/1900           End Date:         01/01/1900           State Date:         01/01/1900           State Date:         01/01/1900           State:         MN           Zip Code:         55165           County:         Hennepin County           Zip Code:         55165           County:         Hennepin County           County:         Hennepin County           County:         USA           Mobile Phone:         MN           Work Phone:         USA							
Address History           Start Date.         11/09/2010           End Date         01/01/2000           Street Address:         4654 Orlando Dr           Cdy         Micdle River           State:         MN           Zip Code         55165           County.         Hennepin County           Outortry.         USA           Home Phone:         USA           Mobile Phone:         Email           Contact Method:         Gis Into.           Pending         State:           1010/1900         End Date:           State:         01/01/1900           End Date:         01/01/1900           State Date:         01/01/1900           State Date:         01/01/1900           State:         MN           Zip Code:         55165           County:         Hennepin County           Zip Code:         55165           County:         Hennepin County           County:         Hennepin County           County:         USA           Mobile Phone:         MN           Work Phone:         USA							
Address History           Start Date.         11/09/2010           End Date         01/01/2000           Street Address:         4654 Orlando Dr           Cdy         Micdle River           State:         MN           Zip Code         55165           County.         Hennepin County           Outortry.         USA           Home Phone:         USA           Mobile Phone:         Email           Contact Method:         Gis Into.           Pending         State:           1010/1900         End Date:           State:         01/01/1900           End Date:         01/01/1900           State Date:         01/01/1900           State Date:         01/01/1900           State:         MN           Zip Code:         55165           County:         Hennepin County           Zip Code:         55165           County:         Hennepin County           County:         Hennepin County           County:         USA           Mobile Phone:         MN           Work Phone:         USA							
Address History           Start Date.         11/09/2010           End Date         01/01/2000           Street Address:         4654 Orlando Dr           Cdy         Micdle River           State:         MN           Zip Code         55165           County.         Hennepin County           Outortry.         USA           Home Phone:         USA           Mobile Phone:         Email           Contact Method:         Gis Into.           Pending         State:           1010/1900         End Date:           State:         01/01/1900           End Date:         01/01/1900           State Date:         01/01/1900           State Date:         01/01/1900           State:         MN           Zip Code:         55165           County:         Hennepin County           Zip Code:         55165           County:         Hennepin County           County:         Hennepin County           County:         USA           Mobile Phone:         MN           Work Phone:         USA							
Start Date:         11/09/2010           End Date:         01/01/2030           Street Address:         4654 Orlando Dr           City:         Middle River           State:         INN           Zip Code:         55/165           County:         Hennepin County           County:         USA           Home Phone:         INN           Work Phone:         ISA           Finalit         Contact:           Contact:         Difference:           Start:         0.100/1900           Ernalit         Contact:           Contact:         0.100/1900           Starte:         0.100/1900           Start:         0.100/1900           Start:         4654 Orlando Dr           City:         Kenosha           State:         INN           Zip Code:         55/165           County:         Hennepin County           County:         Hennepin County           County:         USA           Home Phone:         Min           Wolk Phone:         USA					move Address	Edit Address R	Add Address
Start Date:         11/09/2010           End Date:         01/01/2030           Street Address:         4654 Orlando Dr           City:         Middle River           State:         INN           Zip Code:         55/165           County:         Hennepin County           County:         USA           Home Phone:         INN           Work Phone:         ISA           Finalit         Contact:           Contact:         Difference:           Start:         0.100/1900           Ernalit         Contact:           Contact:         0.100/1900           Starte:         0.100/1900           Start:         0.100/1900           Start:         4654 Orlando Dr           City:         Kenosha           State:         INN           Zip Code:         55/165           County:         Hennepin County           County:         Hennepin County           County:         USA           Home Phone:         Min           Wolk Phone:         USA							
End Date:         01/01/2030           Street Address:         4654 Orlando Dr           City:         Middle River           State:         NN           State:         NN           State:         NN           State:         NN           Country:         Hennepin Country           Country:         USA           Home Phone:						ory	
Street Address:         4654 Orlando Dr           City         Middle River           State:         MN           Zip Code:         55165           County:         Hennepin County           Country:         USA           Home Phone:         Image: County           Mobile Phone:         Image: County           Mobile Phone:         Image: County           Mork Phone:         Image: County           Contact Method:         Image: County           Start Date:         0.101/1900           Cold Street         4654 Orlando Dr           Street Address:         4654 Orlando Dr           City:         Kenosha           State:         MN           Zip Code:         55165           County:         Hennepin County           County:         Hennepin County           County:         USA           Mome Phone:         Image: County           Work Phone:         USA							
City     Middle River       State:     MN       State:     MN       Sp Code:     55165       Country:     USA       Home Phone:     Mobile Phone:       Work Phone:     Enall:       Contact Method:     Enall:       GlS Info.     Pending       Start Date:     01/01/1900       End Date     11/09/2010       Street Address:     4654 Orlando Dr       City:     Kenosha       State:     MN       State:     MN       Country:     USA       Home Phone:     USA							
State:         NN           State:         MN           Sig Code:         55165           Country:         USA           Hennepin Country         USA           Mobile Phone:         Development           Work Phone:         Enail           Contact Method:         Enail           Gils Info:         Pending           Start Date:         01/01/1900           Find Date:         11/09/2010           Street Address:         4654 Orlando Dr           City:         Kenosha           State:         MN           Work Phone:         USA						\$C	
Zip Gode:         55165           County:         Hennepin County           County:         USA           Home Phone:         Work Phone:           Work Phone:         Ending           Start Date:         01/01/1900           City:         Kenosha           State:         IMN           State:         IMN           State:         IMN           State:         IMN           Work Phone:         USA			River				
County:         Hemepin County           Gountry:         USA           Jome Phone:         USA           Mobile Phone:							
Country.         USA           Home Phone:         Image Phone:           Work Phone:         Image Phone:           Brail:         Image Phone:           Contact Method:         Image Phone:           Start Date:         01/01/1900           Fond Date:         01/01/1900           Start Date:         01/01/1900           Fond Date:         01/01/1900           Street Address:         4654 Orlando Dr           City.         Kenosha           State:         MM           Zip Code:         55165           Country:         Hennepin Country           Country:         USA           Mobile Phone:         More Phone:							
Home Phone:         Mobile Phone:           Mobile Phone:			epin County				
Mobile Phone:         Mobile Phone:           Email:         Contact Method:           Email:         Contact Method:           Start Date:         01/01/1900           End Date         01/01/1900           End Date:         01/01/1900           Start Date:         01/01/1900           City:         Kenosha           State:         MN           State:         MN           State:         MN           Country:         Hennepin Country           Country:         USA           Mobile Phone:         Mok Phone:				USA			Country:
Work Phone:         Email:           Email:         Contact Method:           GIS Info:         Pending           Start Date:         01/01/1900           End Date:         01/01/1900           End Date:         01/01/1900           Street Address:         4664 Ortando Dr           Cdy.         Kenosha           State:         INN           State:         INN           State:         INN           Country:         Hennepin Country           Country:         USA           Monie Phone:         Molie Phone:							
Email         Contact Method:           Contact Method:         Pending           Start Date:         01/01/1900           End Date:         11/09/2010           Street Address:         4654 Orlando Dr           City:         Kenosha           State:         MN           Zip Code:         55165           Country:         USA           Home Phone:         Moke Phone:							
Contact Method:         Pending           GIS Info.         Pending           Start Date:         01/01/1900           End Date:         11/09/2010           Street Address:         4654 Orlando Dr           Gly.         Kenosha           State:         NN           State:         NN           State:         NN           Country:         Hennepin Country           Gountry:         USA           Mobile Phone:         Motion Ethone;							
Gits Info.         Pending           Start Date:         01/01/1900           End Date:         11/09/2010           End Date:         11/09/2010           Street Address:         4654 Orlando Dr           Cdy.         Kenosha           State:         MN           Zip Code:         55165           County:         Hennepin County           County:         USA           Mobile Phone:         Work Phone;						4	
Start Date:         01/01/1900           End Date:         11/09/2010           Street Address:         4664 Ortando Dr           City:         Kenosha           State:         MN           State:         MN           Zig:         55165           Country:         Hennepin Country           Mome Phone:         MA           Work Phone;         Ender Stress				0		d:	
End Date:         11/08/2010           Street Address:         4664 Orlando Dr           Cdy.         Kenosha           State:         IM           State:         IM           Zip Code:         55165           Country:         Hennepin Country           Country:         USA           Mobile Phone:         Work Phone;							
Street Address:         4654 Orlando Dr           Cdy.         Kenosha           State:         MN           Zip Code:         55165           County.         Hennepin County           Country.         USA           Mobile Phone:         Mobile None.							
City Kenosha State: MN State: S5165 Country: Hennepin Country Country: USA Home Phone: Mobile Phone:							
State:         IMN           20p Code:         55165           County:         Hennepin County           County:         USA           Home Phone:         Molie Phone:           Work Phone:         Environment						S	
Zip Code:         55185           Country:         Hennepin Country           Country:         USA           Home Phone:         Work Phone:			sha				
Country: Hennepin Country Country: USA Home Phone: USA Mobile Phone: Work Phone: USA							
Country: USA Home Phone: Mobile Phone: Work Phone:							
Home Phone: Mobile Phone: Work Phone:			spin County	Henne			County:
Mobile Phone: Work Phone:				USA			
Work Phone:							
Email							Email:
Email: Contact Method:						d.	
GIS Info: Invalid Data			Data	Invalia		u.	

To add an address, follow the steps below:

- 1. Click on the Address Information tab under the Person tab.
- 2. Click on Add Address button.

Basic Information	Address Information	Linked People	Demographic History	Notes
Address Inform	ation			
TYPE	ADDRESS			
Home	4654 Orlando	Dr, Middle River	, MN 55165	
Add Address	dit Address Ren	nove Address		
Address Histor	y			
Start Date:			11/09	9/2010
End Date:			01/01	/2030
Street Address:			4654	Orlando Dr

3. The **Edit Person** screen will appear where the user can enter an address type and enter in the address information. The user is only able to enter one of each type of address for

the person. When entering in address information, make sure to follow US Postal formatting. Plese review the address standards in Appendix B.

Туре	Address		Phone
Home	4654 Orlan	do Dr, Middle River, MN 55165	
Add Add	Roman	ve Address	
Aud Aud	Remov	Address	
Edit Ad			
Addres	s Type:	Work	
Start D	ate:	11/09/2010	
End Da	te:	01/01/2030	
Street A	Address:	555 Disney Way	
City:		Orono	
State:		MN 🔽	
Zip Cod	le:		
County			
Country	<i>r</i> .	USA 💟	
Home F	Phone:		
Mobile I	Phone:		
Work P	hone:	(999) 999-9999	
<b>WORKI</b>			
Email:			

- 4. The start date will default to the current date and the end date will default to January 2030. Make sure to edit these fields to reflect the date range that the person is at this address.
- 5. When finished, click **Save** and the address will be added to the person's demographic information.

#### Edit Address

To change an address, follow the steps below:

- 1. Click on the Address Information tab under the Person tab.
- 2. Highlight the address that needs to be changed and click on Edit Address button.

Basic Information	Address Information	ked People	Demographic History	Notes
Address Infor	nation			
TYPE	ADDRESS			
Home	4654 Orlando Dr, Mid	dle River, M	V 55165	
Work	555 Disney way, Oror	no, MN		
Add Address	Edit Address	ddress		

3. The **Edit Person** screen will appear with the address loaded in the fields ready to be edited by the user.

ype	Address		Phone
		Dr, Middle River, MN 55165	THONG
Work	555 Disney wa		(W) (999) 999-9999
VVUK	JJJ Disney wa	ay, Orono, Min	(**) (555) 555-5555
Add Add	ress Remove	Address	
Edit Ac	ldress		
Addres	s Type:	Home 💟	
Start D	ate:	11/09/2010	
End Da	ate:	01/01/2030	
Street	Address:	4654 Goofy Dr	
City:		Milaca	
City: State:		Milaca MN 💟	
	de:		
State:		MN 💟	
State: Zip Coo	t.	MN 🔽 55165	
State: Zip Coo County	:: <b>y</b> :	MN V 55165 Hennepin County	_
State: Zip Coo County Countr	: y: Phone:	IN S5165 Hennepin County V USA	
State: Zip Coo County Countr Home	: y: Phone: Phone:	IN S5165 Hennepin County V USA	
State: Zip Coo County Countr Home I Mobile	: y: Phone: Phone:	IN S5165 Hennepin County V USA	

- The start date will default to the current date and the end date of the old address will change to the current address. The address's start and end dates help keep the address information in chronological order.
- 5. When finished editing the address, click **Save**. The old address will remain in the person's address history.

An address can be removed by clicking the **Remove Address** button under the Address Information tab. MEDSS will confirm that this address should be removed. However, remember that the address will remain in the address history for the person.



#### IMPORTANT

There are fields in the Demographic question package for 'address at time of reporting'. This address will be copied into the event when the disease event is created and will not change if the current address changes.

## **Modifying Person Information - Additional Tabs**

Located in the **Person's tab** on the MEDSS dashboard are additional tabs that provide further information about the person and allow for changes and additions to be made. Information such as address history, social relationships, and if applicable, name changes can be viewed, added, or changed. All information in the persons tab will appear across all disease events for each person.

	nsic mation	Address Information	Linked People	Demographic History	Notes
--	----------------	------------------------	---------------	------------------------	-------

#### **Basic Information**

The **Basic Information** tab contains the most recently entered information about the person such as name, address, birth date, age, gender. Also, if the address information was able to be mapped, the GIS information will be available. The Basic information tab is available for viewing only.

Basic Information	Address Information	Linked People	Demographic History	Notes	
Basic Informati	on				
Name:			Pink P	Panther	
Maiden/Other N	ame:				
Alias:					
Birth Date:			03/12/	007	
Death Date:					
Age:			3		
Gender:			Femal		
External ID:			PEXE	VAOQINGQG	
Street Address:				ennepin Ave	
City:			Minne	polis	
State:			MN		
Zip Code:			55414		
County:				oin County	
Country:			USA		
Home Phone:			(651)	55-5555	
Mobile Phone:					
Work Phone:					
Email:					
Contact Method	88				
GIS Info:			Latitud	e: 44.98917, Longi	ide: -93.25312, Tract: 103700, Block: 2004 [View Map]

#### Linked People

The **Linked People** tab provides information about the person's contacts or social network information. These links are not necessarily associated with a specific event but are instead links to the person itself and such as household information or social networks. For example, if the patient is a 6 year old with Lyme disease, the disease is not communicable, but the patient is too young to be considered legally able to make decisions regarding her treatment. Therefore, it may be beneficial to create the social link in the **Persons** tab to the child's legal guardian.

	Address ormation	Linked People	Demographic History	Notes			
Linked People							
RELATIONSHIP	NAME		BIRTH DATE	ADDRESS		PHONE	EXTERNAL ID
Co-worker	Mouse, M	vlinnie	06/30/1985	Apple Valley, MI		(H) (452) 546-2652 (C) (454) 535-4325	PEXEAMCSLCMKP
Neighbor	Turtle, G	rey	06/01/1954	my street, Minne	polis, MN		PEXEDOMGNBBUID
Add Link Remove Link							

Linked person information is bi-directional (if a user links a parent and a child, the link will be created for both the parent and the child) and stays with the person's data regardless of which disease or how many diseases they have in MEDSS unless the link is removed.

For more information on how to create and remove relationship links, see Chapter 10 — Linking Persons and Events.

#### Demographic History

The **Demographic History** tab is where person information can be tracked. If any person information is changed (names, dates, gender, etc.), the demographic history tab will list the information in chronological order with the older information at the bottom of the screen. This does not include address history, which is displayed under the **Address Information** tab.

Basic Information	Address Information	Linked People	Demographic History	Notes	
Demographic	Lile da ma		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
	nistory		00.000	010	
Start Date:			09/09/		
End Date:			01/01/	2030	
First Name:			Pink		
Middle Name:					
Last Name:			Panthe		
Birth Date:			03/12/	2007	
Death Date					
Gender:			Femal	8	
Maiden/Other N	lame:				
Alias:					
Mother's Maide	n Name:				
External ID:				VAOQINGQO	)
Start Date:			01/01/		
End Date:			09/09/2	2010	
First Name:			Pink		
Middle Name:			Р		
Last Name:			Panthe		
Birth Date:			12/15/	1965	
Death Date:					
Gender			Male		
Maiden/Other N	lame:				
Alas:					
Mother's Maide	n Name:				
External ID:			PEXE	VAOQINGQO	

#### Person notes

The **Notes** section is used to keep track of notes that are related to the person, not to the event. These would be notes such as the fact that a person is blind, paraplegic, or has Down's Syndrome; these things are unlikely to change over time and are not necessarily specific to a person's event. Just as with the case notes, the date and user name are associated with each person note entered.

Notes 08/26/2009 - Valene Solovjovs f you remember me raise your hand.	
08/26/2009 - Vaterie Solovjovs If you remember me raise your hand.	
Add Note	



#### IMPORTANT

It is important to recognize the difference between **Event Notes** which are entered in the **Event Summary** section of the dashboard and the **Person Notes** which are entered in the Persons tab. The event notes won't show in any other past or future event(s) this person may have, but the person notes persist with the person and can be accessed by anyone with access to the person information.

## Question Packages (QP's)

A **Question Package** (QP) is a series of questions that carry the same theme. For example the Demographic question package contains questions about a patient's residence and race/ethnicity while the Clinical and Lab Interpretations question package will have questions about the providers the patient has seen.

asic Information					Notes (Show h	ly Notes)	
vent ID:	100000242				12/14/2009 - Va		
)isease:	Core				Needs follow up		
Primary Person:	Yellow Rose ( ) Phone:						
)ates:	Create Date: 12/14/2009 Event Date: 12/14/2009			)			
Type: Interactive							
Investigation Status: Closed							
inked Events/Contacts:	0 linked event(s	)/contact(s) (View	0				
inked Exposure Sites:	0 linked exposu						
dtachments:	0 attachment(s)						
lotifications:	Disease Status Event Date: 12/ Event Type: N/	14/2009					
Edit Event Properties							
Information							
Data Lab Results	Concerns	Persons	Tasks	Event Properties	Event Audit Trail		
Juestion Packages							
	<u> </u>		PERSON	L	AST UPDATE	UPDATED BY	STATUS
VESTION PACKAGE			PERSON Yellow Ros		AST UPDATE 2/14/2009	UPDATED BY vsolovjo test	STATUS
AUGUIN PACKAGE				se 1		vsolovjo_test	Complete
A Administrative	etations		Yellow Ros Yellow Ros	se 1 se 1	2/14/2009 2/14/2009	vsolovjo_test vsolovjo_test	Complete Incomplete
Question Packages 2003 TION PACKAGE a.1 Administrative 0.1 Demographic c.1 Clinical and Lab Interpr	etations		Yellow Ros	se 1 se 1	2/14/2009	vsolovjo_test	Complete
A Administrative	etations		Yellow Ros Yellow Ros	se 1 se 1	2/14/2009 2/14/2009	vsolovjo_test vsolovjo_test	Complete Incomplete
A Administrative	retations		Yellow Ros Yellow Ros	se 1 se 1	2/14/2009 2/14/2009	vsolovjo_test vsolovjo_test	Complete Incomplete
A Administrative			Yellow Ros Yellow Ros	se 1 se 1	2/14/2009 2/14/2009	vsolovjo_test vsolovjo_test	Complete Incomplete
View Question Packa	ige		Yellow Ros Yellow Ros	se 1 se 1	2/14/2009 2/14/2009	vsolovjo_test vsolovjo_test	Complete Incomplete
View Question Package - Deta 1 Administrative 1 Demographic 1 Clinical and Lab Interpr View Question Package - Deta	ige		Yellow Ros Yellow Ros Yellow Ros	se 1 se 1	2/14/2009 2/14/2009	vsolovjo_test vsolovjo_test	Complete Incomplete
View Question Package - Deta View Question Package - Deta America - Deta View Question Package - Deta Name:	ige		Yellow Ros Yellow Ros Yellow Ros	se 1 se 1	2/14/2009 2/14/2009	vsolovjo_test vsolovjo_test	Complete Incomplete
View Question PackAGE 1 Administrative 1 Demographic 1 Clinical and Lab Interpr View Question Package - Deta Name: Description:	ige	a	Yellow Ros Yellow Ros Yellow Ros 1 Administrative 1 Administrative	se 1 se 1	2/14/2009 2/14/2009	vsolovjo_test vsolovjo_test	Complete Incomplete
ARESTRON PACKAGE 1 Administrative 1 Demographic 1 Clinical and Lab Interpr View Question Package - Deta Iduation Package - Deta Iduation Person:	ige	a. Ye	Yellow Ros Yellow Ros Yellow Ros Yellow Ros 1 Administrative ellow Rose	se 1 se 1	2/14/2009 2/14/2009	vsolovjo_test vsolovjo_test	Complete Incomplete
Administrative 1 Administrative 1 Demographic 1 Clinical and Lab Interpr View Question Package - Déta Question Package - Déta View Construction Description: Person: Status:	ige	a. Ye	Yellow Ros Yellow Ros Yellow Ros Yellow Ros 1 Administrative ellow Rose ompiete	se 1 se 1	2/14/2009 2/14/2009	vsolovjo_test vsolovjo_test	Complete Incomplete
Administrate     Administrate     Administrate     Administrate     Administrate     Administrate     Administrate     View Question Package - Deta     View Question Package - Deta     View Question Status	ige ilfs	a. Yi Ol 23	Yellow Ros Yellow Ros Yellow Ros 1 Administrative 1 Administrative ellow Rose ompiete 3	se 1 se 1	2/14/2009 2/14/2009	vsolovjo_test vsolovjo_test	Complete Incomplete
Administrative 1 Administrative 1 Demographic 1 Clinical and Lab Interpr View Question Package - Déta Question Package - Déta View Construction Description: Person: Status:	ige ilfs	a. Yi 21 0	Yellow Ros Yellow Ros Yellow Ros 1 Administrative 1 Administrative ellow Rose ompiete 3	se 1 se 1	2/14/2009 2/14/2009	vsolovjo_test vsolovjo_test	Complete Incomplete

Available question packages depend on the disease selected for the event; however, all diseases will have three core question packages as described below. For more details on the specific core fields and definitions, see the Core Fields Data Dictionary at the end of this guide. Different question packages will be available for different disease events. In addition to having different question packages, the information available within a question package will vary depending on the disease selected. **Note:** more information on disease's specific QPs will be in a separate document.

The three core question packages are:

Administrative	Includes information about the event such as dates and statuses. Examples includes date sent to CDC, episode date, case status (confirmed, probable), investigation statuses, assigned jurisdiction, information about the reporting source(s) and contact information of the reporting source.
Demographics	Used to store person demographic information, race and ethnicity, some information (such as the birth date and current address) are displayed from the patient tab into the demographics QP. Address at time of report, as well as county the case should be counted in is stored on the demographics QP.
Clinical and Lab Interpretations	Used to store clinical findings and information about lab results. This includes any information about the diagnosis, symptoms and other findings, including start and end dates.



NOTE

# The question packages are disease specific, which means that the different diseases will have different question packages and the fields will be different within each question package.

## **Modify Question Packages**

It is often necessary to add, change, or delete information entered for an existing event. Much of the data entry and edits will be done within the question packages.

To modify existing event information, follow the steps below:

- Using one of the already-mentioned search techniques (see chapter 3 Searching for Existing Events), locate the event to be updated or enter a completely new event (see chapter 4 — Creating Person and Events).
- 2. On the dashboard, the Question Packages are located in the Event Data tab.
- 3. Click the Event Data tab and open the **Question Package** that needs to be updated. To open a QP, double click the name or click on **View Question Package**.

.1 Administrative Package, Yellow Rose Core					
Status: Complete (Number of Questions:59, Incomplete Required Question	s.0)			Save	Cancel
	Administrative Infor	nation		- MP	2000 L
Episode date	01/15/1968		Episode date based on	Birth date	
Case status	¥				
Was the case locally acquired or imported into the state or the US					
Code for the mechanism by which disease or condition was acquired	×				
Reported via phone to CDC	× 1				
Report Case to CDC					
NETSS ID					
Legacy ID					
State ID					
LPH ID Number					
	Reporting Sour				

- 4. Make the changes necessary within the question package.
- 5. Click **Save** to keep the changes. Save and Cancel buttons are located at the bottom of every page or in the header that moves when you scroll. Once saved, this action closes the question package screen and reopens MEDSS Dashboard.
- 6. The **Cancel** button on the bottom of the form will back out of the question package without saving the information. Don't use the 'back' navigation in the browser to go back.



#### IMPORTANT

It is recommended that users save frequently. MEDSS times out after a half hour of inactivity. If the user receives a phone call, the user should save the question package before taking the call. If the user does not click the **Save** button and MEDSS does time out, the data that has been entered since the last save will be lost.

## **Entering Data**

The question packages within the system are tailored to include information relevant to the disease the event is about. To be able to enter information into the question packages you need to know about the different ways MEDSS stores information.

TIP	TIP
0	When navigating on the form the TAB key will move the cursor to the next field in the form. SHIF+TAB will move the cursor to the previous field.

Text fields	Home phone	(651) 201-5023
	Work phone	
	Email address	

Text fields are used to enter/store shorter text items. You enter information into these fields by typing.

Date	Date of arrival to the US?	
fields	Date of arrival to the 03?	

Date fields are used to store dates. You can either enter a date directly into a date-field or pick a date from the date-selection tool. A date will be automatically formatted to the format DD/MM/YYYY, this means that if you enter 03132004 the system will automatically insert the slashes and save 03/13/2004. If you enter 031304 the system will format this to 03/13/2004.

	- ?		ļ	\ugua	it, 2009	)		×
	$-\alpha_{\rm sp}$	- C		To	day		34	3.
	wk	Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
	- 30							1
	31	2	3	- 4	5	6	7	8
	- 32	9	10	11	12	13	14	15
	- 33	16	17	18	19	20	21	22
	- 34	23	24	25	26	27	28	29
	- 35	- 30	- 31					
				Selec	t date			



to first delete the existing date.

**Drop-** Drop-down fields have a list of values to select from.

down list

Race	

To see the values in the drop-down click on the arrow to the right of the field.

Race	
	American Indian Alaskan Native
	Asian
	Black African American
	Native Hawaiian Pacific Islander
	White
	Other
	Unknown

If you don't want to use the mouse to scroll through the values in a drop-down list you can type the first letter of the choice you want or use the arrow-down keys to scroll through the choices. Enter will select the highlighter choice.

**Checkbox** Checkboxes are a list of choices where you can select more than one value. **list** 

Contact Investigation Topics Discussed with LPH	Patient Interview	Identification of Contacts	Sites of Exposure
(select all that apply):	Confidentiality	Recommended Timeline	CI Report Form
	U Referrals	Notification of HCFs	Travel
	Infectious Period	Level of Infectiousness	High-Priority Contacts (<5yo, medical)
	Evaluation Process	Window-Period Prophylaxis	Drug Resistance
	HIV Screening	Need to Expand CI	MDH Web Site

If you tab through a form the tab will stop on each of the choices in a checkbox list. Spacebar will select (or de-select) the highlighted value.

Radio button	Radio buttons are a list of	Radio buttons are a list of choices where you only can select one value.				
lists	Bacteriology	<ul> <li>Sputum smear positive</li> <li>Sputum smear negative or unknown, culture positive</li> <li>No positive smear or culture from sputum</li> </ul>				
	If you tab through a form the tab will stop on each of the choices in a radio button list. Spacebar will select the highlighted value.					
Search and	Search and select is used	d when a drop-down list are too large to scroll through				
select	To use a search and sele	ect field:				

1. Click on the search icon to the right of the field to bring up the search window.

Clinic name		9	) 🖬

2. Enter the information you want to search for in the search field and click search.

🥴 Search Reference Cos	le - Mozilla Firefox	- 🗆 🗙
https://apps-dev.health	.state.mn.us/medss-dev/searchReferenceCode.do?dummy=dummy&identifier=SHIP_TO_CLINIC_0	0_0 🟠
Search Reference Code		
Clinic name		
Search for:		
Search Clear		
Search Results		
Select Cancel		

The search and select function for reference lists works different that the search for persons and events in the system. When searching reference lists the system will look for a match anywhere in the string you are searching and no wildcards can be used. For example searching for the word 'Allina' in the clinics reference list above will not only provide results starting with Allina but instead provide all clinics with the word Allina somewhere in the name.



3. The search results will be listed under Search results:

🥔 Search Reference Code - Windows Internet Explorer
https://apps-dev.health.state.mn.us/medss-dev/searchReferenceCode.do
Search Reference Code
Hospital name and submitter code
Search for: Fairview
Search Clear
Search Results
FAIRVIEW LAKES MEDICAL CENTER (9651), WYOMING, MN
FAIRVIEW NORTHLAND MEDICAL CENTER (0373), PRINCETON, MN
FAIRVIEW RED WING MEDICAL CENTER (0151), RED WING, MN
FAIRVIEW RIDGES HOSPITAL (0107), BURNSVILLE, MN
FAIRVIEW SOUTHDALE HOSPITAL (0201), EDINA, MN
FAIRVIEW UNIV MEDICAL CENTER - MESABI (0859), HIBBING, MN
UNIV OF MN MEDICAL CENTER - FAIRVIEW CAMPUS (8911), MINNEAPOLIS, MN
Displaying result(s) 17, (maximum 50) Select Cancel

4. Click on the value you wanted to have in your field and click on Select.

Hospital nam	ne and su	bmitter coo	le	FAIRVIEW LAKES MEDICAL CENTER (9651), WYOMING, MN	Ì

To remove a value from a search and select field, click on the **Trashcan** icon, to the right of the search icon.

	1.00	N	1.1		Γ	
Hospital na	me and sul	bmitter cod	е	Fairview lakes medical center (9651), wyoming, mn	Í	i)



#### IMPORTANT

In the current system, when a clinic address is picked and address line 2 has a value, if the clinic is changes to one without address line 2 the previous address line 2 will stay in the address line 2 field and it is not possible to delete the value in that space. (In updated systems of MEDSS, this glitch will be solved).

**Freeform** Freeform fields are used to store more text than the text fields.

Misc info from reporter

PromptedSome question fields will only appear if prompted by the response in the<br/>previous question.

For example:

If "Interpreter Needed" is not answered, or answered as No the next field on the form is "Is the person dead?"

Interpreter needed	
is the person dead?	Yes 💟

When Interpreter needed is answered 'Yes' the next field on the form is 'Interpreter language'.

Interpreter needed	Yes	
Interpreter language		~

C.	NOTE
	There are some fields where the prompted question is a text field; for these fields the next question will be displayed when the cursor is moved out of the field, not when the text is entered.

#### Repeatable fields and sections

Repeatable sections are use if a block of fields can have multiple values (such as visit information collected multiple times for the same event, multiple treatments given, multiple races or multiple countries for trips or residences).

Did the patient live outside the U.S. for more than 2 months?	Yes 🔽	
Three most recent countries (click "Add New" to add second and third countries)	Angola Add New	

You add a new section by clicking on the <u>'add new'</u> link to the right of the parent question for the block.

Did the patient live outside the U.S. for more than 2 months?	Yes 🔽
Three most recent countries (click "Add New" to add second and third countries)	Angola 🔽
Three most recent countries (click "Add New" to add second and third countries)	Bahrain 🔽
Three most recent countries (click "Add New" to add second and third countries)	

 NOTE

 The Add New link will not be visible until the parent question has been answered.

#### Read only fields

Read only fields are marked in gray background color and indicates that the information in these fields are entered somewhere else in the system. This is mainly used for information entered on the person tab but is in some instances also inherited information between different question packages

First Name     Chocolate       Suffix	
Birth date 03/13/2004	
Gender Female 🔽	

5	NOTE
_	Some fields will automatically be filled in with data when the event is created; however, some questions offer the option to manually override the automated value.
	For example, age at time of episode will automatically be filled in based on the difference between the birth date and episode date. If this value or unit is incorrect, in the Demographic QP, there is a field where the age and units can be manually entered.
	Another example is address at time of reporting in the Demographic QP where the address the person has when the event is created is copied into the address at

time of reporting fields.

## Wizards - for easier data entry

When manually entering data for an event, a wizard may be available for easier data entry. Wizards (also called Virtual Question Packages) combine questions from multiple question packages to provide a data entry screen that's more similar to previously used paper forms such as the current case report forms. The different options available may show more questions or allow different edits. The benefit of the wizards is that they reduce the data entry process and the need to open each question package.

After opening or creating an event, if a wizard is available, it will appear next to the View Question Package button. The drop down menu may offer different wizard options for different stages of the data entry process. Choose which option fits your data entry needs by choosing the name in the drop down and clicking on **View Wizard**.

c.1 Clinical and Lab Interpretat	ions	Muddy Waters	05/11/2010
d.1 Risk History		Muddy Waters	05/11/2010
d.3 Reptile Information		Muddy Waters	05/11/2010
View Question Package Wizards	View Wi	zard	
Question Package - Details	Muddy Waters - Samonella Wizard		
Name:	Food related questions		

If a case is closed, a wizard may still be viewed but no further edits can take place.

## **Important Administrative Fields**

Some fields in the Administrative Question Package will be required to answer for the extract which will be sent to CDC; other fields are needed for MDH use. The following fields are important to know when entering in event data:

#### Case status

The **Case Status** in the Administrative QP is used for identifying the event as a 'case/suspect/probable or confirmed case' – this field is used to determine if an event should be included in reporting to CDC and on other 'case count/line list' reports.

Case status	Undefined 🗸
	Suspect case Probable case Confirmed case Not a case Undefined

It's important that the Case status field is set correctly before any information is sent to CDC.

#### Jurisdiction

This is the county that will have access to the event. By assigning the owning county's jurisdiction, it will guarantee that the county will have access to the event in the future, and it signifies which county is responsible for the investigation and data entry. If assigning cases to LPH, make sure to fill in the jurisdiction field in order to open the event up for that county.

MDH case investigator assigned to patient	
Jurisdiction	Hennepin County - Minneapolis Health Department
County (ATR)	Hennepin County
Region	Metro

#### Episode date and Effective from date

When creating an event in MEDSS, the **Effective from date** field will automatically default to the current date. This field is defined as when MDH was first notified of the event. Since each disease group will define this differently, leave the current date in this field and use the field **Episode date** in the Administrative QP instead.

**Episode date** is working together with the field **Episode Date Based On** to identify when the case should be 'counted' on reports. Since different diseases have different criteria for what date to use when counting the case, it is important to select the correct '**Episode date based on**' for the event. The Event date will then automatically be calculated based on the selection in the **Episode date based on**.

Reporting d Event date ( Count date Diagnosis di	(created_date)
Count date	· - ·
Diagnosis da	
	ate
Onset date	
Specimen o	collection date
Death date	
Lab confirm	n date
Lab receive:	d date
Birth date	



When selecting **Episode based on** make sure to select a field that has a value. Selecting a field without a value will result in an empty episode date. **For example**, if Episode date based on is set to 'Specimen collection date' but the specimen collection date is empty, the Episode date will also be empty. To correct this, either select another date in 'episode based on' or enter a date in the specimen collection date field.

#### Report case to CDC

To report the case to the CDC, in the Administrative question package there is a field called 'Report Case to CDC'. By setting this field to Yes, the event will be included in the next transfer to CDC. MMWR week and year fields will be calculated after the case is sent together with date initially sent and last date sent. Events will be re-sent to CDC with the next transfer if the event has been modified after the last date sent.

reported na priorie to 000	
Report Case to CDC	Yes 💟
Initial date sent	
Most recent date sent to CDC	
MMWR Week	
MMWR Year	
NETSSID	

#### Source who reported the case initially

CDC requires that this field is filled in and a facility name, city and zip code are associated with that source.

	Reporting Source		
Source who reported the case initially	Infection Preventionist (ICPs/IPs)		
Facility doing the reporting		<u>ا ا</u>	
Facility name			MDH lab submitter
			code

#### Case report received

This field should be answered in order to fill in reporting person information. The date the report is received must be answered in order to view hidden fields. If date is unknown, fill in the date MDH heard of the event.

#### ELR lab reviewed

This field is the trigger to delete the event from the ELR workflows. Each time a lab report comes into MEDSS electronically, this field will be set to NO so the report will flow into a disease specific ELR workflow or inbox. After reviewing the lab report, users need to respond yes to this field or the event will remain in the workflow.

#### Case investigation status

**Case investigation status** in the Administrative QP is used for identifying where in the 'process' the case/event is. This field is used to place the event on different to-do lists/workflows.

Case investigation status	New
	New
	Received
	Assigned for follow up
	All completed
	Accepted
	Case status final

Different diseases will have different options in the investigation status field and some diseases have additional investigation fields as well.

## Important demographic fields

#### Address at time of reporting

When an event is added in MEDSS, the address associated with the person will be added to both the current address fields and the address at time of reporting fields. The address at time of reporting fields are editable while the current address fields can only be changed in the person tab. If the current address is changed those fields in the QP will be automatically update (even if the case is closed); however, the address at time of reporting will remain the same.

#### Race – Multiracial

If users need to classify a person as multi-racial, they can indicate multiple races for the person by using the 'add new' function. Users can specify as many races as the person indicates. Do NOT select "other" then type "multi-racial".

If neither of the specific races is known, but users want to indicate that the person is multiracial, select other as the race than, click on 'add more' and add another instance of other. Below are some examples of how the data will be sent to CDC:

- White, White will be linked and sent as White to CDC
- White, Black will be sent as multiracial
- Unknown, White will be sent as multiracial
- Unknown, unknown will be sent as multiracial
- White, empty will be sent as White
- White will be sent as white.

#### Age, units and manual age entry

Age at time of episode will be automatically calculated by the birth date of the person and the date of the episode; however, if birth date or date of episode is unknown, the age at time of episode will be blank. If the calculated age is incorrect, users can manually enter the age and the units.

## Select hospital/clinics/labs from the facility list

The MEDSS system has a master list for hospitals, clinics and laboratories called the 'facility list'. This reference list is used in search and select functions in multiple places in the different question packages such as the facility doing the reporting in the administrative QP or the provider and hospitalization information in the Clinical and lab interpretation QP. How to search and select for a facility is explain on page 50.

When searching, it can help to use less wording in the title or use the submitter code. If using the exact name, the name needs to match what is on the facility lists including punctuation (i.e. after abbreviation of Saint). The facility list will be updated according to the information provided by the different disease groups and current website information. If a facility is not found on the list, users can select 'other' and manually enter in the name. To have a facility added to the list, contact a system administrator.

## Event status/investigation status

The **Event Status/Investigation Status** displayed on the event summary screen is a system field and can be set to Open, Closed or Invalid. This field is not used to determine if the event is truly a case or not and this field does NOT set the case status in the administrative QP.

Basic Information	
Event ID:	100000181
Disease:	TB - Active
Primary Person:	Chocolate Cookie Birth Date: 03/13/2004 (Female ) Phone: (651) 201-5023
Dates:	Create Date: 07/17/2009 Event Date: 07/17/2009
Туре.	Interactive
Investigation Status:	Open
Linked Events/Contacts:	2 linked event(s)/contact(s) (View)
Linked Exposure Sites:	0 linked exposure site(s) (View)
Attachments:	0 attachment(s) (Add)
Notifications:	Active outbreak: Test ourbreak [Link to Outbreak] [Open]
	Active outbreak: Airline [Link to Outbreak] [Open]
	Disease Status: N/A
	Event Date: 07/17/2009
	Event Type: N/A

This field should be Open for all cases someone is currently working on; closing the field will lock the case for further editing. For more information, see Chapter 7 - Additional event functions.

## **Temporary Locks**

When a user is working on an event, other users are not able to work on the same event. The system automatically puts temporary locks on all active (open in someone's Dashboard) events. When a different user opens the event, a notice regarding who is already working on it is displayed.



This user will still have access to the event; however the access is read-only. It is important to recognize that if someone is viewing an event in a read-only state, the fields in the question package still seem to be editable; however, the Save button is deactivated thus no data can be saved. Users may also receive this warning if another user does not properly unload the event before logging out of the system. MEDSS may get confused on which user is currently editing the event. The main point is that **two people cannot update events at the same time.** 

# CHAPTER 6: VIEW AND ADD LAB INFORMATION

MEDSS events allow for multiple lab reports to be recorded. These lab reports can be added both manually and electronically. Lab information for each event can be found under the **Lab Results tab** in the event information section from the dashboard.

## Viewing lab information

Lab information for each event can be found under the **Lab results tab** in the event information section from the dashboard. Highlight the specimen or row and details for that result will display in the table as seen in the image below.

vent Data	Lab Results	Concerns	Persons	Tasks	Event Properties	Event Audit Trail		
Labs								
LAB								
Spec Date:	08/24/2009 Spe	c Source: Bronchia	al washing Spec	Number:				
Add La	ab Result	Update Lab Re	esult	Delete Lab Result				
	ab Result	Update Lab Ri	esult	Delete Lab Result				
Details		Update Lab Ri						
Details Lab Result	15:	Update Lab R		Spec Date: 08/24/2	2009 Spec Sour	ce: Bronchial was	ing Spec Number:	
Details	15:	Update Lab R			2009 Spec Sour	ce: Bronchial was	ing Spec Number:	
Details Lab Result Updated B	15:	Update Lab R		Spec Date: 08/24/2 vsolovjo_test Details				
Details Lab Result Updated B	15:	Update Lab R/		Spec Date: 08/24/2 vsolovjo_test	08/24/20	09, Bronchial was	ing. 08/25/2009	
Details Lab Result Updated B	15:	Update Lab Ri		Spec Date: 08/24/2 vsolovjo_test Details Specimeninfo Test	08/24/20	09, Bronchial was		
Details Lab Result Updated B	15:	Update Lab R		Spec Date: 08/24/2 vsolovjo_test Details Specimeninfo	08/24/20 Mycobact	09, Bronchial was	ing. 08/25/2009 lex.rRNA: Acnc: Pt. xxx: QI: Probe, Positive	
Details Lab Result Updated B	15:	Update Lab Ri		Spec Date: 08/24/2 vsolovjo_test Details Specimeninfo Test Test	08/24/20 Mycobact	09. Bronchial wasi erium avium comj	ing. 08/25/2009 lex.rRNA: Acnc: Pt. xxx: QI: Probe, Positive	
Details Lab Result Updated B	15:	Update Lab Ri		Spec Date: 08/24/2 vsolovjo_test Details Specimeninfo Test Test Susceptibility Susceptibility	08/24/200 Mycobact MIC, ison	09. Bronchial wasi erium avium comj	ing. 08/25/2009 lex.rRNA: Acnc: Pt. xxx: QI: Probe, Positive	

If there are lab results for this event they will be listed in the lab result section. The results will be organized around the specimen (specimen date, source and specimen number), so each specimen will be listed with a separate entry in the line list. Results will be order chronological with oldest reports on the bottom.

## View or update an existing lab result

If more than one test was run on the same specimen (specimen date, source and specimen number), users can view the multiple tests and results by opening the lab report. They will be listed on the same screen but only if the date, source and number are the same. Users will also need to open the lab report if they need to view the MDH project number, accession number or comments from the lab.

To view or update an existing lab result, follow these steps:

1. Highlight the test result in the lab results section and click on **Update Lab Result** (Or double-clicking on the Lab Result Line Item).

vent Informatio	n				
Event Data	Lab Results	Concerns	Persons	Tasks	Event Properties
Labs					•
LAB					
	08/24/2009 Spe	Source: Bronchi	ial washing Spec	Number:	
			<u> </u>		
Add La	ab Result	Update Lab R	lesult	Delete Lab Resul	lt
Details					
Lab Result					/2009 Spec Sourc
Updated B	y:			vsolovjo_test	
Results:				Details	

- 2. A new screen will appear with the complete lab report.
- 3. Review the MDH project number and Accession number in the Specimen Info section.

E	Edit Lab Result - Hone	y Bear - Syphilis (Trepone	ema pallidum)	
	Lab Results			
	Person: Honey Bear Entry Method: Automatic			
	Specimen Info			
	Specimen Date*	Specimen Number	Specimen Source*	Specimen Collection Method
	10/07/2010	US2010031916-1	Whole blood sample	
	Specimen Collection Volume	Specimen Collection Volume Units	Specimen Received Date	
			10/08/2010	
	Body Site	Report Status	Report Change Date	
			10/11/2010	
	MDH Project Number	MDH Project Name	Accession	

4. If multiple tests were done on the same specimen, those tests and results will appear in the test section.

Test*	Result	
Syphilis testing (MDH Lab)	•	
Result Units	Ref Range	
Test Local Code	Result Status	
	Final Results	
Result Local Code		Delete
Result Date		
10/11/2010		
Test*	Result	
Result Onits	Rei Range	
Test Local Code	Popult Statue	
Result Local Code	T HIGH ROOMS	Delete
Result Date		
10/11/2010		
	Syphilis testing (MDH Lab)       \$         Result Units	Syphilis testing (MDH Lab) <ul> <li>Ref Range</li> <li>Result Units</li> <li>Ref Range</li> <li>Test Local Code</li> <li>Result Local Code</li> </ul> Test t. Coal Code

5. When finished reviewing or updating the lab result, click **Save** or **Cancel** to go back to the dashboard.

Often events are created by electronic lab results (ELR) being received into the MEDSS system. These lab results have been sent by laboratories and received in to the system. Lab results that have been received into MEDSS via ELR are not editable by users, regardless of the role of the user

# Adding lab results

If users receive paper-based lab results, users will need to manually enter these results. To do this, follow the steps below:

- 1. Open the event on the dashboard and click on the Lab Results tab.
- 2. Click on the Add Lab Result button.

Event Data	Lab Results	Concerns	Persons	Tasks	Event Properties
Labs					
LAB					
Spec Date:	08/24/2009 Spe	c Source: Bronchi	ial washing Spec	Number:	
(					
Add La	ab Result	Update Lab R	lesult	Delete Lab Resul	t
Details					
Lab Result				Spec Date: 08/24	/2009 Spec Sc
				Spec Date: 08/24 vsolovjo_test	/2009 Spec So

3. The screen on the next page will display.

Lab Results				
Person: Soda Pop				
Specimen Info				
Specimen Date*	Specimen Number	Specimen Source*	3	
	Specimen Collection Volume I	Units Specimen Received Date	9	
Report Status	Report Change Date	·,		
Tests				
Test"		Result		
Result Value		Result Units Ref Range		
Test Local Desc		Test Local Code Result Status		
Result Local Desc		Result Local Code	Dien eda	
			907 - T-5	
Comments		Result Date		
	100			
	*			
Add				
Susceptibilities				
	Test	Result*		
	-			
Result Value	Result Units			
Result Status	Test Local Desc	Test Local Code Comment	s Result Date	Datete
2				
			*	
Add				
Lab Facility				
Lab Facility				
Lab Facility (Other)				
CLIA				
Ordering Facility				
Lab Facility				
Lab Facility (Other)				
CLIA				
Ordering Provider Name				
Address				
City				
State				
Zip				
Phone				
Misc Info				
Medical Record Number				
Medical Record Number Assi	gning Facility			
Isolate sent to SLI				
Notes		*		
		-		

Though this screen will look similar for each disease, all information contained on this screen will be disease-specific, (i.e. laboratory tests for TB will only show in TB events).

- 4. Fill in the lab fields according to the paper lab report.
- 5. When finished click **Save** and the user will be brought back to the dashboard.



# NOTE

Users will be able to update or edit manually entered lab reports but not the reports that are entered in MEDSS through ELR.

## **Deleting lab results**

Some users will have the permissions to delete lab reports from an event if they were created erroneously or data is missing. To delete lab reports, follow the steps below:

- 6. Open the event on the dashboard and click on the Lab Results tab.
- 7. Highlight the row of the lab report.
- 8. Click on the Delete Lab Result button.

Event Data	Lab Results	Concerns	Persons	Tasks	Event Properties
Labs					
LAB					
spec Date.	00/24/2009 Spe	c Source: Bronchi	al washing spec	Number.	
Add La	ab Result	Update Lab R	esult	Delete Lab Resul	t
Add La	ib Result	Update Lab R	esult	Delete Lab Resul	t
		Update Lab R		Delete Lab Resul	ノ 一
Details	S:	Update Lab R			ノ 一

9. MEDSS will confirm that the user wants to delete the selected lab result.

N.	NOTE
	Not all users have access to delete lab results. The Delete Lab Result button will only be visible for users with this access.

# **CHAPTER 7: ADDITIONAL EVENT FUNCTIONS**

This chapter explains some of the additional functions that users will be able to access from the dashboard including editing event properties, copying events and deleting events. Some users will not be able to access all of these functions based on role permissions.

### **Event notes**

The MEDSS system has the capability to store notes for each events. These notes are created and displayed from the Event notes section on the MEDSS dashboard summary screen.

Surveillance Syster	n	Open Help Logout
1 🖆 🗇 🚽		Unload Event Logged in as GreyA1
1/1960 ( Male ) Phyne: Event Date: 11/17/2010 ) (View) View)	Notes (Add/Edit   Show My Notes) 11/17/2010 10:41 AM (Generic) - Ashley Grey called and talked to Dr Anderson	

# NOTE

Event notes are different from Person notes in the way that person notes are tied to the person and not to the specific event. Person notes are added and viewed from the person tab in the system and can be opened by anyone with access to the person information. Event notes are viewed and managed from the Event summary section and can only be accessed by anyone with access to the event.

1. To create/add a new event note click on the **Add/Edit** link found beside the section title **Notes** as seen below.

_	
	Notes (Add/Edit   Show My Notes)
(	10/26/2010 08:47 PM (Generic) - Asa Schmit
	This is a note

Clicking this link will present the user with a new screen (shown below).

🖉 Add/Edit Notes - Wi	idows Internet Explorer	
https://apps-test.health	state.mn.us/medss/editNotes.do	✓ <u></u>
Add/Edit Note	3	
Add Note Text:		4
TEXI.		
	v	
	500 characters left	
	inical	
туре. Р	DDIC V	
Save Close	1	
5876 61036		
Previous Notes		1
Ashley Grey 05/18/2010 04:12 P	Text:	
Generic	VI Verify current contact information	
Public		
	2500 characters left	
	Save Changes Delete	
		~
	😜 Internet	🔍 100% 🔻 💡

- 2. Enter the notes text in the Text field.
- 3. Enter a category for the note in the Category field. Notes can be organized using different categories: **Generic**, **Outreach**, **Clinical**, **Case Management**, and **Education**.
- 4. Select **Public** or **Sensitive** in the type dropdown menu.

A user's role determines which notes can be viewed. Some user roles have the ability to see all notes (public and sensitive) and others will see only public notes. The time and date are stamped with each note for easy tracking of a case's history.

## IMPORTANT

Users are able to edit their own most recent note *only* if it was the last note added to the event. It will be displayed for editing at the bottom of the **Add Note** screen. One can edit or delete one's own notes as long as nobody else has left another note on the same case. Using the example on the past page, Ashley Grey would only be able to edit and/or delete the generic note 'Verify current contact information' if no other user had entered a new note to the event.

## Attach files (attachments)

Often, there may be a document or file, such as a lab report, letter, or photograph that should be attached to an event. Any file accessible from the user's computer can be attached to an event. Attachment information is displayed in the Event Summary table at the top of the dashboard.

To attach a file, follow these steps:

- 5. Open the event on the dashboard.
- 6. In the Events summary section, locate the Attachments row.

		onic Disease Surveillance Syste 옵션쇼 : ㅎ ☆ ☆ ☆ ☆
E١	ent Summary	
	Basic Information	
	Event ID:	100001711
	Disease:	Syphilis (Treponema pallidum)
	Primary Person:	Honey Bear Birth Date: 10/02/2009 (Female ) Phone: (555) 555- 0100
	Dates:	Create Date: 10/12/2010 Event Date:
	Type:	Batch
	Investigation Status:	Open
	Linked Events/Contacts:	0 linked event(s)/contact(s) (View)
	Linked Exposure Sites:	0 linked exposure site(s) (View)
	Attachments:	0 attachment(s) (Add)
	Notifications:	Case Status: Suspect Episode Date: 10/12/2010
	Edit Event Properties Copy Eve	nt

- 7. Click on Add.
- 8. A new window opens.

1
Browse
Honey Bear 💟
Requires Review 💟
General
None 🔽

The Add Attachment fields are defined below:

File	The name and path of the file to be attached.
Description	A description of the file being attached. (Required)
Person	The name of the participant in the current event.
Status	The status of the attachment and whether it requires review, or is approved or rejected.
Туре	The type of file being attached– this can include photographs, hospital discharge reports, correspondence, etc.
Security Level	Allows the user to associate a specific security level to the attachment. This is similar to event or person notes. Ability to view is determined by user permissions.
Notes	Notes about the attachment.

9. Click on **Browse** to find the file on your computer. Click **Open** to add the file to the Add Attachment screen.

- 10. Give the attachment a brief description. This field is required.
- 11. Set the status and type of attachment.
- 12. Add a note if necessary.

Description:     Interview notes with partners       Person:     Honey Bear        Status:     Requires Review        Type:     Correspondence       Security Level:     High	Attachment Informatio	n
Person:     Honey Bear        Status:     Requires Review        Type:     Correspondence        Security Level:     High	File:	C:\Documents and Settings\GreyA1\My Documents\MEDS Browse
Status:     Requires Review ♥       Type:     Correspondence       Security Level:     High	Description:	Interview notes with partners
Type: Correspondence Security Level: High	Person:	Honey Bear 💟
Security Level:	Status:	Requires Review 💟
	Type:	Correspondence
Notes:	Security Level:	High 🔽
~	Notes:	
		<u>×</u>

13. Click **Save** and the Manage Attachments screen opens.

tachmente -	Honey Bear - Synh	ilis (Trenonema nallidum)				
	noney bear - Syph					
Person	File	Description	Status	Туре	Updated By	Action
Honey Bear	Interview Notes.doc	Interview notes with partners	Approved	Correspondence	GreyA1	View Edit Del
Deshboard	Help					
	Person Honey Bear	Person File Honey Bear Interview Notes.doc	Honey Bear Interview Notes.doc Interview notes with partners	Person File Description Status Honey Bear Interview Notes doc Interview notes with partners Approved	Person File Description Status Type Honey Bear Interview Notes.doc Interview notes with partners Approved Correspondence	Person         File         Description         Status         Type         Updated By           Honey Bear         Interview Notes.doc         Interview notes with partners         Approved         Correspondence         GreyA1

- 14. From this screen, users can add another attachment or view, edit or delete the file attachments in the table.
- 15. When finished, click **Dashboard** to go back.

## **Edit Event Properties**

Event properties are the information that defines the event such as the disease, investigation status or effective from date. The Edit Event Properties is located in the Event summary on the dashboard when an event is opened.

To change an event's properties, follow the steps below:

- 1. Open the event on the dashboard.
- 2. Click on the Edit Event Properties button in the Event Summary section.

nnesota Electronic Disease Surveillance System			
२ 🛎 🗞 ।	4 🖉 😒 🌠 🗎	🔒 🏠 🏠 🖶 🛰 🛠 🖄 🍈	
Event Su	mmary		
Basic In	formation		Not
Event ID	t.	100000242	12/1
Disease	:	Core	Nee
Primary	Person:	Yellow Rose Birth Date: 04/16/1955 (Female ) Phone:	
Dates:		Create Date: 12/14/2009 Event Date: 12/14/2009	
Type:		Interactive	
Investiga	ation Status:	Open	
Linked E	vents/Contacts:	4 linked event(s)/contact(s) (View)	
Linked E	xposure Sites:	0 linked exposure site(s) (View)	
A	ents:	0 attachment(s) (Add)	
Attachm	one:	Case Status: Probable	
Notificat	UIIS.		

3. Upon clicking **Edit Event Properties**, a new screen appears. The available actions a user can change are described below.

Event Information		
Event ID: Change Disease To:	10000242	
Status. Change Status To:	Open	
Effective From.	12/14/2009	
Note:	2500 characters left	
Note Type:	Public 💌	
Deduplication Status:	Done 💌	

**Event ID** Displays the MEDSS Event ID of the current event.

Change Disease To	Allows the user to change the selected disease to another disease of a similar type. More details are located below.
Status	Displays the current investigation status of the event. More details are located below.
Change Status To	Allows the user to change the current investigation status of the event to open, closed or invalid.
Effective From	This is the generic field used throughout MEDSS to indicate when the event started. This field should be defaulted, but if blank, users will need to enter a date in order to save changes.
Note	Allows the user to enter an event-related note. (This produces the same result as adding a note in the notes section above.)
Note Type	Allows the user to set the note type to Public or Sensitive.

Deduplication	This displays the deduplication status of the event. The deduplication
Status	status can be either 'Done' or 'Pending'. By changing this field to
	Pending the de-duplication process will be triggered for the event and
	any possible matches will be identified.

4. When finished, click **Save**. The system may prompt a confirmation before any changes are made. Any changes will be recorded in the history of the event.

#### Investigation status

The **Event Status/Investigation Status** displayed on the event summary screen is a system field and can be set to Open, Closed or Invalid. This field is not used to determine if the event is truly a case or not and this field does NOT set the case status in the Administrative QP.

This field should be Open for all cases someone is currently working on; closing the field will lock the case for further editing.

#### Change Disease

If a disease associated with an event needs to be changed, it is possible for someone with the appropriate permissions to change it. Open the event to be changed in the MEDSS dashboard. Click the **Edit Event Properties** button and change the **Disease** dropdown to the appropriate disease. The dropdown list will only display diseases that the user has access to.

Remember that questions differ between diseases so if the user changes the disease for an event, all data that does not apply to the new disease will be lost. Changing back to the original disease will not bring back the lost data.

To prevent losing data, another option would be to copy the event to a new disease event if the user has those permissions. Then on the old event, set the classification status of the event to **Does Not Meet Criteria** and **Close** the event.

## **Copy Event**

The copy event feature allows users to copy data from an existing event to a new event or to another existing event. When copying events, the user can control what information will be transferred based on the available options (question packages, attachments, notes, lab reports, etc.). The information will fill in the fields in the new event and the event will have a new ID number. If copying to an existing event, the data will fill into the open fields in a question package or be added to the existing event's information like with the lab results. Not all users will have permissions to use this function.

#### Copy the information from an existing event to a new event

Copying events to a new event can help if users want to retain data from events after the disease has changed or progressed. An example is if a TB contact patient develops a latent infection. Instead of losing data from the TB Contact event by changing the disease, a user can copy the event to a TB LTBI event, thus retaining the record in their history. To copy an existing event to a new event, follow the steps below:

- 1. Open the event on the dashboard.
- 2. Click on the Copy Event button in the Event Summary section.

lin	nesota Electro	nic Disease Surveillance System
୍	🛾 🖧 🖬 🖉 👾 🕈	🗧 🔒 🚮 🔄 🛉 🕬 🛠 🖄 🖄 🗇
E	vent Summary	
-		
	Basic Information	
	Event ID:	100001747
	Disease:	TB - Contact
	Primary Person:	Purple Paper Birth Date: 10/18/1938 () Phone:
	Dates:	Create Date: 10/26/2010 Event Date: 10/26/2010
	Type:	Interactive
	Investigation Status:	Open
	Linked Events/Contacts:	0 linked event(s)/contact(s) (View)
	Linked Exposure Sites:	0 linked exposure site(s) (View)
	Attachments:	0 attachment(s) (Add)
	Notifications:	Case Status:
		Episode Date: 10/26/2010
	Edit Event Properties 0	Copy Event
	Edit Event Properties	sopy Event
E	vent Information	

3. A new screen opens which shows different copy options.

Source Event		
Event ID:	100001747	
Disease:	TB - Contact	
Dates:		/2010 Event Date: 10/26/2010
Investigation Status:	Open	2010 EVER BARS. 10/20/2010
Linked Events/Contacts:	0 linked event(s)/co	untact(s)
Linked Exposure Sites:	0 linked exposure s	
Attachments:	0 attachment(s)	
Name:	Purple Paper	
Gender:	i arpie i aper	
Birth Date:	10/18/1938	
Address:	12345 Colfaxian Av	e North, Up North, MN 55555
County:	Cass County	
Country:	USA	
Target Event		
Copy Mode:	Copy to new event	
Effective From:	11/15/2010	
Disease:	TB - Contact	
Status:	Open 🔽	
Notes:		~
		<u> </u>
Copy Question Packages:	<ul> <li>a.1 Administrative</li> <li>b.1 Demographic</li> <li>h.1 Contact Tracing</li> </ul>	
Copy Fields:	Copy attachments	
	Copy labs	
	Copy concerns (manua	l only)
	Copy case notes	( ( ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
	Copy event links	
	Copy exposure site link	s
Link to Source as:		

The fields are defined below:

Copy Mode	Allows the user to copy either as a new event or to an existing event.
Event Date	Defaults to the current event's date, but can be changed to a new date in the copied event.

Disease	Defaults to the current event's disease, but can be changed to a new disease in the copied event.
Status	Defaults to the current event's status, but allows the user to change the current investigation status of the event.
Notes	Allows the user to enter event-related notes.
Copy Question Packages	Allows the user to selectively choose which question packages should be copied over to the new event. Only shows question packages where questions have been answered.
Copy Fields	Allows the user to selectively choose which other field information should be copied over to the new event.
Link to Source As	Allows the user the option to create a link between the new event and the copied event, according to a configurable list of predetermined link types.



- 4. To copy to a new event, make sure the copy mode is set to **Copy to New Event**. Select a disease and which data fields will be copied. If choosing a different disease, only the data in the fields that match between the two diseases will be carried over to the new event.
- 5. When finished selecting, click **Save**. A new event will be created with a new MEDSS Event ID.

#### Copy the data from an existing event to another existing event

Copying existing events to another existing event can be useful if users find duplicate events and need to manually merge the two together. This function allows users the flexibility of which fields to merge with the existing event and will not delete the first event. Copying information to another event can be helpful if multiple persons with the same address face the same disease and prognosis. This can eliminate data entry. To copy the information from an existing event to another existing event, follow the steps below:

- 1. Open the event on the dashboard.
- 2. Click on the Copy Event button in the Event Summary section.
- 3. On the copy event screen, change the copy mode to Copy to Existing Event.
| Target Event            |  |
|-------------------------|--|
| Copy Mode:              | Copy to existing event   |
| Target Event:           | Select Event   |
| Notes:                  |  |
| Copy Question Packages: | <ul> <li>a.1 Administrative</li> <li>b.1 Demographics</li> <li>b.2 EIP Enrollment Information</li> <li>c.1 Clinical and Lab Interpretations</li> </ul> |
| Copy Fields:            | Copy attachments Copy labs Copy concerns (manual only)   |

- 4. Select the target event by clicking on Select Event button. The user will be brought to a search event window.
- 5. Choose which date fields should be copied over. The options that are available will depend on the information available in the source event.

Remember the data will only be copied into the existing event if the field exists and is not already filled in. However lab results and attachments will be added as a separate entry to the existing event.

6. When finished, click **Save**. The user is brought to the dashboard of the Target event.



# NOTE

Copying an event to an existing event does not delete the source event so a user is able to close that event to retain for the records. If a user chooses to delete the source event, that will need to be done in an additional step.

### **Delete event**

Only specific users will have the permissions to delete an event from MEDSS. This will only delete the event, not the person, from the database. Deleting events should be reserved for those that were incorrectly added; however, if users want to retain the event for their records, users should deactivate the event by marking the status as *invalid* in the Edit Event Properties menu.

To delete an event from MEDSS, follow the steps below:

- 1. Open the event on the dashboard.
- 2. Depending on role permissions, users will see the trashcan icon in the toolbar.
- 3. Click on the trashcan icon and MEDSS will verify that the event should be deleted.
- 4. Confirm the delete.

Once an event is deleted, it can not be undeleted.

# Concerns

Concerns are used in the system to highlight possible data issues. Critical active concerns will show up in the Event summary section when an event is open in the dashboard (in the notifications area).

	- 🔒 谷谷 🕆 🍽 🛠 🖄 û	_
ent Summary		
Basic Information		Notes
Event ID:	10000383	
Disease:	TB - Active	
Primary Person:	Soda Pop Birth Date: 05/15/2008 (Male ) Phone:	
Dates:	Create Date: 10/13/2009 Event Date: 10/13/2009	
Type:	Interactive	
Investigation Status:	Open	
Linked Events/Contacts:	2 linked event(s)/contact(s) (View)	
Linked Exposure Sites:	0 linked exposure site(s) (View)	
Attachments:	0 attachment(s) (Add)	l
Notifications:	Active outbreak: Airline [Link to Outbreak] [Open]	
	Active outbreak: Test ourbreak [Link to Outbreak] [Open]	
	Case Status: Suspect case	
	Episode Date: 10/13/2009	
	None of the dates in the Medication Order Authorization section	
	match the Date of next shipment	

Sometimes the concerns may not be invalid, so the user has the ability to note that the concern has been acknowledged and that the data entry is fine as-is. For example, the system might produce a concern about an extremely high body temperature that a user input into the clinical question package. If the concern was valid, the user could go back into the question package and correct the error and the concern will no longer display. However, if the temperature was truly this extreme, the user could acknowledge the concern and keep the information in its present condition.

All concerns for an event can also be found under the **Concerns Tab** and they can also be manipulated in that tab.

### Acknowledge a concern

To acknowledge that a concern has been recognized, follow the steps below:

- 1. With the event open on the dashboard, click on the **Concerns tab.**
- 2. Highlight the concern. Notice that details display in the table.

Event Data	Lab Results	Concerns	Persons	Tasks	Event Properties	Event History					
Concerns											
CONCER				DESC	RIPTION			PERSC	N LAST UPDAT	E SEVERITY	STAT
CONCER	NS RULE ORDE	D AUTH DATE	MEENIC COM			e Medication Order A	uthorization		12/21/2009	Very High	Action
CONCER	NS_NOLE_ONDE	AUTH_DATE		sectio	in match the Date	e of next shipment		Pop	12/2/1/2000	very riigh	ACUVE
Ads Concer	n Update Concer	n j									
Add Cancer	n Update Concer										
(											
Concern				CONCERNS F		WITH DATE MISSIN	G. CONCE	RN 1			
Concern Concern	Qetails					UTH_DATE_MISSIN			Date of next sh	ioment	
Concern	Qetails	>	1	None of the date		UTH_DATE_MISSIN			Date of next sh	ipment	
Concern Concern Descriptio	Qetails		1						Date of next sh	ipment	
Concern Concern Descriptio Person:	Qetails		1	None of the date Soda Pop Active					Date of next sh	ipment	
Concern Concern Descriptio Person Status	Oetails on:		1	None of the date Soda Pop					Date of next sh	ipment	
Concern Concern Descriptio Person Status Severity Create Da	<b>Details</b> on: ale:			None of the date Soda Pop Active Very High					Date of next sh	ipment	
Concern Concern Descriptio Person: Status: Seventy	Oetails on: ate: ate:			None of the date Soda Pop Active Very High 12/21/2009	es in the Medicati				Date of next sh	ipment	

### 3. Click on Update Concern.

Set the status to resolved and add a note if necessary. Setting the status to **Resolved** indicates to other users that someone has acknowledged the concern and ascertained that the data is accurate. No concern can be deleted.

Edit Concern - Soda Pop - TB -	Active
Concern Information	
Concern:	CONCERNS_RULE_ORDER_AUTH_DATE_MISSING_CONCERN_1
Description:	None of the dates in the Medication Order Authorization section match the Date of next shipment
Person:	Soda Pop
Create Date:	12/21/2009
Last Update:	12/21/2009
Updated By:	TestUser_TB01
Status:	Resolved 💟
Notes:	This has been approved
Save Cancel Help	

The fields on the Edit Concern screen are described below:

Concern	Unique name of the concern in the database produced by MEDSS.
Description	Describes the issue in plain language.
Person	The person about whom the event is based.
Create Date	The date upon which the concern was created.
Last Update	The date upon which the concern was last updated.
Updated By	The name of the user who last updated the concern. If the concern itself has not been updated, the username of the person who entered the data that triggered the concern will appear.
Status	Refers to the current state of the concern – either active or resolved.
Notes	Notes about the concern.

# **CHAPTER 8: WORKFLOWS QUEUES AND TASKS**

Workflow Queues and Tasks can help users keep track of their daily duties and events in MEDSS. Workflow Queues are a way to know which events are new and can define the process of where events go. Tasks help organize workloads and remind users what work needs to be completed.

# Workflow Queues (electronic to-do lists)

Workflow queues are important in MEDSS because they allow users to keep up with events and work that needs to be done on them. Events can be placed in workflow queues automatically based on what has happened or has to happen with the event. For example, if a case management report is past due, the event may display in a "TB CMR due" workflow queue. Also, events can be placed in workflow queues manually in the form of a task (more on tasks later in this chapter).

You can open the workflows by clicking the **Workflows** icon in the MEDSS toolbar on the dashboard. On the **Workflow Queues** screen, workflow queues are differentiated from one another as **Case Specific Monitors** or **Task Specific Monitors**.

Vorkflow Queues (Hide empty workflows)		
Workflow Queue	Total Count (Assigned to me)	Details
Case Specific Monitors		
CDC transmit - ready to send (11/15/2010 12:26 PM)	0 (0)	
Cases with multiple current providers (11/15/2010 12:26 PM)	0 (0)	
Cases without Episode date (11/15/2010 12:26 PM)	3 (0)	Details
ELR Lab Need Review (11/15/2010 12:26 PM)	0 (0)	
New - Reportable Cases (high priority only) (11/15/2010 12:26 PM)	0 (0)	
New - Reportable Cases (high priority only) pending 1 day or more (11/15/2010 12:26 PM)	0 (0)	
New - Reportable cases (11/15/2010 12:26 PM)	0 (0)	
Open Cases - All (11/15/2010 12:26 PM)	33 (0)	Details
Open Cases - All Cases pending 5 days or more (11/15/2010 12:26 PM)	19 (0)	Details
Open Cases - Assigned for Follow-up (11/15/2010 12:26 PM)	0 (0)	
Open Cases - Assigned to Current User (11/15/2010 12:36 PM)	0 (0)	
Open Cases - Case report without a mandatory Lab Report (11/15/2010 12:26 PM)	0 (0)	
Shared Cases - Cases shared by me (11/15/2010 12:36 PM)	0 (0)	
Shared Cases - Cases shared with me or my group(s) (11/15/2010 12:36 PM)	1 (0)	Details
ELR Monitors		
New ELR reports - All (11/15/2010 12:26 PM)	0 (0)	
Task Specific Monitors (Add Task)		
My Assigned Cases (11/15/2010 12:36 PM)	0 (0)	
My Groups' Open Tasks (11/15/2010 12:36 PM)	0 (0)	
My Open Tasks (11/15/2010 12:36 PM)	1 (1)	Details
My Overdue Tasks (11/15/2010 12:36 PM)	1 (1)	Details
Open Tasks Created by Me (11/15/2010 12:36 PM)	1 (1)	Details
Overdue Tasks Created by Me (11/15/2010 12:36 PM)	1 (1)	Details

The fields within the workflow screen are described below:

Workflow Queue	The name of the workflow organized in groups such as 'case specific monitors' or 'disease specific monitors'. The name of the workflow is also a link that will open the workflow itself when clicked (the same as clicking on the Details link).
Total Count (Assigned to me)	The number of events in each workflow. The number within parentheses () is the number of events that have been assigned to the user.

Details	Clicking the Details link will open a new screen where all the events in the workflow are listed.
Case Specific monitors – Event workflows	These workflows will be automatically filled by the system. The names describe which events each workflow will contain. Available workflows vary depending upon the user's permissions within the system.
Disease Specific Monitors – Event workflows	These workflows will be determined by each disease group and will refer to specific processes for that group. Available workflows vary depending upon the user's permissions within the system.
Task Specific monitors/workflows	These workflows will list the manually created tasks that have been assigned to a specific user or group. These workflows will differ depending on the user and are always emptied manually by the user completing the task.

### Event Workflows (case and disease specific)

Event workflows are automatically "watching" for a specific occurrence which will trigger it. These occurrences may vary from disease to disease and role to role. An example is when an electronic lab result creates a new event, a Case Specific Monitor workflow (i.e. New Reportable Case) will update and indicate that there is a new event in MEDSS. Usually these types of monitors can be cleared and the workflow queue emptied by filling in a field (or fields) in a question package.



### IMPORTANT

MEDSS runs queries intermittently throughout a 24 hour period. Some workflow queries run 1 time in 24 hours, where others may run as frequently as every 5 minutes.

The frequency with which the workflow query runs is based on the criticality of the workflow as well as the burden on the system. Some queries look at more data and therefore take longer to run than those that look at only one or two pieces of information.

## TIP

Each workflow has a timestamp visible to the right of the workflow name in the workflow queue that indicates the last time the queue was updated.

It is not necessary to have an event open in order to view the Workflow Queue. To interact with the Workflow Queues, follow these steps:

- 1. After logging into MEDSS, click the **Workflow** icon in MEDSS toolbar on the dashboard.
- 2. Available workflows will be listed in the Workflow queue.

Vorkflow Queues (Hide empty workflows)		
Workflow Queue	Total Count (Assigned to me)	Details
Case Specific Monitors		
CDC transmit - ready to send (11/15/2010 12:26 PM)	0 (0)	
Cases with multiple current providers (11/15/2010 12:26 PM)	0 (0)	
Cases without Episode date (11/15/2010 12:26 PM)	3 (0)	Details
ELR Lab Need Review (11/15/2010 12:26 PM)	0 (0)	
New - Reportable Cases (high priority only) (11/15/2010 12:26 PM)	0 (0)	
New - Reportable Cases (high priority only) pending 1 day or more (11/15/2010 12:26 PM)	0 (0)	
New - Reportable cases (11/15/2010 12:26 PM)	0 (0)	
Open Cases - All (11/15/2010 12:26 PM)	33 (0)	Details
Open Cases - All Cases pending 5 days or more (11/15/2010 12:26 PM)	19 (0)	Details
Open Cases - Assigned for Follow-up (11/15/2010 12:26 PM)	0 (0)	
Open Cases - Assigned to Current User (11/15/2010 12:36 PM)	0 (0)	
Open Cases - Case report without a mandatory Lab Report (11/15/2010 12:26 PM)	0(0)	
Shared Cases - Cases shared by me (11/15/2010 12:36 PM)	0(0)	
Shared Cases - Cases shared with me or my group(s) (11/15/2010 12:36 PM)	1 (0)	Details
ELR Monitors		
New ELR reports - All (11/15/2010 12:26 PM)	0 (0)	
Task Specific Monitors (Add Task)		
My Assigned Cases (11/15/2010 12:36 PM)	0 (0)	
My Groups' Open Tasks (11/15/2010 12:36 PM)	0(0)	
My Open Tasks (11/15/2010 12:36 PM)	1 (1)	Details
My Overdue Tasks (11/15/2010 12:36 PM)	1 (1)	Details
Open Tasks Created by Me (11/15/2010 12:36 PM)	1 (1)	Details
Overdue Tasks Created by Me (11/15/2010 12:36 PM)	1 (1)	Details

3. Click **Details** beside the appropriate workflow queue name and a screen similar to the one below will appear.

Select all Clear all								
	pe: Case) 10/04/2010 11:25 AM							
Event	Person	Status	Create Date	Disease	Effective From	Last Update	Assigned To	Assigned To Group
<u>100001588</u>	Bird, Ginger (Hutchinson, MN)	Open	09/23/2010	Core	09/23/2010	09/23/2010		
<u>100001419</u>	Cake, CoCo (Minneapolis, MN)	Open	06/04/2010	Core	06/04/2010	06/04/2010		
100001416	Bear, Red (Minneapolis, MN)	Open	06/04/2010	Core	06/04/2010	06/04/2010		
100001415	Bear, Black (Minneapolis, MN)	Open	06/04/2010	Core	06/04/2010	06/04/2010		
100001388	Flower, Red (Coon Rapids, MN)	Open	05/20/2010	Core	05/20/2010	06/04/2010		
100001293	Boat, Banana	Open	03/26/2010	Core	03/26/2010	03/26/2010		
100001292	Bean, Coffee	Open	03/26/2010	Core	03/26/2010	03/26/2010		
100001291	Seed, Poppy	Open	03/25/2010	Core	03/25/2010	03/25/2010		
100001281	doughnut, jelly	Open	03/25/2010	Core	03/25/2010	05/20/2010		
100000387	Toast, French	Open	03/08/2010	Core	03/08/2010	03/08/2010		
100000351	Chip, Chocolate	Open	02/25/2010	Core	02/25/2010	03/03/2010		
100000341	Pan, Peter (London, MN)	Open	02/23/2010	Core	02/23/2010	09/13/2010		
100000331	Cakes, Pan (St. Paul, MN)	Open	02/09/2010	Core	02/09/2010	04/08/2010		
100000298	Ho, Hi (St. Paul, MN)	Open	01/13/2010	Core	01/13/2010	01/13/2010		
100000279	Schmoe, Joe (St. Paul, MN)	Open	01/12/2010	Core	01/12/2010	01/12/2010		
100000242	Rose, Yellow	Open	12/14/2009	Core	12/14/2009	09/13/2010		
100000241	Dandy, Handy (Minneapolis, MN)	Open	12/14/2009	Core	12/14/2009	12/14/2009		
100000240	Pop, Grape (St. Paul, MN)	Open	12/14/2009	Core	12/14/2009	12/14/2009		
100000238	Dan, Dapper D (St. Paul, MN)	Open	12/10/2009	Core	12/10/2009	05/18/2010		
100000236	Dan, Dapper D (St. Paul, MN)	Open	12/10/2009	Core	12/10/2009	03/03/2010		
Displaying result(s) 1.							<< First <	Prev 1/2 Next > La
Assign selected items	to user:		As	sion selecte	d items to group		× A	Reassion



# NOTE

The Details link will only be available for workflows with at least one event. Empty workflows will not have this link.

The workflow list is divided into nine sections described below:

Event	The Event ID for the event. The event-id is listed as a link and will open the event when clicked. Some workflows will open the event in the dashboard and some workflows will open a pre-defined question package where data is supposed to be entered or modified to remove the event from the workflow.
Person	The name, city, and state of the person the event is about.
Status	The event status of the event (open, closed or invalid). A closed event will be locked for editing.
Create Date	The date the event was first created.
Disease	The disease specified in the event.
Last Update	The last time something was changed in this event.
Assigned To	The person to whom this event is assigned.
Assigned to Group	The group to whom this event is assigned.



# NOTE

Any of the Workflow Queues can be sorted (ascending or descending) by clicking the title head in each column. Only one sort criteria can be used at a time.

Other actions performed on this page are noted below:

Select all	Places a check mark inside the checkboxes to the left of each event visible on the screen. Checking multiple (or individual) events allows for an action to be completed on those events, such as reassigning them or performing a bulk action.
Clear all	Removes any checks within the checkboxes.
Assign selected items to user	Allows the current user to assign selected events to a specific MEDSS user.
Assign selected items to group	Allows the current user to assign selected events to a specific MEDSS group.

### To Open an event from the workflow list

Click the link beside the **Event ID** if applicable. This will either open the appropriate question package or open the event to the dashboard so that the required action(s) may be performed.



### **IMPORTANT**

If changes are made to a question package, remember to click the Save button before navigating back to the workflow.

If an event was opened from a workflow, the next time the user clicks on the Workflow icon in the toolbar, that same workflow list will open.

To navigate back to the workflow gueues, click on the Workflow button from the opened workflow list.

Workflow Queues - BD Notification					
Select all Clear all					
BD Notification (Type: Case) 11/15/2010	01:12 PM				
Event	Person	Status			
<u>m.8. Review And Notification (Stephen</u> <u>Ridgeway) 100000388</u>	Ridgeway, Stephen (St. Paul, MN)	Open			
<u>m.8. Review And Notification (Boy</u> George) 100000354	George, Boy (Coon Rapids, MN)	Open			
<u>m.8. Review And Notification (Freddy Fish) 100000252</u>	Fish, Freddy (St. Paul, MN)	Open			
Displaying result(s) 13					
Assign selected items to user:		Assig			
Workflows Dashboard Help					

To navigate back to the dashboard from either the workflow queues window or an open workflow list, click on the **Dashboard** button.

Workflow Queues - BD Notification					
Select all Clear all					
BD Notification (Type: Case) 11/15/2010	01:12 PM				
Event	Person	Statu			
m.8. Review And Notification (Stephen Ridgeway) 100000388	Ridgeway, Stephen (St. Paul, MN)	Open			
<u>m.8. Review And Notification (Boy</u> George) 100000354	George, Boy (Coon Rapids, MN)	Open			
<u>m.8. Review And Notification (Freddy</u> Fish) 100000252	Fish, Freddy (St. Paul, MN)	Open			
Displaying result(s) 13					
Assign selected items to user:					

## **Bulk Actions in workflows**

Bulk actions are actions that take place on more than one event within a workflow queue. An example of a bulk action could be to print letters for multiple people at one time, to close several events at once, to change the disease classification status for multiple events, to enter the current date into a field for several events at one time, or to report several events to CDC. The bulk actions which will be available to users will vary. The bulk actions are pre-programmed into the system and not all workflows allow for bulk action. If there is a bulk action available (and if a user has access), it will show up as a button at the bottom of the workflow (i.e. Print Template or Report to CDC).

Select all Clear all						
HL Audiologist Faxb	oack Form (Type: Case) 12/15/2009 0	3:48 PM				
Event	Person	Status	Create Date	Disease	Effective From	Last Update
□ <u>100000217</u>	Explorer, Dora (Faribault, MN)	Open	12/03/2009	Hearing Loss	12/03/2009	12/04/2009
100000214	White, Snow (Brooklyn Park, M	N) Open	12/03/2009	Hearing Loss	12/03/2009	12/03/2009
Displaying result(s)	12					
Assign selected item Print Template Workflows Dasht				Assign sele	ected items to grou	

### To use a bulk action

Follow the steps below on how to use a bulk action:

- 4. Open a workflow that has a bulk action associated.
- 5. Select the events the bulk action should apply to by clicking the box next to the event ID.

1	Workflow Queue	es - FB Data Entry Complete					
$\left( \right)$	Select all Clear all						
	FB Data Entry Comp	lete (Type: Case) 11/15/2010 02:02 PM					
	Event	Person	Status	Create Date	Disease		
	☑ <u>100001766</u>	CHEF3, SWEDISH (ST. PAUL, MN)	Open	05/10/2010	Salmonella (i		
	☑ <u>100001753</u>	Bear8, Fozzy (PARDIIVILLE, WI)	Open	09/05/2009	Listeria		
	☑ <u>100001355</u>	Flower, Iris	Open	05/10/2010	Listeria		
	☑ <u>100000216</u>	Shigellosis, Sally	Open	08/04/2009	Shigella		
	☑ <u>10000061</u>	Mouse, Mickey (Anaheim, CA)	Open	05/11/2009	Salmonella (i		
	Displaying result(s) 15						
	Assign selected items	s to user:		Ass	ign selected it		
	Close the event						

6. If the bulk action applies to all listed event, click on Select All.



Using the Select All function will only check the boxes on the current page, so if

the workflow has more than one page, uses will need to repeat the bulk action.

7. Click on the Bulk Action.

	Event	reison	Status	Create Date	Disease			
ſ	100001766	CHEF3, SWEDISH (ST. PAUL, MN)	Open	05/10/2010	Salmonella			
1	100001753	Bear8, Fozzy (PARDIIVILLE, WI)	Open	09/05/2009	Listeria			
ſ	100001355	Flower, Iris	Open	05/10/2010	Listeria			
ſ	100000216	Shigellosis, Sally	Open	08/04/2009	Shigella			
ſ	▼ 10000061	Mouse, Mickey (Anaheim, CA) Open 05/11/2009 Salmo						
	Displaying result(s) 15							
+	Assign selected items to user: Assign selecte							
	Workflows Dashboard	Help						

8. The user will then be brought back to the Workflow Queues page. If the user goes back into the specific workflow, the cases that were selected will be removed (if that bulk action was a trigger to move the case).



### IMPORTANT

Be careful when you use bulk actions that change information in the selected cases. If a bulk action is used to change information for the case, the only way to re-do the change is to manually go into the cases and change the field back.

# Workflows — Task Specific Workflows

The Task specific workflows have tasks listed instead of events. The tasks are either event assignments, event related tasks or non-event related tasks. Examples of task specific workflows are:

My Open Tasks	All tasks (both event related and non-event tasks) created in the system that has been assigned to the user.
My Overdue Tasks	All tasks (both event related and non-event tasks) created in the system and assigned to the user and where the due date is in the past.
Open Tasks created by me	All tasks (both event related and non-event tasks) created by the user in the system. This will include tasks created by the user and assigned to someone else.

My Assigned<br/>eventsAll tasks that has been created by the system during event<br/>assignments. The workflow My assigned events will have one task for<br/>each event assigned to the user.



### IMPORTANT

The task specific monitors will include both created tasks and events assigned to users using the workflows.

To access a task specific workflow, follow the steps below:

- 1. From the dashboard open the workflow queues by clicking on the workflow icon in the toolbar.
- 2. At the bottom of the page, locate the heading Task Specific Monitors.

My Assigned Cases (11/15/2010 02:05 PM)	10 (10)	Details
My Groups' Open Tasks (11/15/2010 02:05 PM)	0 (0)	
My Open Tasks (11/15/2010 02:05 PM)	3 (3)	Details
My Overdue Tasks (11/15/2010 02:05 PM)	1 (1)	Details
Open Tasks Created by Me (11/15/2010 02:05 PM)	20 (13)	Details
Overdue Tasks Created by Me (11/15/2010 02:05 PM)	3 (1)	Details

3. Click **Details** next to the workflow that needs to be opened.

Select all Cle	<u>ar all</u>									
My Open Tasks (Type: Task) Realtime 11/15/2010 02:11 PM										
Туре	Due Date	Description	Status	Created By	Last Update	Event	Disease	Assigned To	Assigned To Group	Action
Investigatio	n	Interview for contacts	ln Progress	Ashley Grey (11/01/2010)		100000552 Runner, Road D	Hepatitis C - chronic	Ashley Grey		<u>Edit</u>
Outreach		Find contacts	Pending	Ashley Grey (09/29/2010)			***RETIRED*** Streptococcal toxic-shock syndrome	Ashley Grey		<u>Edit</u>
Investigatio	on 09/30/2010	Interview patient	Pending	Ashley Grey (09/29/2010)		100001607 Bird, Robin (Stillwater, MN)	***RETIRED*** Streptococcal toxic-shock syndrome	Ashley Grey		<u>Edit</u>
Displaying re	sult(s) 13							<< First < P	rev 1 / 1 Next > L	ast >>
Assian select	ed items to u	ser:				sign selected items to gr	oup		Reassign	

The columns for the task workflow are described below:

This is the type of task. All assignment tasks will be located in My Assigned Cases workflow but all other types of tasks will be in My Open Tasks workflow.
This is the date the task is due to be completed by.
This is a short description of the task given by the creator or the name of the workflow (if assigned from the workflow).
This is the status of the task: Pending, In progress or Completed.
This is the user who created or assigned the task.

Last Update	The date the task was last updated.		
Event	The event (name, city and state) the task is associated with. If the task was not tied to a specific event, the event column will indicate that.		
Disease	What disease the event is tied to.		
Assigned To	The user the task is assigned to (this should be the user logged into MEDSS.		
Assigned To Group	The group the task is assigned to.		
Action	This column has a link that the user can use to edit the task, including changing due dates, assigned to name and status.		

- 4. Once in the workflow, users can work on the task by opening the event by clicking the event ID.
- 5. If work is completed on the task, users can click on **Edit** in the right action column to change the status of the task to complete.

More information on tasks and how to add, edit or delete them is in the next section.

# Tasks (Overview)

A task within MEDSS is a technique for users to delegate assignments or work to others. There are two different types of tasks in the system: event assignments or action tasks (both associated with an event and non-event specific). There are multiple places in the system where tasks can be created and depending on where the task is created, different types of tasks will be created. The table below has more information on all three types of tasks.

Task Type	Description	Created from
Event assignment	Tasks used to track when events have been assigned to specific users or groups of users. When an event is assigned from any workflow an event task is always created.	<ul> <li>I) created automatically when events are assigned from Workflows.</li> <li>II) From the Task icon in the MEDSS toolbar – Add Event task has to be selected when creating the task and assignment should be selected as the type.</li> <li>Event Information         <ul> <li>Event Information</li> <li>Event Lab Results Concerns Persons Tasks</li> </ul> </li> <li>From the Tasks tab in the event information section on the dashboard – assignment has to be selected as the type.</li> </ul>
Action task, associated with an event	Tasks for assigning action items related to a specific event. <b>Examples</b> are a reminder to update the persons' medications	I) From the Task icon in the MEDSS toolbar – Add Event task has to be selected when creating the task.

	after a specific date, to review the event data for completeness after a period of time or to contact a patient for an interview.	Event Information         Event Data       Lab Results         Concerns       Persons         Tasks         From the Tasks tab in the event information section on the dashboard.
Action task, non-event specific	Tasks for assigning action items that are not related to a specific event. <b>Examples</b> are a reminder to review all closed cases or to run a report on a specific date. Another example would be to create a reminder for someone to review lab results for all salmonella cases received recently and check for similarities.	I) From the Task icon in the MEDSS toolbar – Add task has to be selected when creating the task.

Regardless of where the tasks are created, the **Add Task** screen is being used. The fields in this screen are described below.

Task Information	
Event:	10000054 - Root Beer - TB - Active
Туре:	Assignment
Status:	Pending 💌
Priority:	Very Low 💌
Due Date:	
Complete Date:	
Description:	
Notes:	
Assign to user:	
Assign to group:	

- **Event** The Event ID, Full Name, and Disease to which a task is to be associated. (This will not appear if the task is not specific to an event; instead the user will see "Not specific to a case.")
- **Type** The type of task: assignment, outreach, directly observed therapy, business rule, other.

Status	The status of the task. The status will be Pending by default when a task is first assigned. The statuses include Pending, In Progress, and Resolved.
Priority	Assigns a specific priority to the case. (Very High, High, Medium, Low, Very Low)
Due Date	The date by which the task is to be completed.
Complete Date	The date entered by the user completing the task; indicating the completion date of the task.
Description	Describes briefly the task to be accomplished.
Notes	Further notes regarding the task to be completed.
Assign to user	A dropdown list of users on MEDSS system.
Assign to group	A dropdown list of groups on MEDSS system.

# Assigning Events (Event assignment tasks)

Sometimes it's useful to be able to assign events to other users or groups, for example when another jurisdiction is being asked to gather information for an event (such as a contact) or an event is assigned to another group for follow-up.

Assigning tasks can help manage workloads, but a user can only assign an event to another user who has permission to view the event. If the user tries to assign an event to someone who does not have permission to view the event, the event will not be assigned and the user will see a note at the top of the screen indicating the following:

"Warning: The group selected does not have access to at least one of the selected cases."

If the event is not visible by the user or group to whom the event is being assigned, it will need to be shared (more on sharing in Chapter 11 – Sharing Events).

When events are assigned to users or groups from workflows, the system automatically creates assignment tasks to track the assignment. It is also possible to assign events using the Task tab in the event.



# NOTE

When assigning an event in the workflow queue, it's important to recognize that the event will also be assigned to that user or group if the same event is listed in other workflow queues.

### Assigning Events from Workflows

With a workflow open, users have the option to assign an event to individual users or to an entire group. This will create an assignment task. Assigning events from the workflow do not remove the event from the workflow, but place the event in the users' **My Assigned Cases** workflow. Note that assigned users currently will not receive an email notification for assigning tasks this way and will only know of the new assignment by monitoring their individual workflow.

To assign an event from the workflow, follow the steps below:

1. Open the Workflow Queues by clicking the workflow icon in the MEDSS toolbar.

Workflow Queues (Hide empty workflows)		
Workflow Queue	Total Count (Assigned to me)	Details
Case Specific Monitors		
CDC transmit - ready to send (11/15/2010 12:26 PM)	0 (0)	
Cases with multiple current providers (11/15/2010 12:26 PM)	0 (0)	
Cases without Episode date (11/15/2010 12:26 PM)	3 (0)	Details
ELR Lab Need Review (11/15/2010 12:26 PM)	0 (0)	
New - Reportable Cases (high priority only) (11/15/2010 12:26 PM)	0 (0)	
New - Reportable Cases (high priority only) pending 1 day or more (11/15/2010 12:26 PM)	0 (0)	
New - Reportable cases (11/15/2010 12:26 PM)	0 (0)	
Open Cases - All (11/15/2010 12:26 PM)	33 (0)	Details
Open Cases - All Cases pending 5 days or more (11/15/2010 12:26 PM)	19 (0)	Details
Open Cases - Assigned for Follow-up (11/15/2010 12:26 PM)	0 (0)	
Open Cases - Assigned to Current User (11/15/2010 12:36 PM)	0 (0)	
Open Cases - Case report without a mandatory Lab Report (11/15/2010 12:26 PM)	0 (0)	
Shared Cases - Cases shared by me (11/15/2010 12:36 PM)	0 (0)	
Shared Cases - Cases shared with me or my group(s) (11/15/2010 12:36 PM)	1 (0)	<b>Details</b>
ELR Monitors		
New ELR reports - All (11/15/2010 12:26 PM)	0 (0)	
Task Specific Monitors (Add Task)		
My Assigned Cases (11/15/2010 12:36 PM)	0 (0)	
My Groups' Open Tasks (11/15/2010 12:36 PM)	0(0)	
My Open Tasks (11/15/2010 12:36 PM)	1 (1)	Details
My Overdue Tasks (11/15/2010 12:36 PM)	1 (1)	Details
Open Tasks Created by Me (11/15/2010 12:36 PM)	1 (1)	Details
Overdue Tasks Created by Me (11/15/2010 12:36 PM)	1 (1)	Details

2. Open the specific workflow by clicking the name or the **Details** link on the right.

ew - Reportable C	ases (high priority only) pending	1 day or	r more (Type:	: Case) 11/15/2010 01:22 PM				
vent	Person	Status	Create Date	Disease	Effective From	Last Update	Assigned To	Assigned To Group
10000258	Priority, High	Open	08/24/2009	Vibrio (including Vibrio cholerae)	08/24/2009	06/18/2010		
10000256	Disease, Other Reportable	Open	08/24/2009	Anthrax (Bacillus anthracis)	08/24/2009	08/24/2009		
100000255	Priority, High	Open	08/24/2009	Botulism (Clostridium botulinum)	08/24/2009	06/16/2010		
100000254	Antrax, Lady	Open	08/24/2009	Anthrax (Bacillus anthracis)	08/24/2009	05/13/2010		
100000119	Cole, Cholera	Open	06/23/2009	Vibrio (including Vibrio cholerae)	06/23/2009	06/17/2010		
100000112	Cholera, Chloe Vibrio	Open	06/21/2009	Vibrio (including Vibrio cholerae)	06/21/2009	06/22/2009		
Displaying result(s)	16					<	< First < Prev	1/1 Next > Last >>
Assign selected item	ns to user			Assign selected items to group			~	Assign Reass

3. Located the event and click on the box to the left of the event ID.

<u>100000255</u>	Priority, High	Open	08/24/2009	Botulism (C
100000254	Antrax, Lady	Open	08/24/2009	Anthrax (Ba
☑ 100000119	Cole, Cholera	Open	06/23/2009	Vibrio (inclu
□ <u>100000112</u>	Cholera, Chloe Vibrio	Open	06/21/2009	Vibrio (inclu
Displaying result(s) 16				
Assign selected items to u	user:			Assign :
Workflows Dashboard	Help			

4. Choose the name or group from the dropdown list.

Γ	<u>100000254</u>	Antrax, Lady	Open	08/24/2009	Anthrax (Bacilius anthracis)
	☑ 100000119	Cole, Cholera	Open	06/23/2009	Vibrio (including Vibrio cholerae)
	100000112	Cholera, Chloe Vibrio	Open	06/21/2009	Vibrio (including Vibrio cholerae)
	Displaying result(s) 16				
$\triangleleft$	Assign selected items to	USEI: GreyA1 [Ashley Grey]			Assign selected items to group
	Workflows Dashboard	Help			

5. Click on **Assign**. The name of the person or group will be automatically updated in the **Assigned To** column.

	Effective From	Last Update	Assigned To	Assigned To	Group
Vibrio cholerae)	08/24/2009	06/18/2010			
anthracis)	08/24/2009	08/24/2009			
idium botulinum)	08/24/2009	06/16/2010			
anthracis)	08/24/2009	05/13/2010			
Vibrio cholerae)	06/23/2009	06/17/2010	Ashley Grey		
Vibrio cholerae)	06/21/2009	06/22/2009			
		<	< First < Prev	1/1 Next>	Last >>
ted items to group [			~	Assign	Reass

6. Once the event has been assigned, users can change that assignment by clicking the **Reassign** button.



7. On the dashboard for the assigned event, the task will automatically be added to the task list for the event. This can also be viewed on the event's dashboard under the Tasks tab on the Event Summary section.

	nation							
event Data	Lab Results	Concerns	Persons	Tasks	Event Properties	Event History		
Tasks								
TYPE	STATUS	PRIORITY	DUE DATE	DESCRIPTION			ASSIGNED TO	ASSIGNED TO GROUP
Assignment	t Pending	Medium	10/21/2010	Influenza, cases r	needing initial rev	iew	GreyA1 [Ashley Grey]	State - Flu
Add Task	Update Task							
	Update Task							
Details	Update Task			Assignment				
	Update Task			Assignment Pending				
Details Type:	Update Task							
Details Type: Status: Priority: Description	);			Pending Medium Influenza, cases	needing initial re	view		
Details Type: Status: Priority: Description Assigned T	1: 			Pending Medium Influenza, cases Ashley Grey	needing initial re	view		
Details Type: Status: Priority: Description Assigned T Assigned T	1: To: To: To:			Pending Medium Influenza, cases Ashley Grey State - Flu	needing initial re	view		
Details Type: Status: Priority: Description Assigned T Assigned T Create Date	n: o: o Group: e:			Pending Medium Influenza, cases Ashley Grey State - Flu 10/04/2010	needing initial re	view		
Details Type: Status: Priority: Description Assigned T Assigned T Create Date Created By	n: To: To: To: Group: e:			Pending Medium Influenza, cases Ashley Grey State - Flu 10/04/2010 Ashley Grey	needing initial re	view		
Details Type: Status: Priority: Description Assigned T Assigned T Create Dat Create Dat Created By Last Updat	n: To: To: To: To: To: To: To: To: To: To			Pending Medium Influenza, cases Ashley Grey State - Flu 10/04/2010 Ashley Grey 10/04/2010	needing initial re	view		
Details Type: Status: Priority: Description Assigned T Assigned T Create Dat Created By Last Updat Updated By	n: To: To: To: To: To: To: To: To: To: To			Pending Medium Influenza, cases Ashley Grey State - Flu 10/04/2010 Ashley Grey 10/04/2010 Ashley Grey	needing initial re	view		
Details Type: Status: Priority: Description Assigned T Assigned T Create Dat Create Dat Created By Last Updat	n: To: To: To: To: To: To: To: To: To: To			Pending Medium Influenza, cases Ashley Grey State - Flu 10/04/2010 Ashley Grey 10/04/2010	needing initial re	view		



# NOTE

If you assign the event to an individual from the workflow, the event will only show up on this person's **My Assigned Cases** workflow, but if you assign it to a group, all individuals will see the event in workflow **My Groups' Open Tasks**.

### Assigning Events from the Toolbar

- 1. First open the event in the MEDSS dashboard.
- 2. Click the **Tasks** icon in the MEDSS toolbar.
- 3. The **Tasks** screen will display the tasks for the selected event in the top section and tasks for the user on the bottom. To create a new task, click the button that says **Add Event Task**.

Add event task	Add Task	Dashboard	Help

4. You will be brought to the **Add Task** screen.

Task Information	
Event:	100000054 - Root Beer - TB - Active
Туре:	Assignment
Status:	Pending 🔽
Priority:	Very Low 💌
Due Date:	
Complete Date:	
Description:	
Notes:	
Assign to user:	
Assign to group:	▼

- 5. Select Assignment in the Type field using the dropdown list.
- Select the Status of the task. The default status is Pending since the user is creating the case. If it should be something other than Pending, select the appropriate option from the list.
- 7. Select the **Priority** of the task and if necessary, set the **Due Date** of the task.
- 8. Enter a brief but concise **Description** of the task to be done so that the assignee has a clear understanding of what is to be done. Add notes to clarify if necessary.
- 9. Assign to a user or group from the appropriate dropdown list.
- 10. Click the **Save** button. The user will be brought back to the dashboard for the open event.
- 11. This event assignment will be located in the assigned user's **My Assigned Cases** workflow.



### NOTE

When creating tasks (both assignment and action tasks) from the Tasks tab on the dashboard or the Tasks icon in the toolbar, an email notification of that task will be sent to the assignee. If any changes are made to the task, the creator will receive an email notification.

### Assigning an Event from the Task tab

- 1. First open the event in the MEDSS dashboard.
- Under the Event Information section, click on the Tasks tab followed by the 'Add Task' button.

Event Data	Lab Results	Concerns	Persons	Tasks	Event Properties	Event Audit Trail	
Tasks							
TYPE	STATUS	PRIORITY	DUE DATE	DESC	RIPTION	ASSIGNED TO	ASSIGNED TO GROUP
-	<						

3. The Add Task screen will be opened.

Add Task	
Task Information	
Event:	100000054 - Root Beer - TB - Active
Туре:	Assignment
Status:	Pending 💌
Priority:	Very Low 💌
Due Date:	
Complete Date:	
Description:	
Notes:	
Assign to user:	<b>v</b>
Assign to group:	
Save Cancel	Help

- 4. Select Assignment in the Type field.
- 5. Select the **Status** of the task. The default status is Pending since the user is creating the case. If the status should be something different, select the appropriate option from the list.
- 6. Select the **Priority** of the task and if necessary, set the **Due Date** of the task.
- 7. Enter a brief but concise **Description** of the task to be done so that the assignee has a clear understanding of what is to be done. Add notes to clarify if necessary.
- 8. Assign to a user or group from the appropriate dropdown list.
- 9. Click the **Save** button. The user will be brought back to the dashboard for the open event.

# **B**

# NOTE

When the task is completed, it will remain under the **Tasks tab** on the event summary, but it will no longer be listed under the user's task lists on the toolbar or under the workflow queue **My Assigned Cases**.

# Create and Assign an Action Task for an Event

It is important to note that action tasks can be associated with or not be associated with a specific event. There are two ways to create and assign if associated with an event or not associated with an event. The steps to create either type of task are virtually the same. Follow the procedures outlined below for the different ways to create both event specific tasks and event non-specific tasks.

Tip	TIP
0	Users will be notified by email when an action task has been assigned to them. Both creator and assignee will receive emails when tasks have been updated.

### Create an Event Specific Task from the Task tab

- 1. If it is necessary to create a task specific to an event, first open the event in the MEDSS dashboard.
- 2. Under the Event Information section, click on the **Tasks tab** and click on the **Add Task** button.

Event Data	Lab Results	Concerns	Persons	Tasks	Event Properties	Event Audit Trail	
Tasks							
TYPE	STATUS	PRIORITY	DUE DATE	DESC	RIPTION	ASSIGNED TO	ASSIGNED TO GROUP
$\sim$	<						

3. You will be brought to the Add Task screen.

Add Task	
Task Information	
Event:	100000054 - Root Beer - TB - Active
Туре:	Assignment
Status:	Pending 💌
Priority:	Very Low 💌
Due Date:	
Complete Date:	
Description:	
Notes:	
Assign to user:	▼
Assign to group:	
Save Cancel	Help

- 4. Select the **Type of Task** from the dropdown list. Select one of the options other than 'Assignment' since this type "Assignment" is used to assign the entire event to a user. It is recommended to only use this type for that reason (for more information about event assignment see previous section in this chapter).
- 5. Select the **Status** of the task. The default status is Pending, but if it should be something other than Pending, select the appropriate option from the list.
- 6. Select the **Priority** of the task and if necessary, set the **Due Date** of the task.
- 7. Enter a brief but concise **Description** of the task to be done so that the assignee has a clear understanding of what is to be done. Add notes to clarify if necessary.
- 8. Assign to a user or group from the appropriate dropdown list.
- 9. Click the **Save** button. The user will be brought back to the dashboard for the open event.

### Create an Event Specific Task from the Toolbar

- 1. The other way to create an event specific task is to click the **Tasks** icon in the MEDSS toolbar.
- The Tasks screen will display the tasks for the selected event in the top section and tasks for the user on the bottom. To create a new tasks click the button that says Add Event Task.

ł	Add event task Add Task	Dashboard	Help

3. This will open the same **Add Task** screen shown above.

Task Information	and the second sec
Event:	100000054 - Root Beer - TB - Active
Туре:	Assignment
Status:	Pending
Priority:	Very Low 💌
Due Date:	
Complete Date:	
Description	
Notes:	
	4
	-
Assign to user:	¥
Assign to group:	

- 4. Select the **Type of Task** from the dropdown list. Select one of the options other than 'Assignment' since this type "Assignment" is used to assign the entire event to a user. It is recommended to only use this type for that reason (for more information about event assignment see previous section in this chapter).
- 5. Select the **Status** of the task. The default status is Pending, but if it should be something other than Pending, select the appropriate option from the list.
- 6. Select the **Priority** of the task and if necessary, set the **Due Date** of the task.
- 7. Enter a brief but concise **Description** of the task to be done so that the assignee has a clear understanding of what is to be done. Add notes to clarify if necessary.
- 8. Assign to a user or group from the appropriate dropdown list.
- 9. Click the **Save** button. The user will be brought back to the dashboard for the open event.

# Create and Assign a Non-event Specific Task

Remember event specific tasks will be associated with a specific disease event and relate to some part of that event, but non-event specific tasks are more general and can relate to a group of events.

### Create a Non-event Specific Task from the toolbar

- 1. One way to create a non-event specific task is to click the **Tasks** icon in the MEDSS toolbar.
- The Tasks screen will display the tasks for the selected event in the top section and tasks for the user on the bottom. To create a new task not tied to an event, click the button that says Add Task.



3. This will open the **Add Task** screen described earlier. Please note that for event, it should say "Not specific to a case".

Task Information		
Event:	Not specific to a case	
Туре:	Assianment 💌	
Status:	Pending 💌	
Priority:	Very Low 🛩	
Due Date:		
Complete Date:		
Description:		
Notes:		
Assign to user:		~
Assign to group:	▼	

- 4. Select the **Type of Task** from the dropdown list. Select one of the options other than 'Assignment' since the type 'Assignment' is used to assign the entire event to a user. It is recommended to only use this type for that reason (for more information about event assignment see previous section in this chapter).
- 5. Select the **Status** of the task. The default status is Pending since the user is creating the case. If it should be something other than Pending, select the appropriate option from the list.
- 6. Select the **Priority** of the task and if necessary, set the **Due Date** of the task.
- 7. Enter a brief but concise **Description** of the task to be done so that the assignee has a clear understanding of what is to be done. Add notes to clarify if necessary.
- 8. Assign to a user or group from the appropriate dropdown list.
- 9. Click the **Save** button. The user will be brought back to the dashboard for the open event.

### Create a Non-event Specific Task from the Workflows

- 1. Click the **Workflow Queues** button from MEDSS toolbar.
- 2. Beside Task Specific Monitors, click the **Add Task** link.

Organization Deduplication (09/10/2009 04:29 PM)	0 (0)
Task Specific Monitors (Add Task)	
Completed Tasks Created by Me (09/10/2009 04:29 PM)	2 (2)
My Groups' Open Tasks (09/16/2009 04:29 PM)	6 (0)
My Open Tasks (09/10/2009 04:29 PM)	1 (1)
My Overdue Tasks (09/10/2009 04:29 PM)	0 (0)
Open Tasks Created by Me (09/10/2009 04:29 PM)	4 (1)
Overdue Tasks Created by Me (09/10/2009 04:29 PM)	2 (0)
Action Specific Monitors	
Failed Actions (09/10/2009 04:29 PM)	0 (0)
Dashboard Help	

3. Clicking this link brings up a screen similar to the Add Task screen above, except for event, it says "Not Specific to a case".

Task Information	
Event:	Not specific to a case
Type:	Assionment
Status:	Pendina 💌
Priority:	Very Low Y
Due Date:	
Complete Date:	
Description:	
Notes:	
•	
Assign to user:	X
Assign to group:	v

- 4. Select the **Type of Task** from the dropdown list. Select one of the options other than 'Assignment' since this type "Assignment" is used to assign the entire event to a user. It is recommended to only use this type for that reason (for more information about event assignment see previous section in this chapter).
- 5. Select the **Status** of the task. The default status is Pending. If it should be something other than Pending, select the appropriate option from the list.
- 6. Select the **Priority** of the task and if necessary, set the **Due Date** of the task.
- 7. Enter a brief but concise **Description** of the task to be done so that the assignee has a clear understanding of what is to be done. Add notes to clarify if necessary.
- 8. **Assign** to a user or group from the appropriate dropdown list.
- 9. Click the **Save** button. The user will be brought back to the dashboard for the open event.

### Working on and Completing Tasks

Task information provided on the **Tasks** screen which is accessed via the **Tasks** icon from the toolbar is different than the task information on the **Workflow Queues** screen.

The Tasks screen (accessed from the toolbar) displays tasks which are specific to the event that is currently open in the dashboard – regardless of whom the task is assigned. Additionally, on the Tasks screen all tasks which are assigned to the current user – regardless of which event they are assigned – will also display.

The task information on the Workflow Queues screen is displayed in several queues within the Task Specific Monitors. The queues displayed on this screen are as follows:

My Assigned Cases Displays all events that have been assigned to the user. These are tasks with the "Assignment" task type.

My Groups' Open Tasks	Displays a list of tasks that have been assigned to any group or groups of which the user is a part.
My Open Tasks	Displays a list of open tasks that have been specifically assigned to the user. These are event specific and non-event specific tasks.
My Overdue Tasks	Displays a list of the tasks which have been assigned to the user which are past their due date.
Open Tasks Created by Me	Incomplete tasks that have been created by the user.
Overdue Tasks Created by Me	Incomplete tasks that have been created by the user which are past due.

Given that there are two ways to access task information, the steps to complete a task in both locations are discussed below.

### Updating Tasks from the Workflow Queue

- 1. After logging into MEDSS, click the **Workflows** icon in the MEDSS toolbar on the dashboard.
- 2. Observe the tasks that are listed in the **Task Specific Monitors**.

/ly Assigned Cases (11/15/2010 12:36 PM)	0 (0)	
Wy Groups' Open Tasks (11/15/2010 12:36 PM)	0 (0)	
My Open Tasks (11/15/2010 12:36 PM)	1 (1)	Details
My Overdue Tasks (11/15/2010 12:36 PM)	1 (1)	Details
Open Tasks Created by Me (11/15/2010 12:36 PM)	1 (1)	Details
Overdue Tasks Created by Me (11/15/2010 12:36 PM)	1 (1)	Details

3. Click the **Details** link in the workflow that you would like to open.

Sel	lect all Clear	r all								
My	Open Task	s (Type: Ta	ask) Realtime 10/04/2010 01	:14 PM		08-000 AN 44 1		5-01 -	18-13 M4100	ente vin-en recever
	Туре	Due Date	Description	Status	Created By	Last Update	Event	Disease	Assigned To A	ssigned To Group Action
Г	Other	09/30/2010	Cl refer.	Pending	DemoUser TB01 (09/28/2010)	09/28/2010	100001664 Palpatine, Empor	TB - Contact	Ashley Grey	Edit
-	Outreach	09/16/2010	Tetanus	In Progress	Ninth Student (09/15/2010)	09/15/2010	100001518 Whiz, Cheez Mr. (Ritz, MN)	Tetanus	Ashley Grey	Edit
-	Assignment	10/05/2010	ELR Lab Need Review	In Progress	Ashley Grey (06/09/2010)	10/04/2010	100000362 Meatball, Swedish	Other - VPD	Ashley Grey	Edit
Г	Outreach		Interview Subjects	In Progress	Ashley Grey (06/04/2010)	06/04/2010	100001383 Bear, Toddy (Beardsley, MN)	TB - Active	Ashley Grey	Edit
			Need lab results to verify type of food	Pending	Ashley Grey (05/21/2010)	10/04/2010	100001389 Mirror, Magic (St. Paul, MN)	Foodborne	Ashley Grey	Edit
г	Assignment	10/30/2010	Case Management Reports Need to be Reviewed	In Progress	Alexandra Ecklund (03/26/2010)	10/04/2010	100000147 Mirror, Magic (St. Paul, MN)	TB - Active	Ashley Grey	Edit
r	Investigation	03/09/2010	Check Outbreak records	Pending	Ashley Grey (03/02/2010)	09/23/2010	100000352 Bacon, Crispy (Minneapolis, MN)	TB - Active	Ashley Grey	Edit
D	isplaying res	ult(s) 1_7							<< First < Pre	ev 1/1 Next > Last >>
A	ssign selecte	d items to u	iser.		(V)	Assign select	ed items to group		Reass	gn



4. Click the Edit link for the Tasks you want to update and the Edit Task screen will show.

Edit Task	
Task Information	
Event:	10000050 - TB - Active - Root Beer
Type:	Assignment
Status:	Pending 💌
Created By:	EckluA1 [Alexandra Ecklund]
Create Date:	03/26/2010
Last Update:	03/26/2010
Priority:	Medium 💙
Due Date:	
Start Date:	
Complete Date:	
Description:	Case Management Reports Need to be Reviewed
Notes:	
	<u>×</u>
Assign to user:	GreyA1 [Ashley Grey]
Assign to group:	×
Save Cancel	Help

- Click the Status dropdown to select the new status of the task. If the work is not yet completed choose In Progress and enter a start date. If the task is complete select Completed and enter the Complete Date.
- 6. Click **Save**. This action saves the new status so that the user who assigned the task will see that it's been started or completed.



# NOTE

When you have successfully completed a task, it is important to set the status to "completed" and also include a complete date. This will remove the task from your individual workflow, but will remain as a completed task for the specific event in the Task Tab.

### Updating Tasks from the Toolbar Tasks Icon

- 1. To update a task from the dashboard, first click the **Tasks** icon in the toolbar.
- 2. Review the tasks listed in the table.

Tasks for t	e select	ed event						
Туре	Priority	Due Date	Description Status Crea	ited By	Event	Ass	gned To Assigned To Group	Action
Assignment	Very Lov	v	Event assignment Pending Ashl	ey Grey (09	(27/2010) <u>10000159</u>		ey Grey <u>rt Task</u> ]	Edit Delete
My tasks (s	pecificall	y assigned	to me)					
- 11		Due Date	Description	Status	Created By	Event	Assigned To Assigned To Gr	
Other	Very High	09/30/2010	Cl refer.	Pending	DemoUser TB01 (09/28/2010)	100001664 - TB - Contact - Empor Palpatine	Ashley Grey [Start Task]	Edit Delete
Investigation	High	03/09/2010	Check Outbreak records	Pending	Ashley Grey (03/02/2010)	100000352 - TB - Active - Crisp Bacon	Ashley Grey [Start Task]	Edit Delete
Assignment	Medium		Event assignment	Pending	Ashley Grey (04/12/2010)	100001300 - Foodborne - Grey Goose	Ashley Grey [Start Task]	Edit Delete
Laboratory	Medium	10/29/2010	Need lab results to verify type of food	Pending	Ashley Grey (05/21/2010)	100001389 - Foodborne - Magic Mirror	Ashley Grey [Start Task]	Edit Delete
Assignment	Very Low		Event assignment	Pending	Ashley Grey (09/27/2010)	100001591 - Foodborne - Tree Turtle	Ashley Grey [Start Task]	Edit Delete
Outreach	Very High	09/16/2010	Tetanus	In Progress	Ninth Student (09/15/2010)	100001518 - Tetanus - Cheez Whiz Mr.	Ashley Grey	Edit Delete
Assignment			ELR Lab Need Review	In Progress	Ashley Grey (06/09/2010)	100000362 - Other - VPD - Swedish Meatball	Ashley Grey	Edit Delete
Assignment	Medium	10/30/2010	Case Management Reports Need to be Reviewed	In Progress	Alexandra Ecklund (03/26/2010)	100000147 - TB - Active - Magic Mirror	Ashley Grey	Edit
Outreach	Very Low	06/08/2010	Interview Subjects	In Progress	Ashley Grey (06/04/2010)	100001383 - TB - Active - Todd Bear	Ashley Grey	Edit Delete

Below is the description for the different columns:

Priority	The priority that was assigned to the event.
Туре	Describes the type of task selected by the creator of the task.
Event ID	The Event ID of a specific case, if the task is not tied to a specific Event, "Not specific to a case" will display.
Task	Click the link within this column to update the status of the task, to reassign the task to another person or group, or to read any notes associated with the task.
Due Date	The date by which this task should be completed. This is decided upon by the user creating the event.
Description	The description of the given task.
Status	The status of the task. The status will be pending when a task is first assigned.
Disease	The disease being reporting upon in the given event. This will be blank if the task is not tied to an event.
Created by	The user who created the task.
Last update	The last time the task was updated.
Assigned to	The person to whom the task is assigned. (May be blank if not assigned to an individual.)
Assigned to group	The group to whom the task is assigned. (May be blank if not assigned to a group.)



# NOTE

The list of tasks on the Tasks screen or the Tasks tab are organized based on type, priority and due date criteria and whether the task is pending, in progress or completed.

- 3. From the tasks screen, users can click the **Start Task** link and the start date will automatically be entered and the status will be updated.
- 4. To update a task manually, click **Edit** on the appropriate task to open the **Edit Task** screen.

ask Information	
Event:	100000156 - TB - Active - The Queen
Туре:	Assignment V
Status:	Completed 💙
Created By:	EckluA1 [Alexandra Ecklund]
Create Date:	03/25/2010
Last Update:	03/25/2010
Priority:	High 🔽
Due Date:	05/24/2010
Start Date:	05/19/2010
Complete Date:	05/21/2010
Description:	Case Management Reports Need to be Reviewed
Notes:	~
	2
Assign to user:	GreyA1 [Ashley Grey]
Assign to group:	×

- 5. The fields can be updated. To close the task, set the status to complete and enter a complete date.
- 6. When finished, click **Save**. This action saves the new status so that the user who assigned the task will see that it has been completed.



# NOTE

When creating events and a user is unknown, assign to a group so all users receive the email of the event assignment. When possible it is better to assign to a group rather than to an individual.

# **CHAPTER 9: LINKING PERSONS AND EVENTS**

MEDSS allows both people and events to be linked. These links can help with investigations by defining who the contacts are or can serve as social relationships to give households or guardian information. In addition, these links may provide more information to aid in the overall investigations and help define if outbreaks have occurred.

# Linking Events and Contacts

For some investigations, it can be helpful to link events to another disease or contact event in the system. To link different events together, follow these steps:

1. With an event open, click on the Linked Events/Contact icon in the MEDSS toolbar on the dashboard. There is also a link in the Event Summary section on the dashboard.

nt Summary	
int Summary	
Basic Information	
Event ID:	100001483
Disease:	Influenza
Primary Person:	Blue Bear Birth Date: 06/01/2010 (Male) Phone:
Dates:	Create Date: 07/13/2010 Event Date: 07/13/2010
Type:	Interactive
Investigation Statue:	Open
Linked Events/Contacts:	0 linked event(s)/contact(s) (View)
Linked Expective Sites:	0 linked exposure site(s) (View)
Attachments:	0 attachment(s) (Add)
Notifications:	Active outbreak: Outbreak A [Link to Outbreak] [Open]
	Disease Status: N/A
	Event Date: 07/13/2010
	Event Type: N/A

2. By clicking either link the screen below will appear.

Linked Ev	Linked Events - Blue Bear - Influenza							
Options								
Dashboard								
<u>Create Cas</u>								
Show Filter	Apply Filter   Rese	et Filter						
Linked Even	its							
Event ID &	Person	Status	Create Date	Disease	Effective From	Link Type	Relationship	Action
Displaying li	nk(s)0_0						<< First < Prev 1 /	1 Next > Last >>
Displaying								
Link Events								
Operation:	Create Linked Event	<b>V</b>						
Disease:	Influenza				Select Person			
Effective From:	10/04/2010					1		
Link Type:	Contact	$\sim$			Reset			
Relationship:								
First Name:		Mid	dle Name:	Last Na	ime:			
Suffix:		Mai	den/Other Name:	Alias:				

3. First, choose an operation:

Create Linked Event	This option will create a new event for a new person or an existing person in MEDSS. Before choosing this option, remember to search both by event and person to avoid duplications in the system. Steps for this option can be found in the next section.
Link to Existing Event	This option will create a link to an existing event in the system. This option can only be used if the user has access to the existing event.
Link to Multiple Events	This option will create a link to multiple existing events at the same time. Linking to multiple events is useful when creating multiple contact events to one source.

4. Next, choose a link type:

Contact	The person is in direct contact or associated with a communicable disease case. Typically the contact does not have a known disease (or infection) status but is under investigation due to exposure. Creating a link type of contact will result in the open event being set as the source and the newly linked event as the contact. Always be sure to have the correct event open when linking contacts.
Source	The original event that contacts are linked to. If links are created from a contact to a source (with the contact open) this option should be selected.
Epi- Linked	The person has been diagnosed with disease and is epidemiologically linked to a case (known person with this disease). An epidemiologic link is one where, after investigation of the parties involved, there is a clear probability that transmission of disease/infection occurred among/between the pair. Both events in this pair would be marked as epi-linked.
Lab-Linked	Indicates Pulsed Field Gel Electrophonesis (PFGE) identical results for enteric bacteria. Other lab results that clearly indicate isolation and identification of genetically identical (within the expectation of normal genetic variation) organisms from two or more individuals can also be considered to be lab linked events. Both events in this pair are marked as lab- linked.
Vertical	The person is a vertical (mother to child) contact. This relationship refers to the biological maternal-child relationships, not an adoptive or guardian relationship. Both events in this pair are marked as vertical.

**Other** Refers to a link type that is not on the list. Both events in this pair are marked as other.



5. Finally define the relationship if known.

Displaying lin	k(s) 00			
Link Events				
Operation:	Link To Existing Event 💟			
Disease:	Influenza		~	Select Event
	07/13/2010			0000012101111
From:	-			Reset
Link Type:	Contact			
Relationship:				
First Name:	Spouse	Middle Name:	Last Name:	
Blue	Child Sibling		Bear	
Suffix:	Co-worker	Maiden/Other Name:	Alias:	
	Care Giver Life Partner			
Birth Date:	Emergency Contact Extended Family	Gender:		
06/01/2010	Foster Child	Male		
Address Type	Friend Guardian	Street Address:		
Home	Daycare/School/College	625 Robert St N		
	Housemate Neighbor			
City:	Other Mother	State:	Zip Code:	
St. Paul	Father	MN 💌		
County:	Step-mother Step-father	Country:		
Llama Dhanai	Foster-mother	USA Vobile Phone:	Work Phone:	
Home Phone:	Foster-father	Mobile Phone.	work Phone:	
L				



# NOTE

By defining a relationship a relationship/person link will be created between the two persons in addition to the event link created between the two events. Only add a relationship if this is relevant information for the disease event.

6. After reviewing the information, click **Save**. The newly linked event will show in the Linked Events table.

Linked Ever	Linked Events - Blue Bear - Influenza							
Options	Options							
Dashboard     Create Case     Show Filter Li	<u>Link</u> Apply Filter   Reset Filter							
Linked Events								
Event ID &	Person	Status	Create Date	Disease	Effective From	Link Type	Relationship	Action
100001331	Baer, Geranium	Open	05/04/2010	Influenza		Contact		Edit Delete
Displaying link	(s) 11						<< First < Pi	rev 1 / 1 Next > Last >>
Link Events								
Operation:	Link To Existing Event							
Link Type:	Contact		Select Event					
Relationship:				_				
			Reset					
Save	Dashboard Help							

### Link Operation: Create Linked Event

The Create Linked Event operation creates a new disease event in MEDSS. It can be a more efficient way to added links, but users should be cautious to avoid creating duplicates in MEDSS. Follow the steps below when choosing the operation Create Linked Event:

- 7. To avoid duplications of events, only choose this operation after searching if the disease event exists in MEDSS.
- 8. Before creating a new person, use the Select Person button to search for the person in MEDSS.

Link Events				
Operation:	Create Linked Event			
Disease:	Influenza			Select Person
Effective From:	11/16/2010			
Link Type:	Contact 💟			Reset
Relationship:				
First Name:		Middle Name:	Last Name:	

- 9. In the Search Person window, enter the person details and click **Search**. If the person is found, highlight their name and click Use Selected Person. (This is the same when manually adding events to MEDSS as explained in Chapter 4.)
- 10. If the name is not found, Click Cancel.
- 11. The found name will be entered into the Link Events form. If the name was not found, the user should manually enter the person information.

Displaying link(s)	11		
Link Events			
Operation: Crea	ate Linked Event 🛛 🔽		
Disease: Influ	ienza		Select Person
	6/2010		
From:			Reset
Link Type: Sou			
Relationship:			
First Name:		Middle Name:	Last Name:
Fozzie		Q.	Bear
Suffix:		Maiden/Other Name:	Alias:
Birth Date:		Gender:	
04/15/1968		Unknown 💌	
Address Type:		Street Address:	
Home	<b>*</b>		
City:		State:	Zip Code:
		MN 💌	
County:		Country:	
Chippewa County	<b>V</b>	USA	
Home Phone:		Mobile Phone:	Work Phone:
Email:			
Save	Dashboard Help	]	

- 12. As explained earlier with adding events to MEDSS, the minimum requirement is the disease and both first and last name. Make sure these are defined and the Link Type.
- 13. When finished, click **Save** and the newly linked event will be listed on the Linked Events table.

Dashboard <u>Create Case Link</u> <u>Show Filter   Reset Filter</u>	
Show Filter   Apply Filter   Reset Filter	
Linked Events	
Event ID & Person Status Create Date Disease Effective From Link Type Relations	ship Action
100001856 Bear, Fozzie Q. Open 11/16/2010 Influenza 11/16/2010 Source	Edit Delete

# **Removing and Editing Event links**

After events are linked, they can be edited or removed by any user with access to that disease event. Follow the steps below for either action:

- 1. Open the Linked Events window by clicking the Linked Events/Contacts icon *in the toolbar or using the dashboard link.*
- 2. In the right action column, click on the Edit or Delete link.
- 3. The Edit link will bring the user to the Edit Event Link window where the user can change the Link Type, Relationship or add a Note.

Edit Event L	ink - Blue Bear - Influenza
Edit Event Lini	k l
Description:	100001483 (Blue Bear) linked to 100001856 (Fozzie Q. Bear)
Event ID:	100001856
Person:	Fozzie Q. Bear
Disease:	Influenza
Create Date:	11/16/2010
Effective From:	11/16/2010
Status:	Open
Link Type:	Source
Relationship:	
Notes:	
Save	Cancel Help

- 4. When finished, remember to **Save**. The changes will automatically update on the Linked Events table.
- 5. The **Delete** link will prompt the user to verify that the event link should be removed.

Disease	Effective From	Link Type	Relationship	Action			
Influenza	11/16/2010	Source		Edit D	elete		
		ge from webpage Are you sure you want to		ext > Last >>			
	_	ОК	Cancel				

- 6. If that removal is correct, click **Ok**. The changes will automatically update on the Linked Events table.
- 7. If the **Delete** link was erroneously clicked, click Cancel and no changes will occur.

# Sorting and Filtering

If multiple events are linked to the one event, a user can sort or filter the events to easily view the list of linked events. To sort, click on the heading of any column to change the order of the list (i.e. Event ID, Person, Status, Create Date, etc.).

To filter, follow the steps below:

1. Click on **Show Filter**. The options will appear.

Linked Events	- Yellow Rose	- Core						
Options								
<ul> <li>Dashboard</li> </ul>								
Create Case	Link							
+ Hide Filter   A	pply Filter   Reset	Filter						
Status:	*	Disease:					*	
Case status:	~	Jurisdiction			~			
Linked Events	5							
Event ID &	Person	Status	Create Date	Disease	Effective From	Link Type	Relationship	Action
100000211	Rose, Pink	Open	12/01/2009	Core	12/01/2009	Contact	Extended Family	Edit Delete

- 2. Input which filters you would want applied, and click on Apply Filter. The options are to see links based on status (open, closed), case status, disease and jurisdiction.
- 3. To clear the filter or reset the filter, click on Reset Filter.
- 4. To close the filter menu, click on Hide Filter.



# NOTE

The Linked Events form can be sorted (ascending or descending) by clicking the title head in each column. Only one sort criteria can be used at a time.

# Linking people (relationship links)

Person links are a way to define social relationships. This can be helpful if needing to enter guardian information or social contacts. The people in these links do not need to have a disease event in order to be linked. The important thing is to always search for the person before creating a new person in MEDSS in order to avoid duplicates. Linked people operation is found under the **Persons** tab on the dashboard.

To link people in the system, follow the steps below:

- 1. With an event open on the dashboard, go to the Linked People tab under the Persons tab.
- 2. Click on the Add Link button. A new window opens.

ld Person L	ink - Pink P Panther	
Add Person Lin	k	
Operation:	Link to Existing Person	
Relationship:	Spouse 💟	Select Person
		Reset
Save	Back Help	
0010	- Holp	

3. Choose the operation. A user can choose to link to an existing person or create a new person. If linking to an existing person, click on the **Select Person** button to do a person search. (This is the same searching as explained in Chapter 4.)



# NOTE

If you know the person you are linking to already has an event in the system, always use 'link to an existing person' in the operation drop down.

- 4. To create a new person in the system (and the Master Patient Index), choose that operation and fill out the person form that appears on the screen. This person will be added to the system <u>without</u> a corresponding disease.
- 5. Define a relationship and click **Save**. The new link will show under the Linked People tab.

nt Inform	nauon					
ent Data	Lab Results	Concerns	Persons	Tasks Event Properties	Event History	
Persons						
NAME		GENDER	BIRTH DATE	ADDRESS		STATUS
Pink P Pan	nther	Female	03/12/2007	5555 Hennepin Ave,	Minneapolis, MN 55414	Active
Basic Information		ress Linker nation People		Notes		
Linked Pe	ople					
RELATION		NAME	BIRTH DATE	ADDRESS	PHONE	EXTERNAL ID
Co-worker		Mouse, Minnie	06/30/1985	Apple Valley, MN	(H) (452) 546-2652 (C) (454) 535-4325	PEXEAMCSLCMKP
Neighbor		Turtle, Grey	06/01/1954	my street, Minneapolis, Mi	4	PEXEDOMGNBBUID



### IMPORTANT

It is important that before you create a new linked party, you do a persons search to avoid duplicates in the system. More on this is explained in Chapter 3.
## **Removing relationship links**

Since person links are found under the Persons tab, all users in MEDSS will have access to view the linked people. Any user in the system can then remove the person link. To remove person links, highlight the name and click on **Remove Link**. The link will then be removed.

Linked People			
RELATIONSHIP	NAME	BIRTH DATE	ADDRESS
Neighbor	Turtle, Grey	06/01/1954	my street, Minneapolis, MN
Co-worker	Mouse, Minnie	06/30/1985	Apple Valley, MN
Add Line Remove Li	nk		

## Overview of all links

MEDSS offers both event and person links and both can help aid in investigations and outbreaks. Event links can only be viewed by users who have access to both linked events; however, person links can be viewed by all MEDSS users who have access to that person. Remember that by defining a relationship when linking events will automatically create a person link. If that event link is later removed, the person link will remain.

# **CHAPTER 10: LINKING AND MANAGING EXPOSURE SITES**

An exposure site is a location where a person may have been exposed to a disease or a biological or chemical agent. The ability to link exposure sites to person events is an extra feature in MEDSS and may not be used by all disease groups. The exposure sites functionality allows for exposure sites to be shared across different disease (or outbreak) events and minimizes data entry. Other benefits of this functionality are as follows:

- Locating all events which are linked to a specific site is simplified.
- Exposure site locations can be plotted on maps to provide a visual representation of the sites on a map.
- The ability to reuse the exposure sites provides for consistency across events.
- Exposure sites can be deduplicated. The deduplication criteria are specific to the street address of the location.

Similar to linking events, there is no limit to the number of exposure sites that can be linked to a particular event.

### Exposure Site Link Types

The ability to link exposure sites provides flexibility within the system. The link types are as follows:

Exposure Site	A site at which the person(s) may have been exposed to a disease
	or a biological or chemical agent.

**Other** A site which may need to be tracked in the system that was not necessarily a site of exposure.

### Setting Types

In addition to specifying the site link type, it is also possible to specify the setting of the potential exposure. Below are the setting types and examples:

Athletics	Stadium, municipal softball grounds
Camp	Day camp, overnight camp
Community	Routine, incidental contact through normal day-to-day activities (shopping, festivals, flea markets)
Child Care	Licensed, unlicensed, home care
Farm	Animal, crop
Home	Place of residence, summer home
Hospital / Clinic	In addition to a typical in-patient hospital facility, doctor's office, free clinic, emergency care clinic
Hotel / Motel	Also includes bed and breakfast

Laboratory	Chemical lab, medical lab, environmental lab	
LTC Facility	Long-term Care Facility - Nursing home, Hospice	
Military	In addition to a base, an exposure that during military training or deployment	
Other	Anything that doesn't fall into one of the named categories	
Outdoors	General term to be used only when the site of an outdoor exposure is not more specifically defined on this list	
Place of Worship	Mosque, church, synagogue	
Pond / Lake / River	Also includes creek, waterfall	
Pool / Spa	Community pool, backyard pool, water park, resort spa	
Prison / Jail	Juvenile home, correctional facility	
Restaurant	In addition to typical restaurant dining, mobile lunch carts, food stands at fairs.	
School	Elementary, middle, high, charter, Montessori	
Shelter	Homeless shelter, women's shelter, children's shelter	
Social Gathering	Party, reunion, book club	
Travel Conveyance	Airplane, cruise ship, train, bus	
University / College	Community college, privately funded college	
Unknown	Not known	
Work	Place of work	

## Linking Events to Exposure Sites

To link an exposure site to an event, open the event to which you would like to link an exposure site. Then follow the steps below:

1. Click on the **Linked Exposure Sites** icon in the MEDSS toolbar. You can also click the word *View* beside Linked Exposure Sites in the basic information section.

inked Exposure Sites					
xposure Site Name	Туре	Address	Link Type	Link Details	Action
eate New Link					
ik Type:	Exposure	Site 💟 Search			
nk Details:		$\smile$			
			~		
posure Site Information					
posure Site Name:					
rpe: otes:	Athletics				
oles.					
			<u>v</u>		
ontact Information rst Name:					
rst Name: ast Name:					
reet 1:					
reet 2:					
ity:					
tate:	MN 🔛				
p Code:					
ountry:	USA		2		
hone:					
ax:					
mail:					

- 2. A new window appears with a table displaying at the top which lists all of the current links and a form beneath the table which enables the user to add a new linked site.
- 3. Click on **Search** next to Link type to see if the site is already listed in the system. This helps avoid duplication of exposure locations. Deduplication is based on the address of the location.
- 4. A Search Exposure Sites search window appears. Fill in the address information. The more information entered will narrow the search, and it may help to search more broadly first.

Search E	xposure Sites			
Type: Name: City:	Hospita//Clinic	Street Address: 2155 Ford Pkwy State:	Zip Code:	
	Clear			
Search Res	ults			
Name		Туре	Address	
No Search F	Results			
Select	ancel			

- 5. If results are found, they will appear in the search results. To choose, double click or highlight the name and click on **Select**. The Exposure site information box will autopopulate with the location information.
- 6. After reviewing click **Save** to create a new exposure site.
- 7. If the name is not found, click **Cancel** and you will be brought back to the Linked Exposure Site screen. You will need to enter the location information in the fields provided. Remember to use US Address formatting standards (see Appendix B).

Create New Link	
Link Type:	Exposure Site Search
Link Details:	
Exposure Site Information	
Exposure Site Name:	Fairview Highland Park Clinic
Type:	Hospita/Clinic 💟
Notes:	
Contact Information	
First Name:	Betty
Last Name:	White, RN
Street 1:	2155 Ford Parkway
Street 2:	
City:	St. Paul
State:	MN 💟
Zip Code:	55116
Country:	USA
Phone:	(651) 999-9999
Fax:	(651) 999-9990
Email:	
Save Dashboard Help	

8. When finished click **Save** and the link will be created. The location will appear in the top table. Below the image is a description of each column for the table.

Linked Exposure Sites							
Exposure Site Name	Туре	Address	Link Type	Link Details	Action		
Fairview Highland Park Clinic	Hospital/Clinic	2155 Ford Parkway, St. Paul, MN 55116	Exposure Site		View Linked Events	Edit Link	Delete Link

Exposure Site Name	The name of the exposure site; click the link to edit the address information or contact information, add a note, or view the GIS information.
Туре	The kind of setting that was selected from the dropdown list.
Address	The street address, city, state, and zip code.
Link Type	The type of location that was created – exposure site or other.
Link Details	Notes which are specific to the link between the person and the exposure site. These are only visible when the person's event is open.
Action	Allows the user to view all the linked events to that site (if the user has the permission to see the disease events). Also in this column are two other actions: edit the link type or delete the link. Editing link type allows user to change if the link was an exposure site or other. Deleting the link does not remove the exposure site from the

database.

## Managing Exposure Sites

The manage exposure sites feature is used primarily to enter multiple exposure sites into the system, without linking to a particular event, and to edit locations currently in the system. Additionally, it can be used to view the events which are linked to a specific exposure location.

Follow the steps below to search and edit exposure locations:

1. Click on the Manage Exposure Sites icon in the toolbar. This will show the Manage exposure sites screen shown below.

Manage Exposure Sites			
Manage Exposure Sites			
Type:			
Name: Street	t Address:		
City: State:	Zip Code:		
Search Clear Dashboard			
Search Results Name	Type Address	0.0	lion
No Search Results	Type Address	AL	lion
No Search Results			
Add Exposure Site			
Exposure Site Name:			
Туре:	Athletics		
Notes:		<u></u>	
Contact Information			
First Name:			
Last Name:			
Phone:			
Fax:			
Email:			
Street 1:			
Street 2:			
City:			
State:	MN 💟		
Zip Code:			
Country:	USA		
Save Dashboard Help			

2. To view entire list of exposure sites in a specific category, choose the type, then click **Search**.

Manage E	Exposure Sites	
Type: Name: City:	Camp 💽	Street Ac
Search	Clear Dashboard	

3. The list will appear.

Search Results			
Name	Туре	Address	Action
Girl Scout camp	Camp	1234 Main Ramsey MN 55555	View Linked Events Edit
soccer camp	Camp	Blaine MN	View Linked Events Edit
Hockey camp	Camp	Hastings MN	View Linked Events Edit
Adventure camp	Camp	555 Green way Milaca MN	View Linked Events Edit

4. The user has the option to edit the address or contact information. To do this click on **Edit** in the action column.

Edit Exposure Sit	e
Exposure Site Inform	ation
Exposure Site Name:	Girl Scout camp
Туре:	Camp
Notes:	Camp A
Contact Information	
First Name:	Bob
Last Name:	Smith
Phone:	(651) 777-9999
Fax:	
Email:	
Street 1:	1234 Main
Street 2:	
City:	Ramsey
State:	MN 💟
Zip Code:	55555
Country:	USA
GIS Info:	Validation Error
Deduplication Status:	Pending 💟
Save Cance	I Help

5. A user also has the option to View Linked Events by clicking on that link in the action column.

Exposure	Site Name	Galactic S	pace Camp						
Туре		Camp							
Address		123 Droid	Ave, Maple G	rove, MN 55	555-5555				
				,					
Linked Ca	ses								
Event ID	Person	Status	Create Date	Disease			Effective From	Link Date	Link Type
100001380	Nella, Salm	no Open	05/17/2010	Salmonella	(including	Typhi)	05/17/2010	10/07/2010	Exposure S
100000061	Mouse, Mic	key Open	05/11/2009	Salmonella	(including	Typhi)	05/11/2009	10/07/2010	Exposure S
100001368	River, Phoe	enix Open	05/11/2010	Salmonella	(including	Typhi)	05/11/2010	10/07/2010	Exposure S

6. This action presents the user with a screen which displays all the events linked to the specific exposure site. Click the **Event ID** link to open the event in the Dashboard.

### Add New Exposure Sites

Within the Manage Exposure Sites window, users can add new exposure locations without linking them to an event.

To add new exposure locations, follow the steps below:

7. To add a new exposure site (after determining that it is already not in the system with the search above) fill out the Add Exposure Site form. Remember to use US Address formatting standards (see Appendix B).

Add Exposure Site		
Exposure Site Name:	Galactic Space Camp	
Туре:	Camp	
Notes:	<u>^</u>	
Contact Information		
First Name:	Gary	
Last Name:	Spaceman	
Phone:	(612) 555-5555	
Fax:		
Email:	spaceiscool@yahoo.com	
Street 1:	123 Droid Ave	
Street 2:		
City:	Maple Grove	
State:	MN 💟	
Zip Code:	55555-5555	
Country:	USA 🔽	
Save Dashboard Help		

8. When finished click **Save**. The site will be entered into the database and the screen will clear. Now any event can be linked to the exposure location.

## **CHAPTER 11: SHARING EVENTS**

Sharing events or cases can be useful, for example, when multiple counties are working together during a contact investigation. Sharing allows the case to be open among the jurisdictions during the investigation. Not all users will have access to open up an event/case for someone (another county or group) who normally doesn't have access to the case.

### Sharing events

Before sharing events, users should define the jurisdiction in the Administrative QP. That field may open the event for a jurisdiction, thus eliminating the need to share an event.

However, if an event needs to be shared with multiple counties or investigators, follow the steps below.

- 1. Open the case you want to share in the dashboard screen.
- 2. Click on the **Share Case** icon in the toolbar. The screen below will appear that shows existing shared cases and allows the user to add a share.

Currenti	ly Shared									
Event	Person	Status	Disease	Туре	Shared Date	Shared By	User	User Group	Allow Delegation	Action
Person:		dy beauty Bu	g							
Disease	:: He	aring Loss								
Туре:	Vie	w Only Limited	~							
User:					~					
User Gro	oup:		~							
	elegation:									

3. Select what type of access you want to share:

View Only Limited	Provides the ability to see a limited number of questions. The person or group the event is shared with will not be able to edit the event, only read the information.
View Only Full	Provides the full range of questions. Editing is not possible with this setting. The person or group the event is shared with will not be able to edit the event, only read the information.
View and Update Limited	Users will be able to view and edit a limited number of questions.
View and Update Full	Users will be able to view and edit the full range of questions.

4. Select the **User** or **Group** you want to share the case with.



## IMPORTANT

It's preferred if events are shared with groups rather than individual users, this will allow for the receiving group to access the event even if the individuals or responsibilities within the group changes.

- 5. Check the box **Allow Delegation** to allow the user/group with whom you are sharing the case with to have the ability to share it with another user or group.
- 6. When finished, click **Save**.

Share Even	t - Lady beauty	Bug - H	learing Loss							
Currently S	have d									_
	a second between the second		0			er. 10				
	Person		Disease	Туре	Shared Date		User	User Group		Action
10000239	Lady beauty Bug	Open	Hearing Loss	View Only Limited	12/16/2009	StudeS1_test [Second Student]		State - Birth Defects	No	Unshare
Add Event	Share									
Event ID:	100000239									
Person:	Lady beauty	/ Bua								
Disease:	Hearing Los									
Type:	View Only Limit									
User:					~					
					<u> </u>					
User Group	0		*							
Allow Deleg	ation: 🗖									
Save	Dashboard	Help								
Jave	Cashooard	nep								

TIP	ТІР
	After sharing an event, the event will be located in the workflows <b>Shared Cases –</b> <b>Cases shared by me</b> and <b>Shared Cases – Cases shared with me or my</b> <b>group</b> . Users will not receive any notification that a case has been shared with them, but users can create tasks to notify other users of the share.

## **Un-share an Event**

Un-sharing an event will close the access to that event by the shared user. Only the user who created the share can un-share an event (unless Allow Delegation was selected which allows a two-way share link).

To un-share an event, follow the steps below:

- 1. Open the case you want to share in the dashboard screen.
- 2. Click on the **Share Case** icon in the toolbar.
- 3. The user will see the users with whom the event is being shared with.

Currentity	Shared									
Event	Person	Status	Disease	Туре	Shared Date	Shared By	User	User Group	Allow Dele	gation Action
100001562	Pantner	Open	TB - Contact	View & Update Full	08/31/2010	TestUser_LPH_Hennepin [TestUser LPH Hennepin]	TestUser_LPH_Ramsey [TestUser LPH Ramsey]		Yes	Unshan
100001562	Pink P Panther	Open	TB - Contact	View & Update Full	08/31/2010	TestUser_LPH_Ramsey [TestUser LPH Ramsey]		State - Tuberculosis	No	Unshan
Add Even Event ID. Person: Disease Type.	10 Pi TE	000156 nk P Pa 3 - Conti ew Only L	nther act	i						

4. In the right action column, click on the **Un-share** link to remove the sharing.

	User Group	Allow Deleg	gation Action
ser		Yes	Unshare
	State - Tuberculosis	No	Unshare

5. MEDSS will confirm that the share should be removed.

# **CHAPTER 12: DATA OUT- PRINTING AND REPORTS**

Within MEDSS there are a couple different ways to query the data or extract the data to manipulate in data software programs. MEDSS offers different print documents that can be disease specific and can run simple reports to show comparisons and counts. However each disease group will also be able to extract an entire report to export to a data software program such as Microsoft Excel or SASS.

# Different ways of getting data out of MEDSS

Pre-set reports	Pre-defined reports created by the system developers. Sophisticated reports with a variety of calculations and outputs.
Ad-hoc reports	Reports created by the system administrators and advanced users. Ad-hoc reports can have queries and summaries, but are somewhat limited in what they can provide.
Data extracts	A report where the output from the report is provided as an extract file.
Event print	System generated print document which prints every question that has been answered in the active event.
Print templates	The print templates are used to print information about one case/event in a standardized format.

# Printing information

In MEDSS, printing can be done by creating print templates that can be automatically updated with the event's information or by using set print documents such as an Event Print which will print all the answered data fields. Both methods are explained below.

## Print Templates

MEDSS allows common letters, forms, and other documentation to be printed with pre-populated information about the disease event and the person. To print a document the user must first select an event to be referenced and then click the **Print** icon in the toolbar. Follow the steps below to print a document using MEDSS.

1. Open the event that needs printed documentation.

vent Summary									
Basic Information	on					Notes (A	Add/Edit   Show My Note	es)	
Event ID:		100000156							
Disease:		TB - Active							
Primary Person:		5555			Phone: (555) 555-				
Dates:		Create Date: (	9/17/2009 Even	t Date: 09/17/20	09				
Type:		Interactive							
Investigation Statu		Open							
Linked Events/Con			s)/contact(s) (Vi						
Linked Exposure S	Sites:		0 linked exposure site(s) ( <u>View</u> )						
Attachments:									
Notifications:			ak: Outbreak10						
				ik St. Paul Day	Camps January				
			Outbreak] [Open]						
			ak: TB trial 3.3						
			ak: Test [Link to	Outbreak] [Ope	en				
		Disease Statu Event Date: 09							
		Event Type: N							
Edit Event Propert	ies	Copy Event	A						
vent Information									

- 2. Click the **Print** icon in the MEDSS toolbar.
- 3. A screen will appear listing all documents available for printing for the specific event. This screen is different depending on the disease specified in the event.

Print Documents			
Document	Description	Person	Action
Event_Print.xsl	Event Print	The Queen	Open
TB_Boyton_Report.rtf	TB Boyton Report	The Queen	Open
TB_CDC_FollowUp1.rtf	Report of Verified Case of Tuberculosis (Follow UP Report - 1)	The Queen	Open
TB_CDC_FollowUp2.rtf	Report of Verified Case of Tuberculosis (Follow UP Report - 2)	The Queen	Open
TB_CDC_Report.rtf	Report of Verified Case of Tuberculosis	The Queen	Open
TB_Case_Management_Report_Bact_DrugRep.rtf	TB Case Management	The Queen	Open
TB_Case_Management_Summary.rtf	TB Case Management Summary	The Queen	Open
TB_Case_Notification.rtf	TB Case Notification	The Queen	Open
TB_Case_Record.rtf	TB Case Record	The Queen	Open
TB_Case_Report.rtf	TB Case Report	The Queen	Open
TB_Information_Exchange.rtf	TB Information Exchange	The Queen	Open
TB_Interjurisdictional_Notification.rtf	TB Interjurisdictional Notification	The Queen	Open
TB Interjurisdictional Notification Followup.rtf	TB Interjurisdictional Notification Follow-up	The Queen	Open

- 4. Locate the document template you want to use in the list.
- 5. Click the link in the Action column that says Open.
- 6. A screen similar to the one below will display prompting the user to **Open** or **Save** the document.

File Do	wnload	×
Do you	want to open or save this file?	
	Name: 100000113_TB_Case_Notification.rtf Type: Rich Text Format, 18.2KB From: apps-test.health.state.mn.us	
	Open Save Cancel	1
3	While files from the Internet can be useful, some files can potentially harm your computer. If you do not trust the source, do not open or save this file	



- 7. Click **Open** to immediately open the document in Word or **Save** to save it before opening. (If the user clicks Save, a Save As window displays such that the user must designate a location in which to save the document.)
- 8. A document opens in a new window. Data from the event populates the document. The boxes in gray are editable and can be modified if they are incorrect or incomplete. The boxes which highlight the patient information were automatically filled in by MEDSS based on information which had been entered into the event.

	DEPARTMENT OF HEALT	
	y Intervention Program Referra t/child has been diagnosed with a hear determination of eligibility of	ring loss and is being referred to you for
	Please fax back form within 48 ho	
	MDH Newborn and Child Follow	
	651-201-3655 (confident	
	Referral Source Contact Inf	ormation
		luly 10, 2009
Person Making Referral: Nicole Bro Address: 85 E 7 <sup>th</sup> Place, PO Box 6 Office Phone: 651-201-3737		
Address: 85 E 7* Place , PO Box 6	4882, St. Paul, MN 55164-0882	luly 10, 2009 E-mail: nicole.brown@state.mn.us
Address: 85 E 7* Place , PO Box 6	4882, St. Paul, MN 55164-0882 Office Fax: 651-201-3655	E-mail: nicole.brown@state.mn.us
Address: 85 Ĕ 7 <sup>th</sup> Place , PO Box 6 Office Phone: 651-201-3737	4882, St. Paul, MN 55164-0882	E-mail: nicole.brown@state.mn.us
Address: 85 E 7* Place , PO Box 6	4882, St. Paul, MN 55164-0882 Office Fax: 651-201-3655	E-mail: nicole.brown@state.mn.us
Address: 85 Ĕ 7* Place , PO Box 6 Office Phone: 651-201-3737 Program Name:	4882, St. Paul, MN 55164-0882 Office Fax: 651-201-3655 Early Intervention Program Conta	E-mail: nicole brown@state.mn.us
Address: 85 Ĕ 7* Place , PO Box 6 Office Phone: 651-201-3737 Program Name:	4882, St. Paul, MN 55164-0882 Office Fax: 651-201-3655 Early Intervention Program Conta	E-mail: nicole brown@state.rm.us act Information E-mail:
Address: 85 E 7* Place, PO Box6 Office Phone: 651-201-3737 Program Name: Office Phone:	4882, St. Paul, NN 65164-0882 Office Fax: 651-201-3655 Early Intervention Program Cont: Office Fax:	E-mail: nicole brown@state.rm.us act Information E-mail:
Address: 85 E 7+ Place, PO Box 6 Office Phone: 651-201-3737 Program Name: Office Phone: Office Phone: Child Name: Lady, Bug Date of Birth: 05/12/2008 Home Address:	4882, St. Paul, NN 65164-0882 Office Fax: 651-201-3655 Early Intervention Program Cont: Office Fax:	E-mail: nicole brown@state.rm.us act Information E-mail:
Address: 85 E 7r Place, PO Box6 Office Phone: 651-201-3737 Program Name: Office Phone: Office Phone: Child Name: Lady, Bug Date of Birth: 05/12/2008	4882, St. Paul, INI 65 164-0882 Office Fax: 651-201-3655 Early Intervention Program Conta Office Fax: Parent/Child Contact Info	E-mail: nicole brown@state.rm.us act Information E-mail:
Address: 85 E 7+ Place, PO Box 6 Office Phone: 651-201-3737 Program Name: Office Phone: Office Phone: Child Name: Lady, Bug Date of Birth: 05/12/2008 Home Address:	4882, St. Paul, INI 65 164-0882 Office Fax: 651-201-3655 Early Intervention Program Conta Office Fax: Parent/Child Contact Info	E-mail: nicole brown@state.rm.us act Information E-mail:

B	NOTE
	If there is pre-populated data that is missing or incorrect in the print document, it's possible to change this directly in the word document before it's printed. However doing this will NOT change the data if the same document is printed in the future. To retain the changes the user MUST go back into MEDSS to make the updates and then run the print template again.

9. To print a hard copy of a document, click the **Print** option within the application. For example, in Microsoft Word, click **File/Print** to print the document.

10. From MEDSS **Print Documents** screen, click the **Dashboard** button to return to MEDSS Dashboard.



#### **Event Print**

MEDSS offers a default print document which prints every question that has been answered in the active event. This is called Event Print. This print document is also unique in that it opens in a browser as opposed to within Microsoft Word. Please note that the only way to "edit" this document is to change data within the current event.

The Event Print file can also be used in the process of deduplication. Only some users will have the authority to deduplicate events in the system, and the process will be explained in a separate document. When trying to determine which event or person to set as the primary, it is helpful to use the print feature to see how much information has been added to the duplicate records.

To use the Event Print function, follow the steps below:

- 1. With an event open on the dashboard, click the Print icon in the toolbar.
- 2. Locate the document Event\_Print.xsl and in the right action column, click **Open**.

Print Documents - Monster Print Documents	ABC - ABC		
Document	Description	Person	Action
Event_Print.xsl	Event Print	Monster ABC	Open

3. A new browser window will open that will show each Question Package and all the answered data fields.

		Print Date: 11/16/2010
Summary:		
Maven Event ID: 100001570 Investigation	n Status: Open	
Event Date: 09/07/2010	Patient	
Disease: ABC Created by/I	Date: GreyA1, 09/07/2010	
Lab Results		
1. Administrative Report Information		
1. Administrative Report Information Other Report Information ( ) a.1 Administrative		
Other Report Information ( )	Not applicable	
Other Report Information ( ) a.1 Administrative	Not applicable ALLINA LABORATORIES- UNITED HOSP SITE, SAINT PAUL, MN	
Other Report Information () a.1 Administrative Medical record status Laboratory where toxin assay performed	ALLINA LABORATORIES- UNITED HOSP SITE, SAINT PAUL,	
Other Report Information () a.1 Administrative Medical record status	ALLINA LABORATORIES- UNITED HOSP SITE, SAINT PAUL, MN	

4. To print, use the print icon on your browser's window or File → Print to send the document to your default printer.



5. When finished, close the window and hit the Dashboard button to get back.

### Browser print function

When printing in MEDSS, many times it will be more convenient to use the File  $\rightarrow$  Print function from the browser window. However, at times formatting will be difficult to control and your print document will be unreadable.

Therefore below are some tips for printing in MEDSS:

- When printing Question Packages, use the Event print function.
- When printing lab reports, print from the dashboard.
- When printing your tasks, print from the workflow queue. It will print only tasks assigned to you.

# **Using Reports in MEDSS**

Reports generally are not based on a specific event; therefore, it is not necessary to have an event selected before running a report. Reports can be displayed in a non-editable format within the browser window or can be exported to an external application such as Excel. Exporting data allows for it to be manipulated, formatted, or even graphed. This is great option if looking to compare more complex variables than what MEDSS can offer.

### Run a report, show result on the screen

- 1. From MEDSS Dashboard, click the **Reports** icon in the MEDSS toolbar.
- 2. A screen displays with a dropdown list of different categories.

Category:	Audit Reports	1
Select Report:	Audit Reports CORE	~
Run Report	Case Management Reports Custom Reports FLU GIS Reports LARS Metadata Management Reports System Management Reports	lp

3. Pick the category that fits your needs. Most disease specific reports will be under Custom reports or different disease group specific reports.

B	NOTE
	Different users will have access to different reports in the system. All users will be able to access the Core reports which lists different case counts reports.

4. From the Select Report dropdown list and select the desired report.

Category:	Custom Reports	
Select Report:		~
		~
	Contact Network Graph	
Run Report	Daily Summary of H1N1 Activity	
	Exposure Sites	
	Flu Daily Report	
	Foodnet Report	
	HL Hands and Voices Referral Report (by initial parent letter sent date)	
	HL MN Hand and Voices -Monthly	
	Influenza Adult EIP	
	Influenza Pediatric EIP	
	Maven Data and Dedup Status	
	Open Cases	
	Open Cases Older Than 30 Days	
	Open Cases with Active Concerns	
	Open Cases with Pending Requirements	
	Reference - Action Processing Hourly Distribution	
	Reference - Cases without Participants	
	Reference - Import Processing Hourly Distribution	
	Reference - List of Reference Codes by Primary Code Group	
	Reference - List of Reference Groups	
	Reference - Report Execution Frequencies	
	Reference - Unassociated Workflows	
	Retrieve All Answers for a Case	
	Sample Advanced Report	
	Sample Chart	
	TB Cases Count by Month	
	TB Cases Sent to CDC	
	TB Contact Completion of Therapy	
	TB Contact Investigation Status	
	TB Drug Susceptibility	Y

5. Most reports will at least ask for a **Start Date** and **End Date** to define what data should be included.

Category:	Custom Reports
Select Repo	t: HL MN Hand and Voices -Monthly
Description:	HL MN Hand and Voices -Monthly
Start Date:	12/25/09
End Date:	04/25/10
Due Desert	Export Results Dashboard Help
Run Report	Export Results Dashboard Help

6. To view the report in a browser window, click the **Run Report** button. This will display the results in a new window and the user will be unable to change the formatting of the data.

HL MN Hand and Voices -Monthly Report Period: 12/25/09-04/25/10								
Event ID	Create Date	First Name	Last Name	Birth date	Mother's First Name	Mother's Last Name	FS_REFERRAL_DATE	Family Support Contact Date(MM/DD/YYYY)
100001270	03/19/2010	Babygirl	Smith	10/30/2009				
100001271	03/19/2010	Flakey	Dough	11/25/1999				
100001303	04/13/2010	Babs	Babaloo	05/05/1955				
Case count i	3							

### Selection Criteria

Most of the reports in MEDSS require some parameters for the user to enter so MEDSS knows which events to include in the report. Below are some helpful tips when entering those selection criteria:

- The Start Date and End Date are based on the Episode date located in the Administrative QP. If this field is blank, the event will not be included.
- If a user needs to see the data for the current day, the end date should be set to the next day's date.
- Some reports require a disease to be selected. Users can choose one disease or multiple by using the shift or control buttons on the keyboard.
  - The shift key will select all entries between the first and last one selected.
  - The control key allows users to pick and choose specific diseases.
  - o Clicking without holding one of these keys will delete the selection list.
- Some reports require a county or jurisdiction to be entered. To select all counties, press the shift key after clicking the first and last county.
- Remember to fill in all parameters in order for the report to run.

#### Export the results from a report

 Follow the steps to select the report and set the parameters as described above. To view the report in Excel, rather than clicking the **Run Report** button, click the **Export Results** button instead.

Category:	Custom Reports
Select Report:	HL MN Hand and Voices -Monthly
Description:	HL MN Hand and Voices -Monthly
Start Date:	12/25/09
End Date:	04/25/10
Run Report	Export Results Dashboard Help

2. The user will be prompted with a security warning from Microsoft. (It may not look exactly as shown below, depending upon software version.)

Do you v	vant to open or save this file?
	Name: Events (Open) Per Disease Type: Microsoft Excel Worksheet From: localhost Open Save Cancel
	While files from the Internet can be useful, this file type can notentially harm your computer. If you do not trust the source, do not

- 3. Click **Open** to immediately open the report or **Save** to save it before opening. (If the user clicks Save, a Save As window displays so the user must designate a location in which to store the report.)
- 4. The report opens and the data is able to be manipulated within the limits of Excel. The following image is of a report which has been opened in Excel.



### Data Extracts

Most groups in MEDSS will be able to extract all of their data out of MEDSS to manipulate in other programs such as Access or SASS. The extract is based on all of the fields in that disease's question packages and will only show the field if data has been entered for at least one event included in that report. To access the extract report, go to Cutom Reports and choose the report entitled *Case Information Extract*. After filling in the parameters (dates, disease and QPs to include), click Run Report and the extract will open in Microsoft Excel.

## SUMMARY

**MEDSS** is an all purpose electronic data tracking system that allows events to be shared, linked, and assigned for easier management. The system is person centric, so all information is organized around the person not the event or disease. The same person can be entered into the system with various diseases over time; each instance resulting in a different event in the MEDSS system. This is important to remember to avoid person duplications that can slow the system. The **MEDSS** dashboard is divided into four sections. The top two sections help navigation while the bottom two sections are for inputting information on the person and event.

#### Some important tips to remember:

- When navigating in MEDSS, do NOT use the browser's back button, use the Dashboard link on the screen.
- Save your work often- the system times out after twenty minutes of inactivity.
- Before adding a new event, always search twice by person and event.
- Wildcard characters (\*) help searching for a person easier when a user is unsure which characters are used.
- Question package is a set of questions with a common theme. Inside a QP is where some data on the event can be added, modified, or deleted.
- Wizards show the standard data entry forms and may be available for some diseases.
- Demographic information can be edited in several different areas depending on the question: under Persons tab, Demographic QP, or Edit Event Properties.
- All cases' activity can be tracked under the Event Audit Trail Tab for data security and privacy protection.
- Recent cases button on the toolbar help organize and locate the past 20 cases the user was working on.
- Workflows, which are your electronic To-Do lists, and are updated by rules built into the MEDSS system.
- Tasks are to do lists that are created manually either by yourself or another staff member and assigned. You can find tasks using the task icon in the toolbar or by going to workflows.
- Print templates allow for some data from the QPs to automatically be updated on the document before printing.
- Reports are used to extract data from the MEDSS system and can either be viewed on the screen or extracted in Excel.
- Sharing allows cases to be open to different jurisdictions, but not all users have access to open the event for someone.
- MEDSS allows event, person and exposure location links to help with investigations.

# **Getting Help**

If you need help at anytime, here are the resources available to you:

- On-line help in the system (help button)
- ✤ IS&TM Helpdesk→ Enter MEDSS in the Assigned to field
- E-mail to group: Health.MEDSS@state.mn.us
- Through the internal website: <u>http://fyi.health.state.mn.us/it/medss/index.html</u>
- Through the external website: <u>www.health.state.mn.us/medss</u>

# **APPENDIX A: CORE FIELDS DATA DICTIONARY**

The core field data dictionary outlines all the core fields by name; defines the fields; and indicates corresponding drop down options. These core fields are visible in all disease events. Some of these fields will display in a different order depending on the disease event. This data dictionary is divided into sections based on all available functions in MEDSS that belong to the core model (e.g. create an event, question packages, etc).

Field Name	Description	Data entry guidelines	
	Create Event Fields		
Effective From	This is automatically filled in with today's date indicating when the event was entered into MEDSS	Leave as default	
Disease	A drop down list will show the diseases the user has access to	If no applicable disease can be found on the drop-down use one of the 'other' diseases.	
	Person Fields		
First Name	First name of the case, required field	Capitalize as appears on the case report. If unknown, leave blank	
Middle Name	Middle name of the case	Capitalize as appears on the case report	
Last Name	Last name of the case, required field	Capitalize as appears on the case report. If unknown, use some kind of identification number. Do not leave blank	
Suffix	The suffix of the case	Examples include Jr, Sr, 2rd, II, IV	
Maiden/Other Name	All other last names or previously used last names		
Alias	Nicknames, aliases or other first names of the case. Multiple Aliases can be entered	Separate each Alias with a comma	
Birth Date	Birth date of the case in the format mm/dd/yyyy.	If birth date is not entered, age should be entered into the Demographic QP	
Death Date	Death date of the case	Death date can be entered only on the Edit person screen, but is visible in the question packages.	

Field Name	Description	Data entry guidelines
Gender	Gender of the case (female, male, unknown, other)	
Mother's Maiden Name	Mother's maiden name of the person/client	
Deduplication Status	The status of the deduplication process of the person if the person was in system more than once. Options include done, pending, merged	This is a system field, please don't change
	Address Fields	
Address Type	Indicates the type of address entered into the address fields (Options include: Home, work, company, guardian, mailing, vacation, other, homeless, correctional facility, long- term care facility, shelter, group home)	
Start Date	When the address is effective from	Default will be 01/01/1900
End Date	When the address is no longer valid or when the case will no longer reside at that location	Default will be 01/01/2030
Street Address	The building number and street name of the address. Be as accurate as possible to optimize geo-coding	Use one space (not dashes) between building number and the street name. Use directionals after street type e.g. 123 Main St N
City	The city the address is located in. If uncertain leave the city blank and enter street, state and zip code in appropriate fields	Try to use the correct city for the address if possible. Do not generalize by using bigger city names e.g. use Brooklyn Park not Minneapolis or use Shoreview not St Paul
State	The state the address is located in	Default is MN
Zip Code	The zip code of the address	

Field Name	Description	Data entry guidelines
County	The county of the address. This field is important to know to define jurisdiction	If the address is entered correctly, county will be populated automatically by the geo-coding process.
Country	The country of the address	
Home Phone	Home phone of the case	Area code required. Default format is (555) 555-5555
Mobile Phone	Cell or mobile phone of the case	Area code required. Default format is (555) 555-5555
Work Phone	Work phone of the case	Area code required. Default format is (555) 555-5555
E-Mail	Email address of the case	
Contact Method	The case's preferred method of contact (Options include: Mail, home phone, work phone, Mobile phone, email, do not contact)	
	Basic Information (on dashboard) I	Display only
Event ID	The Unique identifier of the event in MEDSS	Calculated automatically
Disease	The disease of the event	This is the same as the disease selected when the event was created
Primary Person	The name, birth date, gender and phone of the case	
Dates	Create date and the event date	
Туре	How the event was entered into MEDSS: manually (interactive), electronically (batch), uploaded from old system (conversion)	The system will set this field.

Investigation Status	The event status: open, closed or invalid	Closed cases are locked for editing and will need to be re-opened for additional info to be entered
Linked Events/ Contacts	Will show if event is linked to other events with a link to view those links	
Linked Exposure Sites	Will show if the event is linked to an exposure site with a link to view exposure site	
Attachments	Show if any files were attached to event.	Link available to add additional attachments
Notifications	This section will show the disease status, and episode date. If outbreaks or concerns are related to the event, they will display here	
	Event Properties fields	
Event ID	The Unique identifier of the event in MEDSS	Calculated automatically
Change Disease To	A drop down of eligible disease changes. Not all users have access to change disease.	Diseases should be changed only if absolutely necessary. Information previously entered might be lost if the new disease doesn't have the same data elements as the old one.
Status	The current investigation status (options include: open, closed, invalid)	Cases should be closed once no more information is needed or expected and when all investigations are completed.
Change Status To	Can change investigation status to open, closed, invalid. Only location in MEDSS where an event can be closed	
Effective From	The date that the event was created. Only location in MEDSS where the event date can be changed.	
Note	Users can add notes about the event.	These will display on the dashboard

Category	The category the note should be categorized under (options include: generic, outreach, clinic, case management, education)	
Note Type	Indicates whether note is public or sensitive	Sensitive notes can be viewed only be certain roles
Deduplication Status	The status of the deduplication process of the event (if more than one disease event is in the system). Options include done, pending, merged	This is a system field, please don't change
	Administrative Question Packa	ige fields
Episode Date	The date this case was determined to meet the case definition. Auto- populates based on the field Episode date based on.	The Episode date is a key field and is used in the case count reports
Episode Date Based on	The date in the model that the Episode date should be based on. Options include case report date, event date, diagnosis date, onset date, specimen collection date, death date, lab confirm date, lab received date, birth date, date of first report.	MEDSS will take the date in the selected field and place it into Episode date. Make sure that the field corresponding to the selection in this field has a value
Case Status	The status of the case (options include undefined, suspect, probable, confirmed, carrier, contact, not a case). Some diseases will offer different options. Should be used to track stage of investigation.	This field is set only by MDH users. Use the options applicable to your disease
Reported via Phone to CDC	For MDH use only. Indicates whether the case was reported to CDC via phone.	
Report Case to CDC	For MDH use only. Indicates whether the case should be included in CDC reporting.	
Initial Date Sent	Date the report was initially sent to CDC	Auto-populated after sending to CDC
Most Recent Date Sent to CDC	Date the report was most recently sent to CDC.	Auto-populated after sending to CDC
MMWR Week	The week of the Morbidity and Mortality Weekly Report by the CDC	Auto populated using the episode date.

Field Name	Description	Data entry guidelines
MMWR Year	The year of the Morbidity and Mortality Weekly Report by the CDC	Auto populated using the episode date.
LPH ID Number	The ID number used to identify the case in the Local Public Health Department handling the case	
NETSS ID	Unique identification for NETSS transfer to CDC	
Legacy ID	Unique identification from older systems	Auto-populated after import
State ID	Unique state identification given to event required by CDC.	
Source Who Reported the Case Initially	The first source who reported the case to MDH. Options include: day care, school. Hospital, physician's office, homeless shelter, Indian Health Service, laboratory, emergency room, or other.	This field is sent to CDC
Facility doing the Reporting	Indicates the specific facility doing the reporting	This is a search and select field. Will show name and submiter IDs. Choose 'Other' to manually enter facility.
Date of First Report	The date MDH received the first report	Enter as dd/mm/yyyy
Case Report Received	Indicates whether MDH received a case report form.	A yes in this field will display the subsequent fields about case report date, source and other information about the reporting source.
Case Report Date	The date MDH received the case report form	If the date is unknown use the date you first learned about the case or the date the case was entered into MEDSS
Lab Report Received	Indicates whether MDH received the lab report.	A yes will bring up a date field.
Lab Report Received Date	The date MDH received the lab report	Enter as dd/mm/yyyy

Field Name	Description	Data entry guidelines
ELR Lab Reviewed	Indicates if the epidemiologists reviewed the case and the electronic lab report	This field will automatically be set to No when additional lab reports are received for the case. A Yes in this field will remove the case from the workflow 'ELR needs review'
If MDH Needs Follow- up Information, Contact this Person	Name of a person from the reporting source where additional information can be obtained.	
Contact Person Phone	The contact person's phone number	
Extension	Extension of the contact person's phone number	
Case Invesitgation Start Date	Indicates start date of investigation by MDH or LPH	Field will differ for each disease group
MDH Case Investigator Assigned to Case	The MDH user who is assigned to this event	This is a search and select field that searches by login id, last name, first name, or user's role/group.
Jurisdiction	The jurisdiction for the event's investigation. This field opens the case for LPH access and indicates what LPH agency the case belongs to.	If no local public health agency should have access to the event this field should be set to MDH. As a general rule the Jurisdiction should match the County (ATR) field.
County	The county the event was reported in (address at time of report).	This field is used for the case count by county reports. The data is transferred from the Demographic QP.
Region	The region the event is located in.	Auto populated based on the county.
Local Investigator Name	The name of the local investigator for the case. This is someone not at MDH	Search and select option
Local Investigator type	Indicates what type of investigator. Options include: PHN nurse, Field Epi, LPH, Other	Choose other to specify a different type. List may differ by disease.
Local Investigator Phone	The phone number of the local investigator	Area code required. Default format is (555) 555-5555

Field Name	Description	Data entry guidelines
Local Investigator Fax	The fax number of the local investigator	Area code required. Default format is (555) 555-5555
Local Investigator Email	The email of the local investigator	
Case Reported to LPH date	The date that LPH was notified of the case	Enter as dd/mm/yyyy
Did this Case Occur as part of an Outbreak?	Indicate if event is part of an outbreak. Options include: yes, no, unknown	CDC required field
State Outbreak/ cluster Identification Number	Unique identification of Outbreak.	Field will not be applicable for all diseases.
Patient's Insurance Status	Indicates if the case has health insurance. Options include insured, uninsured or unknown	
Carrier Name	If insured, this is a multi-select field to indicate which company or carrier the case is insured under	If other, please specify
	Demographic Question Packag	e fields
First Name	First name of the case	Transferred over from the edit person screen.
Middle Name	Middle name of the case	Transferred over from the edit person screen.
Last Name	Last name of the case	Transferred over from the edit person screen.
Suffix	The suffix of the case. Examples include Jr, Sr, 2rd, II, IV	Transferred over from the edit person screen.
Maiden/Other Name	Other name of the case	Transferred over from the edit person screen.
Alias	Nicknames, aliases or other first names of the case. Multiple Aliases can be entered.	Transferred over from the edit person screen.

Field Name	Description	Data entry guidelines
Birth Date	Birth date of the case. If birth date is not entered, age should be entered into the demographic QP.	Transferred over from the edit person screen.
Age at Time of Episode	Automatically calculated based on birth date and episode date.	Auto populated. Non-editable
Manual Age Entry	Users can manually enter age if birth date is unknown or if the case is less than 1 week old	If for some reason the age has been calculated incorrectly (due to missing or 'estimated' birth date), this field will take precedence if entered.
Unit	Indicates the unit for Age (options include: year, month or day).	
Did Patient Immigrate to the U.S. during the Period of Interest	During the course of the investigation or disease period, this field indicates if the case moved to the United States.	
Country of Birth	Case's country of birth. Options inlcude all counties.	
Other Country	Freeform to fill out if country is not listed in drop down	
Date of Arrival to the U.S.?	Year contact arrived in the US (if foreign-born)	Enter as dd/mm/yyyy
Marital Status	The marital status of the case. Options include married, single, widowed, divorce, separated, annulled, living together and unknown	
Gender	Contact's gender	Transferred over from the patient screen.
Race	Contact's race	For multiracial, use Add New function to enter additional race. To indicate an 'unknown' multirace, enter two instances of unknown.

Field Name	Description	Data entry guidelines
Please Specify	If a race is chosen that requires more details (i.e. Black African American, Asian, American Indian), this field will show	
Ethnicity	Indicates whether caseis Hispanic or non-hispanic	
Preferred Language	Case's preferred language. Dropdown lists all availabel languages	
Other Language	If other is chosen, freeform to indicate which language	
Interpreter Needed	If language other than English is chosen, this field will show. Options include yes, no, unknown	
Interpreter Language	If interpreter is needed, indicate what language	
Other Language	If language is not on the list, use freeform to indicate which language is needed	
Preferred Contact Method	The case's preferred method of contact (Mail, home phone, work phone, Mobile phone, email, do not contact)	
Is the Person Dead?	Indicates if the patient/client is dead.	
Death Date	Date the case died.	Transferred over from the patient screen.
Address Information (at time of reporting)	The address at time of reporting is used to indicate the address the case had when it was reported.	The address at time of reporting is auto populated when the case is created and after that not changed.
Update Address at Time of Reporting with Current Address	This allows Address at time of report to be auto-populated based on what is in Current address section	Use when address is initially unknown. Update Current address in person tab then auto-populate at time of report
Address Type	Indicates the type of address entered into the address fields at time of reporting. Options include: Home, work, company, vacation, other, etc.	

Field Name	Description	Data entry guidelines
Street 1	The building number and street of the address	Follow US Postal standards
Street 2	Indicate apartment, suite, floor, etc. number	
City	The city the address is located in	
State	The state the address is located in	
Zip	The zip code of the address	
County	The county of the address. This field is important to know to define jurisdiction	
Country	The country of the address	
Address information (current)	Displays the current address from the edit person screen.	To change the current address, use the edit person screen.
Parent/guardian information known	This field needs to be set to yes to be able to enter information in the fields' guardian first name, middle name and last name.	
Guardian First Name	If case is younger than age 18, indicate the guardian or parent's first name	
Guardian Middle Name	If case is younger than age 18, indicate the guardian or parent's middle name	
Guardian Last Name	If case is younger than age 18, indicate the guardian or parent's last name	
Guardian Relationship	If case is younger than age 18, indicate the guardian relationship	
Birthing Facility Name	The facility where the case was born	Only enter if applicable to the case.
MDH Submitter Code	MDH identifying number for the facility	
Address (line 1)	The address of the facility	

Field Name	Description	Data entry guidelines
Address (line 2)	Indicate P.O. box, apartment, suite, floor, etc. number	
City	The city the address is located in	
State	The state the address is located in	
Zip Code	The zip code of the address	
Phone Number (facility main)	The facility's main phone line	
Extension	The extension of the phone number	
Phone Number	Lists alternate phone number to reach physician	
Extension	The extension of the phone number	
	Clinical and Lab Interpretations C	Question Package
Diagnosis Date	The date the case was diagnosed with the disease	Enter as dd/mm/yyyy
Onset Date	The date symptoms started	Enter as dd/mm/yyyy
Pregnant at Time of Report?	Indicates if the case was pregnant at the time of diagnosis	
Pregnancy Due Date	If yes to the above field, the due date of the baby	Enter as dd/mm/yyyy
Was the Patient Hospitalized?	Indicates if the case was hospitalized at time of reporting and diagnosis	
Hospital Name and Submitter code	Displays the hospital name and submitter code after choosing from the facility list	Search and select field
Hospital Name	The name of the hospital	Auto-populated
MDH Lab Submitter Code	MDH identifying number for the facility	Auto-populated
Address (line 1)	The street number of the building	Auto-populated

Field Name	Description	Data entry guidelines
Address (line 2)	Indicates P.O. box, apartment, suite, floor, etc. number applicable to facility	Auto-populated
City	The city the address is located in	Auto-populated
State	The state the address is located in	Auto-populated
Zip Code	The zip code of the address	Auto-populated
Phone Number (facility main)	The facility's main phone line	Auto-populated
Extension	The extension of the phone number	Auto-populated
Phone Number	Lists alternate phone number to reach facility	
Extension	The extension of the phone number	
Date of Admission	The date the case was admitted to this hospital	Enter as dd/mm/yyyy
Date of Discharge	The date the case was discharged from this hospital	Enter as dd/mm/yyyy
Number of Days Hospitalized	The total number of days case was hospitalized	This field is calculated based on difference between admission date and discharge date
Total Days Hospitalized	This is a freeform field for total days patient was in hospital.	This field is not aplicable for all diseases. Use if Number of days hospitalized is blank.
Duration of illness (in days)	This is a freeform field for total days illness lasted.	This field is located differently based on disease
Died from this illness?	Specifies whether patient died due the specific disease of the current event in MEDSS	
Specimen Collection Date	Date the specimen source was collected from the case	Enter as dd/mm/yyyy

Field Name	Description	Data entry guidelines
Specimen Sent to MDH Lab	Indicated if the specimen was sent to the MDH lab	
Date Sent	The date the specimen was received by the MDH lab	Enter as dd/mm/yyyy
Sent From	Facility that submitted specimen to MDH lab. Will show name and submitter id.	Search and select field
Confirmed by MDH Lab	Indicates if the MDH lab confirmed they received the specimen	
Date Confirmed by MDH Lab	The date the MDH lab confirmed they received the specimen	Enter as dd/mm/yyyy

# **APPENDIX B: ADDRESS STANDARDS**

One of the benefits of MEDSS is the ability to assign GIS coordinates (longitude and latitude) to a person's address or an exposure site and view on a map the location of that person or site. MEDSS deduplication is also using these addresses when identifying matches. With standardized addresses, the GIS location and de-duplication processes will work better.

In order to increase optimization of the current geocoder and de-duplication processes in MEDSS, it is preferred that users enter address information according to US postal standards. The efficiency of the system relies on this standardization of data entry. Please refer to the following list for guidelines on entering address information. Standard abbreviations are located in the appendix.

## Guidelines

The guidelines below are to help assist users when adding address information in MEDSS.

- A *standardized address* is one that is fully spelled out, abbreviated by using the Postal Service standard abbreviations, and uses the proper format for the address style.
- The Postal Service defines a *complete address* as one that has all the address elements necessary to allow an exact match with the current Postal Service files.
- A complete address should contain:
  - Street number (**3186** PILOT KNOB RD)
  - Prefix direction (if necessary) (156 E 18TH ST)
  - o Street name (3334 CEDAR AVE)
  - Street type (3334 CEDAR AVE)
  - Suffix direction (if necessary) (1200 34TH ST W)
  - Unit number (14955 GALAXIE AVE STE 300)
  - City (MINNEAPOLIS MN 55406)
  - State (MINNEAPOLIS MN 55406)
  - Zipcode (MINNEAPOLIS MN **55406**)
- If the entire address is entered correctly according to these guidelines, MEDSS will be able to find and enter the correct county.
- If the correct zipcode is entered together with a correct street address, MEDSS will be able to find and enter the correct city.
- Punctuation should be omitted from address unless it is a significant part of the address or it is the *hyphen* in a 9 digit zipcode.
  - Hyphens in the address range (i.e. part of box number) are significant and are not removed.
  - Hyphens in the street or city name are not significant and may be replaced with a space.
  - Remove any special characters (i.e. \*, &, @) from address line.
  - Do not use punctuation after abbreviation of street type or unit designator.
- When entering address information, try to have these components to have a success address match:
  - o Street number, name and street type.
  - o State and zipcode

Below breaks down the guidelines into the different address components:

#### City names

- City names should be spelled out in their entirety.
- MEDSS offers an auto-suggest list when entering in city names. Please use that spelling.
- Any city with abbreviation should have punctuation, i.e. St. Cloud not St Cloud.
- Do not spell out common abbreviations, i.e. use St. not Saint.
  - Try to use correct city names for location, i.e. use Brooklyn Center not Minneapolis.
    - o If city is unknown or unsure, leave blank.
    - o If zipcode is correct and city is blank, the geocoder will find the correct city.

#### Street names

- Use correct spelling of street names and do not use abbreviations. The geocoder will not find address if the spelling is incorrect.
- Streets with numeric names should be entered as 1st ST rather than First ST.
  - Only exception is when there are duplicate street names within a postal delivery area and the only distinguishing factor is that the one you entered is spelled out.
- When entering in street type, always use the abbreviation, i.e. ST, RD, LN, etc.
  - See the next section for a list of common street types.

#### **Direction Designators**

- For the location of a direction designation, place as <u>Suffix</u> after Street type.
  - o This is in order to standardize addresses for easier and efficient searching
  - Exception is when address needs both prefix and suffix
  - Use the correct abbreviation— N, S, E, W, NE, NW, SE, SW— and do not punctuate.

#### Unit Designators

- Secondary address unit designators are preferred to be at the end of the address line, after street type.
  - o If unit designator does not fit on the same line, place it in the second address field.
  - Avoid using the pound sign (#) unless correct designation (i.e. apartment or suite) is unknown. • Use the correct abbreviation (see the next section for most common unit designators).

#### Post office box addresses

- Print Post Office Box addresses as: PO BOX NN
  - PO BOX should replace street number and street name.
- If dual addresses are needed, place PO BOX on second address line.
- Zipcode should be the correct one for the PO BOX location

#### Rural route addresses

- Print rural route addresses as: RR N BOX NN.
  - Example: RR 2 Box 152
- Do not use the words RURAL, NUMBER, NO., or the pound sign (#)
- Additional designations, such as street name or town, are not needed.

# Abbreviations

## Secondary Unit Designators Abbreviations

APT
BLDG
DEPT
FL
OFC
RM
STE
UNIT

### **Common Street Suffix Abbreviations**

Alley	ALY	Lane	LN
Avenue	AVE	Meadow	MDW
Boulevard	BLVD	Motorway	MTWY
Bridge	BRG	Mountain	MTN
Causeway	CSWY	Orchard	ORCH
Center	CTR	Parkway	PKWY
Circle	CIR	Passage	PSGE
Court	СТ	Place	PL
Creek	CRK	Plaza	PLZ
Divide	DV	Ranch	RNCH
Drive	DR	Ridge	RDG
Estate	EST	Road	RD
Expressway	EXPY	Route	RTE
Ford	FRD	Shore	SHR
Forest	FRST	Skyway	SKWY
Freeway	FWY	Spring	SPG
Garden	GDN	Square	SQ
Grove	GRV	Street	ST
Highway	HWY	Terrace	TER
Hill	HL	Trafficway	TRFY
Hollow	HOLW	Tunnel	TUNL
Junction	JCT	Turnpike	TPKE
Lake	LK	View	VW

# GLOSSARY

**Dashboard** — the dashboard is the main screen for the system. It can be compared to the home screen of a web browser. From the dashboard, users can access all MEDSS functions.

**Toolbar** — the toolbar is the dark gray bar on the top of the dashboard screen. Most actions can be access from the toolbar.

**Event** — an event in MEDSS is a person with a disease at a specific point in time.

**Case** — a case in MEDSS is the same as an event.

**Record** — a record is much like a case or event; however, a record could also be the information on a single person.

**Person** — a person in MEDSS will only be entered once but can be tied to multiple disease events

**Wildcard** — a wildcard is substitute for letters when searching for a name. In MEDSS, users can use the asterisk \* if letters of a name are uncertain. However, using a wildcard may yield more results than intended.

**Question Package** — a question package (QP) is a series of questions that relate to a common theme. In MEDSS the core question packages are Administrative, Demographic and Clinical and Lab Interpretations. However many disease events will also have Risk History, Vaccine History and Activity History.

**Workflow Queue**—a workflow queue is an electronic inbox or to do list. Events will automatically flow into these inboxes based on specific triggers usually located in the question packages. These workflow queues update every 10 minutes so it is import to stay up-to-date on your assigned workflows.

**Unload Event** — the unload event link is a way to put the event folder back in the drawer so another user can edit the event. Two users can not edit the same vent at the same time so it is important to properly put back events when finished working on them.

**Icon** — all the images in the toolbar are known as icons. This term is used throughout the training guide to define the links on the toolbar.

**Button** — a button in MEDSS is any navigational link that leads the user to a new screen or back to the dashboard. Buttons will usually be gray color and rectangular. Icons are the links in the toolbar while buttons are the links throughout the screens of MEDSS.

Link — a link in MEDSS is any blue and underlined word that leads the user to a new screen.